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HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

1962

1983

1989

1992

1996

2007

2008

2009

2011

2013

| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. was established in May 1962, which
manufactured canned agricultural products mainly for export.

In 1983, we collaborated with Iwatsuka Confectionery Co., Ltd.
(“ICCL”), one of the leading Japanese rice cracker producers, to
jointly develop the rice cracker market in Taiwan region. Since 1983,
we have been producing and marketing our products under the
“Want Want” brand.

We introduced the “Want Want” brand in the Chinese mainland in
1989.

We ventured into the Chinese mainland and established our first
subsidiary in Hunan province in the Chinese mainland in 1992. In the
following years, we grew from a pure rice cracker company to a diver-
sified food and beverages company.

In May 1996, Want Want Holdings Ltd. (“WWHL"), our subsidiary,
was listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and subsequently diversified into the
hospital, hotel and property businesses and other investments.

WWHL delisted from SGX-ST in September 2007 and conducted
a group restructuring which involved (i) the incorporation of Want
Want China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) as the new holding
company of our core operations related to the food and beverages
businesses; (ii) the divestment and transfer of the hospital, hotel and
property businesses and other investments to San Want Holdings
Limited (“San Want”) on 31 December 2007, and the interests in San
Want were distributed to the then shareholders of WWHL by way of
dividend in specie.

Our Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HK Stock Exchange”) on 26 March 2008 (the “Listing”).
In the same year, we were selected as a constituent of the Hang
Seng Mainland Composite Index and the Morgan Stanley Capital
International China Index.

Our Taiwan Depositary Receipts (“TDRs”) were listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation (“TWSE”) on 28 April 2009.

Our Company was selected as a constituent stock of the Hong Kong
Hang Seng Index on 5 December 2011.

On 15 October 2013, our TDRs were voluntarily withdrawn from
listing on the TWSE.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Want Want”, “We” or the “Group”) are the manufacturing,
distribution and sale of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack

foods and other products.

KEY MARKETS

Most of our operations are in People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), which is
one of the fastest growing economies in the world. We have an extensive
nationwide sales and distribution network throughout PRC. We also export
our products to other markets, including North America, East Asia, South East
Asia and Europe.
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As at 31 March 2018:
Chinese mainland: around 10,000 wholesalers, 417 sales offices, 35 production bases and 90 factories
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Spirit of Want Want

Self Confidence

Confidence comes with good preparation.

Hot-Kid’s smiling countenance reflects
our belief in preparedness and the
confidence that glows with it. Heart-
shaped tongue of the Hot-Kid
represents our sincere heart to the
Group: Be faithful to the leaders, be
kind to the subordinates, and be sincere
to our customers. The effort would definitely
enhance our performances!

S
AhN

Hot-Kid’s upward-looking eyes point to
where our management sights are set -

the skies. We aim high and achieve far.

Only through prudent management and

judicious foresight, will our enterprise
progress with sustainable profits.
Preparedness also prevents any

O unwanted events. With good yields, our

shareholders and employees will share the
fruits of our success.

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY:

Elite Dragons of the world

Hot-Kid’'s open arms reflect WANT WANT
is a big united family which brings
together outstanding talents from all
over the world. With the development
and expansion of our businesses, the
Giant Dragons of the World is born.

High Margins, Great Success

Prosperity for the Group

and the Individuals

Hot-Kid’s bare feet symbolize our unwavering
pragmatism. To garner customer support and

recognition, a company needs to conduct
its business honestly and earnestly.
To win our customers’ and associates’
support, every employee should be
conscientious and down-to-earth
when dealing with them.Consequently,

a company will prosper and likewise its
employees.

10

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY:

People Oriented

Healthy working relationships form the bedrock
of any successful organisation. As signified
by Hot-Kid’s round head, we believe
excellent employer-employee
cohesion fosters long-lasting harmony
and progress. Equally important is a
strong management cadre. Hot-Kid’s
crown of spiky hair symbolises our eagerness
to embrace new talents. We deeply value
relationships and talents.

Unity

Hot-Kid’s open arms reflect our team
spirit. His welcoming left arm denotes
our unity. We believe with the right
strategies and concerted effort,
victory is already half won. Even with

I less-than-expected performances, our

collective efforts will ensure minimal deviations.

United with People of

Common Aspirations

Hot-Kid’s right arm denotes a helping
hand. Corporate advancement is the
product of the intricate interplay among
management talent, skills, capital
funds and markets. As we strive

| to achieve our corporate vision of

1 becoming the “Elite Dragons of the World”,

| our doors are always open to people of

|

|

common aspirations and those who share our
ideals.

Successful Business
Ventures

Hot-Kid’s roll-up sleeves and pants imply
embracing our future with hard work.
To realize our goal of becoming the
“Elite Dragons of the World”, we will
undertake new ventures periodically.
Every employee should travel the extra
miles and ensure tasks are successfully
accomplished.
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Spirit of Want Want
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| W Rice crackers | Snack foods
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ek
Fifteen months
ended 31
Year ended 31 December March 2018
BE12AMALEE HBZ2018F
3A3MAL
2013 2014 2015 2016 +HEA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARBT R
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&&&E35) (&&E5) (&=E5)
Revenue e 23,630,104 23,200,585 21,389,320 19,710,128 24,854,462
Profit before income tax BRATS BRI 5,778,963 5,097,766 4,797,083 4,895,848 5,322,733
Income tax expense FiEHER (1,529,307) (1,290,501) (1,417,734) (1,378,473) (1,468,445)
Profit for the year/period £E/BRFE 4,249,656 3,807,265 3,379,349 3,517,375 3,854,288
Profit attributable to: FEALFIE
Equity holders of the Company AATREEREA 4,254,211 3,813,189 3,382,526 3,519,168 3,862,603
Non-controlling interests JFAEHIM R (4,555) (5,924) (3,177) (1,793) (8,315)
Dividends BRE 2,846,746 1,959,232 1,549,137 1,524,314 2,473,233
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
ARBR ARBD ARBD ARED AR®S
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&&E5) (&&85) (&=E5)
Earnings per share SREF
Basic HAR 3217 28.88 25.82 27.70 30.90
Diluted o 3217 28.88 25.82 27.70 30.90
Twelve months ended 31 March
HZ3A31AIL+={@R
20175 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR ARBTT
Revenue [ 19,016,845 20,274,708
Profit before income tax BRETE R AT RS 4,607,674 4,293,467
Income tax expense FEHRER (1,273,757) (1,183,019)
Profit for the year/period EE/BAFE 3,333,917 3,110,448
Profit attributable to: FEAL R :
Equity holders of the Company ANERHEFEA 3,336,858 3,115,834
Non-controlling interests FFERIM R (2,941) (5,386)
Dividends KE 1,524,314 2,473,233
RMB cents RMB cents
ARED AR¥D
Earning per share SREF
Basic -WIN 26.39 24.93
Diluted wE 26.39 24.93

13



2017/2018 ANNUAL REPORT NARERLES
£33 FEBIBTIEREBRAA

Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REeEERER
As at 31 December As at 31
R12A318 March 2018
RN2018 5
2013 2014 2015 2016 3A31A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(ZE5) (&E5)) (&ZE50)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 8,763,855 10,367,087 10,842,577 10,308,135 9,330,069
Current assets REEE 17,746,027 15,842,340 13,873,185 16,901,072 17,353,034
Total assets BmeEE 26,509,882 26,209,427 24,715,762 27,209,207 26,683,103
EQUITY B
Total equity R 11,902,539 12,578,218 12,168,280 12,320,923 14,610,900
LIABILITIES =X
Non-current liabilities kRBasE 5,372,271 5,704,091 6,755,682 6,116,287 3,343,251
Current liabilities hEaf 9,235,072 7,927,118 5,791,800 8,771,997 8,728,952
Total liabilities Bef 14,607,343 13,631,209 12,547,482 14,888,284 12,072,203
Total equity and liabilities BEZKEE 26,509,882 26,209,427 24,715,762 27,209,207 26,683,103

14



FERE
Chairman’s Statement

F B8 ERAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
FH

BUSINESS REVIEW

As | have always said, “Want Want is like my first child”. Most of my thoughts
every day are related to it. Even when it is after work, most of my discussions
with my family still revolves around it. It is truly said that most of the time when
| feel upset or fulfilled, it is about “Want Want”. | see this as the so-called
“fate”.

At our management meeting at the beginning of this year, | encouraged our
management team to translate the bond with Want Want that ties each of
us together into motivation and commitments to their daily responsibilities. |
urged the production department to continuously improve our product quality;
the sales teams to introduce our products to customers as “artworks”; and the
back office sales staff to provide the best support so that our frontline staff can
progress forward at full speed.

During 2017, the Group optimized the organization and function of its sales
operation, revenue for the new financial year (from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018) grew by 6.6% to RMB20,274.7 million as compared with that of the
same period in the previous year. In particular, each of our core products
including Hot-Kid milk, core-brand rice crackers, popsicles and ball cakes,
achieved a double-digit growth rate or slightly below such growth rate. Gross
profit margin dropped to 43.1% as compared with that of the same period
in the previous year due to the rising costs of certain raw materials and
packaging materials. Accordingly, net profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company decreased by 6.6% to RMB3,115.8 million as compared with
that of the same period in the previous year.

Over the past few years, we have made various attempts and changes to our
branding, our distribution and sales channels and our ways of communication
with consumers. These new initiatives were introduced with the aim of
enabling Want Want products to exploit the consumption upgrade trend and
enhancing communication and interaction with consumers. For example, in
recent years, we have emphasized digital marketing strategies and launched
several classic online marketing campaigns each year which have received
large numbers of consumers’ “likes” (ﬁ). In addition, notable changes
were made to the packaging designs and materials of many of our products
to pursue product perfection from packaging to content. Last year, we also
started to explore the vending machine channel to supplement points of
sales in both online and offline channels. This year, | also asked our frontline
sales teams to enhance market information collection and timely feedback
so that we can capture the latest market trend and respond promptly to the
rapidly changing market conditions. All the efforts we have made and will
make are to preserve the excellent reputation of “Want Want” brand among
consumers, generation after generation. This is why, more than four decades
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ago, | designed “Hot-Kid” as a forward-looking boy, symbolizing Want Want's
aiming high, farsighted vision and great vitality.

DIVIDENDS AND SHARE REPURCHASES

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of US0.90 cent per
share and a special dividend of US1.25 cents per share for the fifteen months
from 1 January 2017 to 31 March 2018, totalling US2.15 cents per share,
representing approximately US$267.7 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,683.1 million) in total. Together with the two interim dividends
distributed, the total amount of dividends for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018 will amount to approximately US$387.7 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,473.2 million). In addition, 74.69 million shares were
repurchased by the Company during the same period for an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB371.7 million.

For the fifteen months from 1 January 2017 to 31 March 2018, the Company
would have returned a total of approximately RMB2,844.9 million to
shareholders by way of dividend payments and share repurchases.

OUTLOOK

2018 is the Year of the Dog. On the Chinese New Year television programs
and in other major media, | heard the crowds shouting “Want Want” which
was not seen 12 years ago in the previous Year of the Dog. Therefore, |
believe that Want Want could become one of the greatest brands in Chinese
history. Together with our management, | shall do my best every day to
provide safe, delicious Want Want products to our consumers. My dream is
to hear shouts of “Want Want” from around the world during the next Year of
the Dog!

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers, business partners and financial
institutions for their continuous support to the Group. | would also like to
express my gratitude to all our staff members for their efforts and hard work.

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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Audited
REX
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2018™ 2016M Change
BZ2018F BZE2016F EHALE
3A31H 12A31H
Itt+HEA LEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
Key income statement items FEWFEKIER ARMT T ARBT T %
Revenue & 24,854,462 19,710,128 +26.1
Gross profit EF 10,789,572 9,424,173 +14.5
Operating profit EERE 5,192,820 4,811,229 +7.9
EBITDA® KETRE - FrEH
TERBHEAER 6,345,734 5,727,490 +10.8
Profit attributable to equity AARREEFEA
holders of the Company FE(E RS 3,862,603 3,519,168 +9.8
% point
Key financial ratios FEMFLEE % % (EEpa
Gross profit margin EFFE 43.4 47.8 -4.4
Operating profit margin EEFEE 20.9 24.4 -35
EBITDA margin REFE - IS8 TER
BEHAT B RI= 25.5 29.1 -3.6
Margin of profit attributable to AARERFEA
equity holders of the Company FEAG R = 15.5 17.9 2.4
Fifteen
months
ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
BZ2018F BZE2016F
3A31H 12A31H
It+HMEA EFE
Key operating ratios FEEELR
Inventory turnover days® FEAEXRH® 81 94
Trade receivables turnover days® BEZREWREEXEHO 22 20
Trade payables turnover days® BEZEAREAEXH® 43 45

17
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Unaudited
RBEX
Twelve months ended 31 March Change
BZE3A31AL+=EA EiE:i]a
2018 @ 2017 @
RMB’000 RMB’000

Key income statement items FEWRKRIE AR%T T AREET T %
Revenue g 20,274,708 19,016,845 +6.6
Gross profit EX 8,735,329 8,973,267 27
Operating profit EEFE 4,192,076 4,526,322 7.4

EBITDA® KRERE - FriEH
FERBHEARF O 5,109,049 5,450,671 6.3

Profit attributable to equity holders AARERTFEA

of the Company FE(EF) 3,115,834 3,336,858 -6.6
% point
Key financial ratios FEHBLEE % % EEpaE-
Gross profit margin ER=E 43.1 47.2 -4.1
Operating profit margin EEFREER 20.7 23.8 -3.1

EBITDA margin KETFIE ~ FrEH
TEREHENRAER 25.2 28.7 -3.5

Margin of profit attributable to AARERFE A

equity holders of the Company FEAL = 15.4 17.5 -2.1

M

)

(3)

4)

(%)

As announced by the Company on 22 August 2017, the Company’s financial
year end date has been changed from 31 December to 31 March. The
financial statements presented for current financial reporting period covers
a period of fifteen months from 1 January 2017 to 31 March 2018 with the
comparative figures cover for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Going forward, the Group’s financial years would cover a period of twelve
months from 1 April of a relevant year to 31 March of the following year. To
facilitate a better understanding of the Group’s operating results in a twelve-
month period ended on the new financial year end date of 31 March, the
Group also presents the unaudited financial results for the twelve months
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 on a voluntary basis.

EBITDA refers to earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and
amortization. It is calculated by adding back depreciation and amortization
expenses to the operating profit for the period.

The calculation of inventory and trade payables turnover days is based on
the average of the opening and closing balances divided by cost of sales
and multiplied by number of days in the relevant period.

The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the average
of the opening and closing balances dividend by revenue and multiplied by
number of days in the relevant period.

M

(2)

(3)

4)

(%)
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SPECIAL NOTE: CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

As the sales of our certain products are closely associated with the Chinese
New Year, different timing of the Chinese New Year in each year may give
rise to a substantial year-on-year fluctuation of the operating results of the
Group with a financial year end date of 31 December, thus affecting the
perception of the Group’s actual underlying business performance. In this
regard, on 22 August 2017, the Board resolved to change the financial
year end date of the Company from 31 December to 31 March. This is the
first financial year after the change, and the financial statements presented
for current financial reporting period covers the fifteen-month period from
1 January 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the “2017 15-month Period”) and the
comparative figures cover the twelve-month period from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016.

The new financial years subsequent to the change would cover the
full year from 1 April of a relevant year to 31 March of the following
year. To provide a clear picture of the Group’s operating results during
the new financial year, the financial information presented herein
also includes the financial information for the twelve-month period
from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the “New 2017FY”), and the
comparative financial information covers the twelve-month period from
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.
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SUMMARY g
Against the background of a healthy and steady development of China’s EHEKERELIBNERENEST
economy, the Group has formulated a diversified marketing strategy featuring EEHEHEBEZELLNER HIEER

channels and products to satisfy the differentiated needs of consumers, B+EMNZTATERE LERERE
expand the coverage of points of sales and enhance our overall product MNT AR ERBNEE  @aARmas
presence on shelves through further penetration of our distribution channels BE RBAEWMLZEZR - EARBBEETHE

and development of the emerging channels. In addition, taking into account BENEY  BESKELNEFTHES
of the prevailing consumer preferences, the Group strengthened its brand N BEmEFRATEHEEER -
image and interaction with consumers through diversified digital marketing.

The implementation of the above strategies is showing positive results. FREBNERZER RN c 2017 A FE
During the New 2017FY, the Group’s revenue grew at 6.6% year-on-year and WHZERRESRG6.6% B2017H M FH
the revenue in both the first and second half of the New 2017FY achieved a FTF¥EF WEHBERPSENEAR °
middle to high single-digit growth rate.

RO R8I MmRgy
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SUMMARY (Continued)

Upgrade of products

Revenue of the three key product segments showed a balanced and healthy
growth trend in the New 2017FY. In particular, each of our star products
including Hot-Kid milk, core-brand rice crackers, popsicles and ball cakes,
achieved a double-digit or close to double-digit growth rate. The Group has
clearly defined the target customers of each product category, introduced new
product designs, adopted new packaging and marketing methods so as to
make our products and brands increasingly popular among consumers.

Channel diversification

Each sales and distribution channel also performed well to different extents
during the New 2017FY. Through rationalisation of sales organisation,
actively developing unexplored points of sales and downward channel
penetration, sales through traditional channels had resumed on a positive
growth track from the beginning of the New 2017FY, and maintained the
growth trend throughout the year, which laid the foundation for the overall
growth of the Group and contributed greatly to the recovery of the revenue
growth of the three key product segments.
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SUMMARY (Continued)

Channel diversification (Continued)

Sales through modern channels have maintained a double-digit growth
momentum since 2016, due mainly to the fact that the Group has gradually
differentiated the products sold through different channels, which could not
only meet the differentiated consumer demands, but also support the parallel
development of both traditional and modern channels, unleashing the positive
development momentum of modern channels.

For the e-commerce channel, through its fashionable, personalised product
design and lively marketing methods, the Group has continuously been
expanding its young consumer groups. In addition, the new retail model which
integrates online and offline channels helps the Group to expand its market
coverage. As a result, sales through e-commerce channel were doubled each
year in recent two years and have become an important revenue growth
driver of the Group. In particular, one-third of the revenue growth of the dairy
products and beverages segment has come from e-commerce channel.

Our trusted brand image as widely recognised among consumers and our
extensive product offering provide the Group with an unique competitive
advantage in the maternity channel and enable our maternity channel
operation to maintain its strong growth momentum. Under the trend of having
a second-child and consumption upgrade in China, there will be more market
opportunities in the maternity channel in the future. The Group will continue to
explore and invest in emerging channels. For example, the Group has started
exploring the vending machine operation with the aim to supplement more
points of sales in both online and offline channels.
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SUMMARY (Continued)

Channel diversification (Continued)

With our long-history of the operations in overseas markets, Want Want brand
has gradually gained recognition and popularity. Revenue from overseas
markets achieved a double-digit growth in the New 2017FY, becoming one
of the main drivers of our rice cracker’s sales growth. Looking forward, the
Group plans to further explore overseas market opportunities.

Digital marketing

Digital marketing makes our marketing and promotion activities become more
diversified. The customised marketing plans tailored for target consumer
group have made the image of our brands/products more vivid, and played an
active role in expanding the customer base and enhancing the user loyalty.

The operation of Hot-Kid Club platform:

Through making use of public social media platforms, such as Weibo and
WeChat, and the use of self-developed APPs, the Group has created its
fan club membership system. Leveraging on these platforms, we are able
to better understand consumers’ behaviour and preferences, to accurately
push creative content, and to guide and create new consumer demands. At
present, Hot-Kid Club has built a large fan base. In the future, the Group will
further explore the application of big data to meet the personalised needs of
various different users.
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SUMMARY (Continued)

Cross-industry and integrated marketing to strengthen brand image:
During the Spring Festival of the Year of the Dog in 2018, the Group
collaborated with a well-known e-commerce company and launched a co-
branded gift box packaged with “Want-style language” to create “the Festival
Gift Culture of Want Want” and to help young people to respond to inquiries
from relatives and friends during the Chinese New Year. The Group also
organised related offline entertainment and varieties activities during the
Chinese New Year, which made the Want Want image permeated into the
post-90 groups and expanded the Want Want brand power and influence
during the Chinese New Year and festivals. The Group, in cross-industry
cooperation with Ele.me, set up offline pop-up shop “Girls’ Pub”, which
accurately targeted audience with pink theme while at the same time creating
hot topics online around “Girls’ Pub” and related products to maximise the
influence of this campaign and generate brand effect featuring 1+1>2.
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SUMMARY (Continued)
Overview of operational results
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the “New 2017FY”)

For the New 2017FY, the Group achieved a total revenue of RMB20,274.7
million, representing an increase of 6.6% as compared with that of the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.

The Group’s gross profit margin was 43.1% for the New 2017FY, representing
a decrease of 4.1 percentage points as compared with that of the period from
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, due to the increase in the costs of certain key
raw materials such as packaging materials, sugar and milk powder.

For the New 2017FY, the Group’s operating expense ratio (being the ratio of
total distribution costs and administrative expenses to revenue) was 25.9%,
representing a decrease of 0.4 percentage point year-on-year. Distribution
costs to revenue ratio was 14.8%, representing an increase of 0.8 percentage
point year-on-year. This was due mainly to the increase in the number of
sales representatives and in-store promoters to strengthen services at points
of sales across the nation and to enhance user experience thereby improved
the performance of related points of sales in the traditional channels and
modern channels. In addition, in order to grasp the channel development
opportunities, the Group increased the investment in advertising and
promotion resources in modern channels and emerging channels to attract
target consumers and retailers, so as to promote the long-term development
of such channels. The Group’s improved sales and continuous effective cost
control led to a decrease of 1.2 percentage points in the ratio of administrative
expenses to revenue, which offset the effects of the increase in marketing
resources, resulting in a decrease in overall operating expense ratio by 0.4
percentage point year-on-year to 25.9%.

As a result of the foregoing, the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company reached RMB3,115.8 million, representing a decrease of 6.6%
year-on-year, while the year-on-year decline for the period from 1 October
2017 to 31 March 2018 (being the second half of the New 2017FY) further
narrowed to a lower single digit level. The margin of profit attributable to equity
holders reached 15.4% due to the decrease in gross profit margin.
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SUMMARY (Continued)

Overview of operational results (Continued)

For the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the “2017
15-month Period”)

For the 2017 15-month Period, the Group achieved a total revenue of
RMB24,854.5 million. In terms of the Group’s revenue attributable to the three
key product segments, the revenue from the rice crackers and the snack
foods segments together accounted for 52.1% of the Group’s total revenue
while that from the dairy products and beverages segment accounted for
47.6% of the Group’s total revenue.

The Group’s gross profit margin reached 43.4% for the 2017 15-month
Period, representing a decrease of 4.4 percentage points as compared with
that of the period from 1 January to 31 December 2016, due to the increase
in the costs of certain key raw materials such as packaging materials, sugar
and milk powder. The operating expense ratio reached 26.1% for the 2017
15-month Period, representing an increase of 0.1 percentage point as
compared with that of the period from 1 January to 31 December 2016. As
a result, the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company reached
RMB3,862.6 million for the 2017 15-month Period and the margin of profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company reached 15.5%.

REVENUE

Benefiting from the business strategies which started to bring positive
results, the total revenue of the Group for the New 2017FY increased by
6.6% as compared to that of the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017,
thus maintaining a positive growth recovery trend. The three key product
segments continued to develop in a balanced manner. The revenue from the
rice crackers and the snack foods segments together accounted for 52.4% of
the total revenue while that from the dairy products and beverages segment
accounted for 47.4% of the total revenue.

For the 2017 15-month Period, the Group achieved a total revenue of
RMB24,854.5 million. As for the performance of the three key product
segments during the period, the revenue form rice crackers, dairy products
and beverages and snack foods segments was RMB6,717.8 million,
RMB11,833.9 million and RMB6,244.6 million, respectively.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Rice crackers

As a result of the optimisation of the sales organisation and the development
of unexplored market, the revenue from rice crackers for the New 2017FY
was RMB5,653.5 million, representing an increase of 8.4% as compared with
that of the same period in the previous year, and recorded a high single-digit
growth rate both in the first and second half of the New 2017FY, while the
core-brand rice crackers achieved a nearly double-digit growth rate.

In terms of the traditional channels, the revenue growth rate of the rice
crackers in the New 2017FY exceeded their compound annual growth rate
during the past 5 years. Modern channels, through the introduction of the
customised large packing size bags and corner seal bags, such as 360g
sugar-coated crackers and savoury senbei bags, which are more appropriate
for shelf display and cyclical purchasing needs of our consumers, achieved a
double-digit growth rate in terms of rice crackers sales, thereby boosting the
overall growth of rice crackers segment.

The Group utilised distinctive product design and lively digital marketing
methods to create several hot product sales that are memorable among
consumers in the e-commerce channel. For example, during the “Double 11”
event (short form of the event day launched by a well-known e-commerce
platform on November 11 in China), the Group launched the “Make Bigger”
gift pack through the e-commerce channel, for which our star products like
traditional sugar-coated crackers and savoury senbei that we have sold for
more than 20 years were enlarged 8 times overnight. The unique product
style combined with the interesting marketing method made the products sold
out quickly once introduced, and the enthusiasm of the topic continued to heat
up. The rapid growth in e-commerce channel sales was attributable to the
strong sales of these customised new products.

With the excellent technology and experience in the production of rice
crackers for more than 20 years, the rice crackers for toddlers under “Baby
Mum-Mum” brand launched by the Group had won high praise in overseas
markets for many years and received many international awards. With the
development in China’s maternity market, “Baby Mum-Mum” brand has
quickly won consumers’ trust and gained popularity, and sales through
maternity channels was doubled. The Group will continue to develop
maternity stores, and will extend the sales of products for infants and
toddlers to all channel sales to effectively expand the products offerings of
rice crackers and customer base. In addition, the Group’s rice crackers were
in great demand in Southeast Asia and North America markets, which had
driven the sales of rice crackers from overseas markets to archive a double-
digit growth rate year-on-year, and had also become an important revenue
growth driver for rice crackers.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Rice crackers (Continued)

In the future, we will introduce several new products that cater for the
consumers’ dual demands for both healthy food and good taste. For example,
the “non-fried rice potato chips”, is produced with advanced technology
to effectively reduce the fat content while maintaining the crispy taste
and flavour that is of great appeal to consumers. Meanwhile, the Group
will actively expedite the evaluation process in relation to the viability of
establishing overseas factories to explore and grasp the overseas sales
opportunities for our rice crackers and other products.

During the 2017 15-month Period, the rice crackers achieved a revenue of
RMB6,717.8 million. After the change of our financial year end date, the year-
on-year comparisons of rice crackers revenue will better reflect the actual
underlying performance of the rice crackers segment.

Dairy products and beverages

For the New 2017FY, the revenue from dairy and beverages increased by
7.1% year-on-year to RMB9,614.6 million. During the period, the revenue
of “Hot-Kid milk”, which accounted for over 90% of the segment’s revenue,
increased by 10.0% year-on-year. Apart from the positive growth of sales
through traditional channels, sales through e-commerce channel were more
than double of that of the same period in the previous year and became a
key revenue growth driver for the dairy products and beverages segment. In
addition, the sales through modern channels achieved a high-teen growth
rate and effectively boosted the market penetration of “Hot-Kid milk” and its
availability on shelves, demonstrating the long-standing leadership position of
this classic product among consumers.

Although the recovery of the economy had driven the growth of overall
consumption demand, the shift and differentiation of consumption demand
became increasingly evident, which posed challenges for the development of
children’s flavoured milk segment. In this context, the Group strengthened its
market presence through differentiated channel management and conducting
vivid and diversified marketing campaigns to promote the brand image of
“Hot-Kid milk”, enhance user loyalty and expand its customer base. The
above strategies had enabled “Hot-Kid milk” to overcome adversity and
achieve a double-digit revenue growth rate. This growth trend had been
maintained in both the first half and the second half of the New 2017FY,
demonstrating the continued effectiveness of the strategies.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Dairy products and beverages (Continued)

The digital marketing and e-commerce channel played an important role
in the recovery growth of “Hot-Kid milk”. The channel focuses on satisfying
the novel and personalised preferences of young groups in product
design with interesting topic marketing. For example, in 2017, the Group
launched an advertisement titled by “Li Ziming grew up” in the online media,
which refreshed the memory of consumers for the classic “Hot-Kid milk”
advertisement 10 years ago and produced new resonance. Meanwhile,
it actively explored new online and offline retail models to reinforce the
coverage of terminal points. Sales through modern channel has started to
achieve a double-digit growth rate since the second half of 2016, which
was due mainly to new packing specification and packaging design of our
products that are more appropriate to our customers’ purchasing habits
and the improved operating efficiency of a store resulted from enhancing
communication between our in-store promoters and consumers. The Group
believes that there is still significant room for the development of modern
channel, which will also become one of the future growth drivers of “Hot-
Kid milk”. During the New 2017FY, the Group increased the investment in
market resources to improve the maintenance and service at points of sales
and improved the operation efficiency through the optimisation of the sales
organisation, enabling the traditional channels to gradually return to positive
growth.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Dairy products and beverages (Continued)

In the future, the Group will continue to focus on multi-channel development
and expansion of channels to enhance the effective coverage of products.
At the same time, we will further expand the product offerings of dairy and
beverage products, keep up with the market trends to seize consumers’
needs and adopt a targeted approach to launch a few selective and totally
new or relatively new dairy and beverage products. To address the current
health and consumption upgrade needs, the Group launched a new product
with a milk protein content of 3.6%, “premium high protein Hot-Kid milk”. It
is designed in white Tetra Pak package, which has effectively differentiated
it from the classic “Hot-Kid milk” and extended the product offerings of the
existing dairy products. When the product was first launched, it became hot
search words on the internet, and recorded a revenue of more than RMB100
million for sales in some regions just within a few months. In 2018, the Group
will sell this product to all other places in the PRC to meet the consumption
needs of more customers. In the meantime, there will be a few unique
distinctive new products, such as Sawow cocktail, moisten-throat tea, lactic
acid water, Mr. Bond Coffee, etc., which will be marketed and sold to specific
consumer groups. The Group will not hesitate to invest in product promotion
in order to attract more consumer groups with more diversified, lively and
targeted marketing methods. Furthermore, it will focus on the maintenance
and reinforcement of points of sales to maintain a sustainable and healthy
development of dairy products and beverages.

With the implementation of the above strategies, sales of dairy products and
beverages for the 2017 15-month Period achieved a revenue of RMB11,833.9
million.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Snack foods

During the New 2017FY, the revenue of snack foods reached RMB4,961.7
million, representing an increase of 4.0% as compared with that of the same
period in the previous year. Revenue of popsicles, which are sold mainly
in the summertime, increased by 11.2% year-on-year. Revenue of Hot-kid
ball cakes also achieved nearly double-digit growth. Candies, despite being
affected by the weakness of the entire industry, began to resume positive
growth in the second half of the New 2017FY due to our effective marketing
strategies.

Want Want's popsicles, benefiting from its unique product design, are able
to solve the requirement for refrigeration and avoid the problem of damages
and losses during transportation faced by conventional ice products while
maintaining its delicious taste. The double-digit compound annual revenue
growth rate of popsicles sales over the past 20 years demonstrates the
strong brand value and product appeal of Want Want’s popsicles. In 2018,
the Group will launch a new product with Tetra Pak package “Dongchi”
(room temperature ice-cream), which will extend our popsicles product
range to include ice-cream products. The product was quickly booked-out
by distributors when we first introduced this product to our distributors at
the 2017 Ningbo New Product Launch Conference, signalling an exciting
potential in the sales of Want Want’s popsicles in 2018.

The Hot-Kid ball cakes have always been a high profit margin product and
are well received by customers. In recent years, the Group has spared no
effort in cooperating with relevant authorities to crack down on counterfeit
products and restore confidence of distributors, and has begun to optimise
and upgrade products and actively promoted cross-industry cooperation to
promote interactions with consumers. During the release of “Monster Hunt
II”, a popular movie among children, the Group conducted joint design of
product packages with the owner of the IP, and launched the Monster Hunt
gift packages which were only sold on e-commerce channel. It effectively
increased its appeal to consumers through online interactions with the
filmmaker’s official weibo, offline film roadshows and cinema exhibitions.
Following the above efforts, the Group witnessed the gradual growth of Hot-
Kid ball cakes, which achieved a mid-teen growth rate during the second
half of the New 2017FY. In the future, the Group will continue to optimise
and upgrade products and capture more consumers through vivid digital
marketing.

For the 2017 15-month Period, the Group’s snack foods recorded a revenue
of RMB6,244.6 million.
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COST OF SALES

The cost of sales of the Group for the New 2017FY amounted to
RMB11,539.4 million, representing an increase of 14.9% as compared with
that of the same period in the previous year. The cost of sales of the Group
included primarily cost of key raw materials (such as milk powder, sugar, rice,
palm oil and packaging materials), direct labour and manufacturing costs
such as utility expenses. The increase in the cost of sales was attributable
mainly to the substantial increase in the cost of certain key raw materials of
the Group such as packaging materials (mainly paper and tinplate), sugar and
whole milk powder over that of the same period in the previous year.

The cost of sales of the Group for the 2017 15-month Period amounted to
RMB14,064.9 million.

GROSS PROFIT

Due to the significant increase in the cost of certain key raw materials, the
Group’s gross profit margin for the New 2017FY was 43.1%, representing a
decrease of 4.1 percentage points as compared with that of the same period
in the previous year. The gross profit amounted to RMB8,735.3 million,
representing a decrease of 2.7% for the period as compared with that of the
same period in the previous year.

In the future, the Group will continue to devote itself to the automation project
for the relatively labour-intensive production lines and consolidating and
rationalising some of its production bases and production lines to optimise
the deployment of production manpower and facilitate the implementation
of multi-brand and channel customisation strategies as well as to maximise
the supply chain efficiency. In addition, by leveraging on Want Want’s
production advantages, it will continue to engaging OEM activities with other
brands, which will improve the utilisation rate and operation efficiency of the
production lines.

For the 2017 15-month Period, the Group’s gross profit amounted to
RMB10,789.6 million, and gross profit margin dropped by 4.4 percentage
points to 43.4% as compared with that of the 12-month period from 1 January
to 31 December 2016.
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GROSS PROFIT (Continued)

Rice crackers

The gross profit margin of rice crackers was 39.8% for the New 2017FY,
representing a decrease of 2.0 percentage points as compared with that
of the same period in the previous year, due mainly to the rising cost of
certain key raw materials and the cost of the gift packs resulted from adding
certain potential and new products to the Group’s festival best-selling gift
pack in order to increase the product recognition. However, benefiting from
the improved sales of rice crackers during such period which improved the
utilisation rate, and coupled with the effect of improving automation over the
years, the Group effectively alleviated the raw material cost pressure.

For the 2017 15-month Period, the gross profit margin of rice crackers
products was 39.6%, representing a decrease of 3.4 percentage points as
compared with that of the period from 1 January to 31 December 2016, mainly
due to a double-digit increase in the cost of certain key raw materials such as
carton and sugar.

Dairy products and beverages

The gross profit margin of dairy products and beverages was 45.4% for
the New 2017FY, representing a decrease of 5.2 percentage points as
compared with that of the period in the previous year. The cost of certain raw
materials such as carton and tinplate has been rising since late 2016, and
was increased by a double-digit growth rate for the period as compared with
that of the same period in the previous year. In addition, the cost of whole
milk powder for the New 2017FY also increased as compared with that of
the same period in the previous year which marked the lowest in the recent
two years. As a result, gross profit margin of dairy products and beverages
recorded a year-on-year decline.

For the 2017 15-month Period, the gross profit margin of dairy products and
beverages was 45.8%, representing a decrease of 4.9 percentage points as
compared with that of the period from 1 January to 31 December 2016.
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GROSS PROFIT (Continued)

Snack foods

The gross profit margin of snack foods was 42.8% for the New 2017FY,
representing a decrease of 4.0 percentage points as compared with that of
the same period in the previous year, due mainly to the higher proportion
of usage of sugar in this segment and the increase in the cost of sugar and
carton by over 10% for the New 2017FY as compared with that of the same
period in the previous year, which also affected the overall gross profit margin
of the segment.

Among the three key product segments, snack foods have the widest range
of products, including many distinctive products with a high market share,
such as popsicles, ball cakes and QQ gummy. The Group has continuously
upgraded products, customised products for different distribution channels,
and timely introduced new products to extend existing price ranges, which
enabled us to maintain a relatively stable profitability for the segment.

For the 2017 15-month Period, the gross profit margin of snack foods was
43.1%, representing a decrease of 4.9 percentage points as compared with
that of the year from 1 January to 31 December 2016.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The distribution costs for the New 2017FY amounted to RMB3,003.8 million,
representing an increase of RMB334.6 million as compared with that of
the same period in the previous year. Distribution costs as a percentage of
revenue increased by 0.8 percentage point to 14.8% as compared with that
of the same period in the previous year. It was due mainly to an increase
of advertising and promotion expenses as a percentage of revenue by 0.6
percentage point to 3.7%, as compared with 3.1% in the same period in
the previous year, as a result of the Group’s increased investment in the
resources of emerging distribution channels and modern channels in 2017.
In the future, the Group will continue to invest in branding and marketing and
promotion resources for distribution channels, and to increase investment
of resources in new product free tasting, marketing and advertising while
implementing appropriate cost control measures to improve operating
efficiency.
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS (Continued)

Despite the rising transportation prices, the transportation expenses as
a percentage of revenue decreased by 0.3 percentage point to 4.0%, as
compared with 4.3% in the same period of the previous year, mainly as a
result of the Group’s continuous improvement in supply chain efficiency
through rational planning of transportation routes and promoting direct
delivery. Other distribution costs (mainly including labour cost) as a
percentage of revenue was 7.1%, representing an increase of 0.5 percentage
point as compared with that of the same period in the previous year, due
mainly to the increase in the number of sales representatives and in-store
promoters stationed at modern channel outlets to strengthen the services
and display quality at the points of sales and to proactively expand the
customer base in the fourth-tier and fifth-tier cities for further expansion of our
distribution channels and market penetration.

The distribution costs for the 2017 15-month Period amounted to RMB3,692.2
million. Distribution costs as a percentage of revenue increased by 1.0
percentage point to 14.9% as compared with that of the period from 1 January
to 31 December 2016. Advertising and promotion expenses as a percentage
of revenue increased by 0.3 percentage point to 3.7%, as compared with that
of the period from 1 January to 31 December 2016, due mainly to the fact that
the Group increased investment of resources in certain distribution channels.
The transportation expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased by 0.1
percentage point to 4.0% as compared with that of the period from 1 January
to 31 December 2016. Other distribution costs as a percentage of revenue
increased by 0.8 percentage point to 7.2% as compared with that of the period
from 1 January to 31 December 2016, due mainly to an increase of labour
costs as a result of the increase in the number of sales representatives and
in-store promoters.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group remained committed to the effective management with control
of resources and efficiency. Administrative expenses of the Group for the
New 2017FY decreased by 4.5% from RMB2,346.5 million for the same
period in the previous year to RMB2,241.1 million. Administrative expenses
as a percentage of revenue was 11.1%, representing a decrease of 1.2
percentage points from that of the same period in the previous year, due
mainly to the improvement in utilisation efficiency of administrative resources.

Administrative expenses of the Group amounted to RMB2,783.9 million for
the 2017 15-month Period. Administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenue was 11.2%, representing a decrease of 0.9 percentage point from
that of the period from 1 January to 31 December 2016.

OPERATING PROFIT

Due to the decrease in gross profit margin, the Group’s operating profit for
the New 2017FY decreased by RMB334.2 million to RMB4,192.1 million as
compared with that of the period in the previous year, with an operating profit
margin of 20.7%.

The Group’s operating profit for the 2017 15-month Period amounted to
RMB5,192.8 million, with an operating profit margin of 20.9%.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s income tax expense for the New 2017FY was RMB1,183.0
million, and the income tax rate was 27.6%, similar to that of the same period
in the previous year.

The Group’s income tax expense for the 2017 15-month Period was
RMB1,468.4 million, and the income tax rate was 27.6%, representing a
decrease of 0.6 percentage point as compared with that of the period from 1
January to 31 December 2016.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the New 2017FY
amounted to RMB3,115.8 million. The margin of profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was 15.4%.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the 2017 15-month
Period amounted to RMB3,862.6 million. The margin of profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company was 15.5%.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and borrowings

We finance our operations and capital expenditure primarily by internally
generated cash flows as well as banking facilities provided by our principal
bankers. As at 31 March 2018, our bank balances and deposits amounted
to RMB12,499.7 million (31 December 2016: RMB11,557.4 million),
representing an increase of RMB942.3 million as compared with that as at 31
December 2016.

As at 31 March 2018, our total borrowings amounted to RMB6,904.1 million
(31 December 2016: RMB9,903.5 million), representing a decrease of
RMB2,999.4 million as compared with that as at 31 December 2016, mainly
due to the repayment of part of our borrowings during the current period. The
long-term borrowings, including the guaranteed bonds issued, amounted to
RMB3,101.3 million (31 December 2016: RMB5,890.5 million), representing
a decrease of RMB2,789.2 million as compared with that as at 31 December
2016. The short-term borrowings amounted to RMB3,802.9 million (31
December 2016: RMB4,013.1 million), representing a decrease of RMB210.2
million as compared with that as at 31 December 2016.

In May 2013, the Group issued US$600.0 million 5-year term guaranteed
unsecured senior notes, bearing an interest at a fixed rate of 1.875%. As at
31 March 2018, the balance of notes payable amounted to US$599.9 million
(31 December 2016: US$599.1 million). These notes were subsequently
redeemed in full at maturity in May 2018.

In April 2017, the Group issued US$500.0 million 5-year term guaranteed
bonds (the “Bonds”), bearing an interest at a fixed rate of 2.875%. As at 31
March 2018, the balance of Bonds payable amounted to US$493.2 million.

The Group’s net gearing ratio (total borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents as a percentage of total equity (excluding non-controlling
interests)) as at 31 March 2018 was -0.39 time (31 December 2016: -0.13
time). At present, we maintain sufficient cash and available banking facilities
for our working capital requirements and for capitalizing on any potential
investment opportunities in the future. The management will from time to time
make prudent financial arrangements and decisions to address changes in
the domestic and international financial environment.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Cash flow

For the 2017 15-month Period, our cash and cash equivalents increased
by RMB942.3 million. Among which, RMB5,316.9 million of net cash inflow
was generated from our operating activities. Net cash outflow for financing
activities was RMB4,419.2 million, which was used mainly for paying
dividends of RMB1,803.8 million, and repaying part of the borrowings
resulting in the net borrowing outflow of RMB2,390.2 million. The net cash
inflow for investment activities was RMB172.3 million.

Capital expenditure

For the New 2017FY, our capital expenditure was approximately RMB323.0
million, which was used mainly for completing the outstanding construction
work of the factory buildings, purchasing machinery and equipment,
improving facilities for information technology, and increasing the investment
in automated warehouse and storage equipment.

For the 2017 15-month Period, our total capital expenditure amounted to
RMB419.9 million (1 January to 31 December 2016: RMB447.5 million).
We spent approximately RMB55.7 million, RMB205.0 million and RMB88.1
million for expansion of factory buildings and facilities including plant and
equipment and upgrade of some of the old plant and production facilities for
rice crackers, dairy products and beverages and snack foods, respectively,
so as to prepare for the further growth of our Group. The remaining capital
expenditure was made mainly for the purpose of adding facilities for
information technology, packaging, etc.

The above capital expenditure was financed mainly by our internally
generated cash flows and banking facilities.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)
Inventory analysis

Our inventory consists primarily of finished goods, goods in transit and work
in progress for rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack foods and
other products, as well as raw materials and packaging materials.

The following table sets forth the number of our inventory turnover days for
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 and for the year ended 31 December
2016:

Fifteen months ended

BZE2018563A31H

RENEREEMN (F)

FED

FEXREERRE AmREBE K
FREGERECENERG BEXTEY
FMERR » UREMBFBEME -

TRIRTAEBEZ2018F3 8311k
+HEBEEZE20165FE12 31 BLEEE
HNEFEERAEXE :

Year ended
31 December 2016
BZE2016F12H31H

31 March 2018

IE+HEA LFE
Inventory turnover days FERABXHY 81 94
Trade receivables ER) TVEN
Our trade receivables represent the receivables from our customers. The REBNE SRR  ENERERHE

terms of credit granted to our customers are usually 60 to 90 days. Our sales
to most of the customers in the PRC are conducted on a cash-on-delivery
basis. We only grant credit to customers in our modern distribution channels
and certain emerging channels, which then on-sell our products to end-
consumers.

The following table sets forth the number of our trade receivables turnover
days for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 and for the year ended 31
December 2016:

Fifteen months ended

BZE201853A31H
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Year ended

31 December 2016
BZE20165F12A31H
LEFE

31 March 2018

LE+HEA

Trade receivables turnover days Y AENELEDN:

22 20
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Trade payables

Our trade payables mainly relate to the purchase of raw materials from our
suppliers with credit terms generally between 30 days and 60 days after
receipt of goods and invoices.

The following table sets forth the number of our trade payables turnover
days for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 and for the year ended 31
December 2016:

Fifteen months ended
31 March 2018
BZ2018E3H831H
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Year ended
31 December 2016
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Trade payables turnover days

43 45

Pledge of assets
As at 31 March 2018, none of our assets was pledged.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

For the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 March 2018, our average number
of employees was approximately 47,280, representing an increase of 165
employees as compared with average number of employees in 2016. Our
total remuneration expenses for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 March
2018 amounted to RMB4,628.4 million. The remuneration package of our
employees includes fixed salary, commissions and allowances (where
applicable), and performance-based year-end bonuses having regard to the
performance of the Group and the individual.

We have always invested in significant resources in the continuing education
and training programmes of our employees. Training programmes, both
external and internal, are also provided to relevant staff as and when required
to constantly improve their professional knowledge and skills.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The presentation currency of the Group has been changed to RMB from
USD since 2016 but the Company’s functional currency is still USD. More
than 90% of our activities are conducted in the Chinese mainland, our
Chinese mainland subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB. Foreign
exchange risks arise mainly from procurement of raw materials and
equipment from overseas, dividend payments and certain recognised
assets and liabilities.

As procurement of raw materials and equipment from overseas and USD
denominated borrowings of the Group are recognised in the financial
statements of the subsidiaries of the Group which functional currency is USD,
the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risks are minimal and
the relevant exposure after offsetting is not significant. As such, RMB does
not have a significant impact on exchange gains and losses presented on the
During the 2017
15-month Period, the Group did not hedge against its foreign exchange risks.

consolidated income statement within “other gains — net”.

Dividends and repurchases

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of US0.90 cent
per share and a special dividend of US1.25 cents per share for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018, totalling US2.15 cents per share, representing
approximately US$267.7 million (equivalent to approximately RMB1,683.1
million) in total. Including the two interim dividends paid respectively in
October and December 2017, the total amount of dividends for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018 would amount to approximately US$387.7
million (equivalent to approximately RMB2,473.2 million).

To increase shareholders’ value, during the period of the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2018, the Group repurchased 74.69 million shares of the
Company in the open market for an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB371.7 million, by way of share repurchases funded by its free cash flow.
The shares repurchased were subsequently cancelled.

As a result, the Group would have returned a total of approximately
RMB2,844.9 million to our shareholders, for the period of the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2018, by payments of dividends and share repurchases,
representing a decrease of 3.4% as compared to the amount of RMB2,945.0
million for dividends and share repurchases for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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Our Company, together with its subsidiaries, are committed to maintain and
uphold high standards of corporate governance practices and procedures.
We recognize the value and importance of achieving high corporate
governance standards to promote corporate transparency and accountability
and to enhance shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

We had, throughout the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviations from the code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and E.1.2 for the reasons
explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance practices
with reference to the latest developments in corporate governance. The
key corporate governance principles and practices of our Company are
summarized below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

We have adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding directors’ securities transactions. Formal written notices,
together with a copy of the Model Code, are sent to our directors (“Directors”)
prior to the commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately preceding
the publication date of our interim results and 60 days immediately preceding
the publication date of our annual results, as a reminder that Directors must
not deal in any securities of the Company during those periods up to and
including the date of publication of the results. Having made specific enquiries
with our Directors, all of them confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of our Group
and is also collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising its affairs. Key matters and decisions which are
reserved for the Board include those relating to:

. the objectives, policies, business plans and strategic directions of our
Group;

. overseeing and evaluating the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

. the approval of our Group’s operating and capital expenditure budgets,
interim and annual financial results and the publication thereof,
material contracts and transactions, notifiable transactions, non-
exempt connected transactions/continuing connected transactions,
declarations of dividend, Directors’ appointment or re-election following
the recommendation(s) by the Nomination Committee and other
matters which need to be dealt with by the Board;

. establishing effective control measures so as to assess and manage
risks in pursuit of our Group’s objectives; and

. ensuring our Group has in place adequate accounting systems and
appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting and financial
reporting functions.

Our management team, which possesses extensive experience and industry
knowledge, is led by the executive Directors and has been delegated by the
Board with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and implementation of strategies approved by the Board in relation to the
business and operations of our Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated certain specific responsibilities to the various Board committees,
namely, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and the strategy committee (the “Strategy
Committee”). Each of the Board committee operates within its respective
terms of reference which clearly defines its respective duties and authorities.
Further details of these committees are set out on pages 58 to 65 in this
Annual Report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEE(#)
Corporate governance functions EERBEE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set

out in its terms of reference, including:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and the Directors of the
Company;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;
and

to be responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems.
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Composition of the Board EEgsAK

As at 31 March 2018, the Board consists of 14 Directors, comprising 5 A2018E3H31B EECH14BES
executive Directors, 4 non-executive Directors and 5 independent non- AR BRESBHITES - 4BEHTES
executive Directors, as below: REBEUFHITES 0T :
Executive Directors BITESE

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BTREE (EERITHBAEZ)
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer) ERREE (EREEEE)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer) BAREE (TEEHE)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer) KRB EE (HHBHEE)

Mr. Chan Yu-Feng (Chief of Staff) EBELLE (BEER)
Non-executive Directors FHITESE

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman) Y (FIEE)

Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BEREE

Mr. Maki Haruo EERTE

Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien B ELE

Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock EXRBEE

Dr. Pei Kerwei BEREEL

Mr. Chien Wen-Guey B AELEE

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou THRAKE

Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin [SECA =
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship amongst them (if
any) are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in
this Annual Report. In addition, an updated list of Directors of the Company
with their roles and functions is available on our website and that of the HK
Stock Exchange.

We have arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance for
our Directors and officers.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by shareholders at a general
meeting or by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee. In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity
before making recommendation to the Board.

The Company has entered into formal letters of appointment with all Directors
setting out their duties and major terms and conditions of their appointments.

Currently, our non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
do not have specific terms of appointment, which deviates from the code
provision A.4.1 which provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The articles of association of our Company (the “Articles of Association”)
provide that all our Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-third of our
Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election. As such, the Board considers that
sufficient measures have been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate
governance practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests
of shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors (continued)

The Articles of Association also provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the Company’s next general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Directors who shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 25 July 2018 (the “2018 AGM”) and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election are set out on page 90 in this
Annual Report.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

We have complied with Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules in
relation to the appointment of a sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possesses appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise.

We have received a written annual confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director confirming his independence in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and consideration was also given to all independent non-
executive Directors who have served on the Board for more than nine years.
We therefore consider each of them to be independent.

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock, an independent non-executive Director, will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming 2018 AGM, and being eligible, offer himself
for re-election. Mr. Toh has served on the Board for more than 9 years since
November 2007. In accordance with the code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code,
the re-election of Mr. Toh should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders at the forthcoming 2018 AGM.

The Board is satisfied that Mr. Toh has the required integrity, attributes,
profound knowledge and experience, professional accounting qualification
and professionalism to continue to fulfill the roles of an independent non-
executive director. The Board is of the view that Mr. Toh remains independent
notwithstanding the length of period of his service and believes that he will
continue to contribute his expertise, knowledge, experience and dedication to
the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified as such in
all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the names of the
Directors.

EEe @

M EERBRESE (@)

AR ERARATREEMEESSRMEN
HERNZRI U FESEHIERECE
ENEHAEERRAAEREZERHOR
ERRERAE  HEERRETRZE LEE
AT o

72018 F 7B 25 A RITHARATRE
BEXRE(2018FRREBFAE]) tinE
HEESHE  EREFEERLEREE
BETCESHNAFREOE -

BYFATESZH UM
RARCEBTFTEMRAEII0MERSE
BIAREBEERHBE 2B FHIT
B MEFRL-BBUFHPTESA
BEBEEXER  YHEASTREEY
BEENTENSE -

RRACERERBIFATESHRER
BLEMRAUEIIBHERAEZBLEELZ
BEE@BR  THETESEMBBEN
FNBEIFATESNELMFLHERE -
HARREEEIRBEIAL -

BYFHTESERBEEBRABGELT
2018 ERRBEAS LHENTES
B HEFEERTEEERET 2
FHEB2007F 11 BURRESTEERA
9F - RIBLEERTRMNTRIRIA 43
1% SREERETHBEFRRNAGE
TZ2018FREBEFAG LUBILRAER
EXEZER -

EEEEME R AR RERITEYF
HTESZRBEMT MK 5E - HE
HMBAEER  BESHMERUREERS
B EFERRILALBECBRBRERR
HDEBY T WREMSEESSTEE
BRI 2 EXRAH R AEBANIBARE -

RRABMBERBESHANEMSD - 98
WHBBYFATESSMH -

51



PANE "X NN H=
2017/2018 ANNUAL REPORT TRERHRE
F£3F PEBIERRERAA

Corporate Governance Report

52

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis with additional meetings being
convened as and when necessary.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, seven Board meetings
were held mainly to review and discuss the Group’s business updates and
strategies; to review and monitor our operating and financial performance;
to consider and approve major financial arrangements; to approve the
issuance of 5-year term US$500.0 million 2.875% guaranteed Bonds and the
application for the listing of and permission to deal in the Bonds on the HK
Stock Exchange; to consider and approve the change of financial year end
date of the Company from 31 December to 31 March, commencing from the
financial period ended on 31 March 2018; to review and approve continuing
connected transactions; to review and approve interim and annual results; to
declare the payment of interim dividend and to make recommendation of final
dividend for shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting; to review
and approve the disclosures in the interim and annual reports with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and to consider and approve
the renewal of the service contract with Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng for a term of three
years commenced on 26 August 2017.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) -t 3 XC-))

Directors’/Committee members’ attendance B ZEEREHEER
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board REZE2018F 3831 B+ HE AR
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the fifteen months BEE ZEEHELHEEETERESE

ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the following table. EEg8E URBREFAKENHESRR
BRT& e
Meetings attended/held
HERE ERETAE
Remuneration Audit Nomination Strategy General
Board Committee @ Committee®  Committee®  Committee (! Meeting @
Name of Directors EENR - yMZEE "  BERZEEM REZEEN  KKZREEO RRAE®
Executive Directors HTEZE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng® BOTHRAEC m NIA NIA NIA 22 01
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERRAE i N/A N/A N/A 22 1M
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BAREE m NIA NIA NIA 22 17
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RENRE m N/A N/A N/A 212 0
Mr. Chan Yu-Feng BRELE i N/A N/A N/A 112 1N
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEEE i N/A N/A N/A 22 1N
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung® BAGEEO m 33 NIA 22 NIA 17
Mr. Maki Haruo EEREE 1 N/A N/A N/A N/A N
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien Bysit i N/A N/A N/A N/A 1N

Independent non-executive Directors  BUHZ7TEZ

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock® SREAEY 6/7 33 5/5 22 N/A 1

Dr. Pei Kerwei® EnEELe 6/7 33 5/5 212 22 11

Mr. Chien Wen-Guey EXELE I 313 5/5 N/A N/A 1N

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou TRAKE m 313 505 212 NIA 17

Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin BhEL m 33 NIA 212 212 01

Notes: Mtz -

(1) “N/A” denotes not applicable (1) TN/AlFRRFEA

(2)  Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 12 May 2017 (2) AATR2017F5812ABITZRRE
FRE

(3) Chairman of the Board and Strategy Committee 3) E=ERFKREZESEE

(4) Chairman of the Audit and Remuneration Committees 4) BERRFTHNZEESERE

(5) Chairman of the Nomination Committee (5) REZEEER

(6)  Chairman of the Annual General Meeting (6) RERBEREERE
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’’Committee members’ attendance (continued)

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the non-executive
Directors and the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of the executive Directors in March 2017.

The Board, having considered the directorships and major commitments of
each Director and the attendance rate of each Director at Board meetings
and applicable Board committee meetings, is satisfied with the level of time
commitment given by each Director in fulfilling his responsibilities as a director
during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.

Board Proceedings

Regular Board meetings for each year are generally scheduled in advance to
give Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the meetings.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days
before the meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable notice would be
given.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to lead the Board to ensure
that the Board operates effectively and fully performs its responsibilities. All
Directors were encouraged to actively participate in the discussion at Board
meetings, and the Chairman has allowed sufficient time for discussion of
issues to ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect the consensus of the
Board.

The Chairman has ensured that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has delegated
the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the
company secretary. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
generally circulated to all Directors at least three days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and as soon as practicable for ad hoc Board
meetings). Directors are invited to include any matters which they believe to
be appropriate in the agenda of regular Board meetings and they have full and
direct access to the advice and services of the company secretary whenever
necessary. The Chairman has also ensured that all the Directors are properly
briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings, and that all the Directors
would receive adequate information, which is complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

The Chairman is also responsible for promoting a culture of openness and
debate, facilitating the effective contribution of the non-executive Directors
in particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive and
the non-executive Directors. The Chairman also has to ensure at least one
meeting is held with the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) each year without the presence of the executive
Directors.

Detailed minutes are recorded for Board meetings and Board committee
meetings. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee
meetings are sent to Directors for their comments before being tabled at the
following Board meetings or Board committee meetings for approval. Minutes
of all Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time following
reasonable notice made by any Director.

If a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be discussed in a
physical Board meeting instead of being dealt with by way of circulation of
written resolution and the interested Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolutions in which he/she or any of his/her close associates
have a material interest and that he/she will not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose close associates, have no material interests in the transaction should
be present at such Board meeting.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director, on appointment, will attend an induction
training program and receive a memorandum on the principal continuing
obligations and responsibilities to which the Company and its Directors are
subject under the Listing Rules and other laws and regulations.

Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and
reading materials on the updates on the latest developments and changes
in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time in order to enable the Directors to discharge their duties.
Directors may, where necessary, seek independent professional advice at
our Company’s expense.

Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
also invited to view the director training webcasts arranged by the HK Stock
Exchange from time to time.

In May 2017, we arranged for certain Directors to visit PwC Shanghai
Innovative Centre which was established in February 2017. During the visit,
PwC'’s representatives shared with us cases where companies can drive their
sustainable growth through science and technology, achieve transformation
through innovation and enhance their corporate value, as well as the power
of data analytics, its application and trends.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, we invited (a) our external
legal advisor to provide HK regulatory updates to our Directors; and (b) a
partner and a senior manager from the risk management and control services
team of our external auditor to an audit committee meeting and a Board
meeting to provide Directors as well as relevant personnel a briefing on the
Environmental, Social and Governance requirements effective for financial
year began on 1 January 2017 according to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) -t 3 XC-))
Training for Directors (continued) EE1EI ()
A summary of the training received by our Directors during the fifteen months EENEE2018F3A31HILETHERH
ended 31 March 2018 is as follows: BfESNEIMENT :

Types of training (Note)
Name of Directors EEng AR (Y EE)
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BOTHRESE A B
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia I REE A B
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXRINEE A B
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen REXFTE A/B,C
Mr. Chan Yu-Feng ERELE A, B
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEYIEE A B
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BEREAE A B
Mr. Maki Haruo EEREE A B
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BIRSLE A B
Independent

non-executive Directors BUHBITEE
Mr. Toh David ka Hock ERBLE A B
Dr. Pei Kerwei BREEL A B
Mr. Chien Wen-Guey XL E A, B,C
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou TRAKE A B,C
Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin SinEL A B,C
Notes: Mi=E :
A. Reading materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities and A. MEHESRSRSAHNETFREER
regulatory updates. BRI E o

B. Attending or giving talks at briefings/training sessions/seminars/ B. HEEERNEEREAENERE
conferences/forums relevant to the business or directors’ duties. KEHBE e 28 HhERNEE

SEBRENR °

C.  Taking part in PwC Shanghai Innovation Centre visit. C. SBEITHEIGELEAIEDD -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same person. Our
Company deviates from this provision because Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng performs
both the roles of chairman and chief executive. Mr. Tsai is the founder of
our Group and has over 40 years of experience in the food and beverages
industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group, the Board
believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides our Company
with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the implementation and
execution of our Group’s business strategies. We shall nevertheless review
the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Strategy Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of our
Company. These committees are established with written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee are available on our website and the website
of the HK Stock Exchange.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 February 2008. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is established
primarily for the purpose of ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate
high quality personnel who are essential to the success of our Group and
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management.

As at 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director and
was chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee shall meet
at least once a year. The Remuneration Committee met three times during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018. The attendance record of the members
at the Remuneration Committee meeting during such period is shown on
page 53 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018:

. reviewed and recommended on the remuneration of the executive
Directors and the senior management and the payment of discretionary
bonus;

. reviewed the Directors’ fees; and

. reviewed the terms of the service contract of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng upon
renewal and recommended the same to the Board for approval.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and the senior
management consists of two parts, namely a fixed component and a variable
incentive.

The fixed component mainly comprises salary, retirement benefit scheme
contributions and other allowances. Besides, an individual who serves on the
Board as an executive Director is also entitled to receive a fixed director fee.
The fixed component is determined by reference to individual’'s experience
and qualifications, remuneration benchmark in the same industry or industry
with similar market capitalization and the prevailing market conditions.

The variable incentive comprises discretionary bonus whose amount
is determined by the Board based on the Group’s and individual work
performance in the following ways:

According to the terms of the service contract entered into between Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng (our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive Director and
the chairman of our Strategy Committee) and the Company, the payment of
discretionary bonus is at the absolute discretion of the Board and depends
on a range of factors including, without limitation, the performance of the
Group, individual’'s performance, and the remuneration policy which may be
proposed by the Board from time to time. If the consolidated profits of the
Group before deductions for taxes but after deductions of the non-controlling
interests achieve a certain minimum level and if the Board exercises its
discretion to award such bonus, the Board may determine, at its discretion, an
amount which is no less than the amount which is calculated having regard to
a predetermined formula.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The discretionary bonus for other executive Directors and the senior
management depends upon the portion of the Group’s consolidated profits
after taxation for the year being allocated at a progressive rate to a bonus
pool according to the level of changes in the Group’s consolidated profits after
taxation for the year over the previous year. The distribution of the bonus pool
for each department and individual depends upon the performance of their
respective department and the individual concerned. We took a 360-degree
performance evaluation on both qualitative and quantitative key performance
indicators which mainly include financial and operational indicators as well
as indicators which measure the satisfaction level in terms of the daily
coordination and cooperation between departments which work closely with
each others.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018 is set out below:

EEZRe (@)
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Number of individuals

In the band of #A BN F AB
RMB853,300 (HK$1,000,001) AE# 853,300t (1,000,001 78 7T)
to RMB1,706,600 (HK$2,000,000) 2 AK# 1,706,600 Jt (2,000,00058 7T) 8

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 38 and note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 18 February 2008. Details of the
duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out in its terms of
reference. The Audit Committee is established primarily for the purpose of
overseeing our Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and
evaluating internal controls and auditing processes.

As at 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee comprised four independent
non-executive Directors and was chaired by an independent non-executive
Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)
According to its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall meet at least

twice a year. The Audit Committee held five meetings during the fifteen

months ended 31 March 2018 with the external auditor present at all of these

meetings. The attendance record of the members at the Audit Committee

meetings during such period is shown on page 53 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018:

reviewed the recent updates and development of accounting and
financial reporting standards and assessed their impact on our Group;

considered the major accounting and auditing matters raised by
external auditors and management’s responses;

discussed with external auditor the change of the Company’s financial
year end date from 31 December to 31 March and recommended the
same to the Board for approval;

discussed with the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit
prior to the commencement of the audit for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018;

reviewed the financial reports for the 2016 annual results, the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and the second
interim results for the nine months ended 30 September 2017 with the
management and external auditor, and recommended their adoption by
the Board;

reviewed the external auditor’s independence and approved the terms
of engagement of the external auditor;

made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor, subject to the approval by shareholders at the annual
general meeting;

reviewed quarterly internal audit reports in respect of the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems and procedures of
the Group, whistle-blowing reports and the internal audit plans for the
year 2017 and for the first quarter of 2018, prepared by our internal audit
department;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

. discussed with the external auditor on our Group’s financial reporting
functions, in particular on the adequacy of resources of our Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, qualifications and
experience of our staff and their training programs;

. conducted an annual review of the non-exempt continuing connected
transaction of our Group;

. reviewed the sensitivity analysis and financial evaluation of major
financing and investment arrangements;

. held private session with external auditor in the absence of executive
Directors and management team.

Auditor's Remuneration

The fees charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services rendered to the Group during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 amounted to RMB3,880,000.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 18 February 2008. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in
its terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is established primarily
for the purpose of regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board and making recommendations to the Board on nominations and
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

As at 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee comprised four independent
non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director and was chaired by
an independent non-executive Director.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
effective form August 2013.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board. In considering the composition of the Board, the Board is of
the view that diversity can be considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, educational and cultural background, skills, industry knowledge
and reputation, gender, ethnicity, language skills and length of service. The
above perspectives will be taken into account in determining the optimal
composition of the Board and where possible, should be balanced among
one another as appropriate. Appointments to the Board will be made based
on merits and the contributions that the individual is expected to bring to the
Board, with due regard to the benefits of diversity in the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy on an ongoing basis.

According to its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018. The attendance record of the members
at the Nomination Committee meetings during such period is shown on page
53 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendation to the Board on the Directors who should retire
and make themselves available for re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 12 May 2017, pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association;

. assessed the independence of all independent non-executive Directors,
consideration was given to Directors who have served on the Board for
more than nine years; and

. reviewed non-executive Directors’ time commitment in performing their
duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was established on 30 June 2010. Details of the
duties and responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are set out in its terms
of reference.

The Strategy Committee is established primarily for the purpose of working
closely with the Board in formulating the medium and long-term strategic
plans of our Group for the continuous growth and sustainable competitive
advantages of our Group. It also proactively addresses issues relating to
management succession planning and overall human resources planning and
makes recommendations to improve operational efficiencies and enhance
competitiveness in order to capture market potential and tackle future
challenges. It will also make recommendations to the Board on material
investment and financial decisions as well as the establishment, development
and expansion of the Group’s business in all aspects.

As at 31 March 2018, the Strategy Committee comprised six executive
Directors and two independent non-executive Directors and was chaired by
our Chairman.

According to its terms of reference, the Strategy Committee shall meet
at least once a year. During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018,
the Strategy Committee held two meetings. The attendance record of the
members at the Strategy Committee meetings during such period is shown
on page 53 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Strategy Committee
during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018:

. discussed with the management the restructuring of the sales
organization in the second quarter of 2017, the key rationales
for the changes and the objectives to be achieved, the roles and
responsibilities of key personnel under the new sales organization and
corresponding adjustment to the performance assessment and reward
system of the sales organization;

. reviewed the effectiveness of the organizational restructuring, results
achieved as well as challenges and difficulties encountered and
corresponding countermeasures;

. reviewed the Group’s digital marketing strategies and future plan;
. reviewed the strategies and directions of brand protection and

combating counterfeiting and infringement in 2018 to mitigate the risk at
sources and to safeguard our competitiveness in the market;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Strategy Committee (continued)

. considered exploring business opportunities in overseas markets, in
particular countries in the South East Asia regions and expanding the
Group’s business; and

. reviewed our warehousing and logistic distribution network and
planning for 2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems of the Group:

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
for ensuring their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control structure comprises the
Board, the Audit Committee, the internal audit team and the management.
To ensure the integrity and effectiveness of risk management and internal
controls on an ongoing basis, such systems closely align with the COSO
framework with constant optimization and enhancement. Such systems are
designed to achieve the following objectives:

i providing reasonable assurance of the compliance with relevant rules
and regulations of our business operations, and safeguard of assets;

ii ensuring key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance are
appropriately defined and managed; and

iii ensuring reliable financial accounting records are maintained in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements.

Risk Management System and its Main Features:

The Group recognizes that risk management is the prime responsibility of the
management that it has to identify, assess and monitor the risks relevant to
their business operations and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations. Our internal audit team reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, and regularly
reports to the management and the Audit Committee on significant risks, results
of risk analysis and status of risk mitigation plans. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in monitoring the effectiveness of risk management.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
Risk Management System and its Main Features: (continued)

Our management team is equipped with internal control expertise to carry out
self-evaluation and assessment on the significant key risks so that necessary
measures would be taken to deal with the weak areas where risks exist.

Our internal audit team reviews the Group’s risk management framework,
coordinates the risk identification and assessment procedures, strengthens
the communication with the management on the identified risks and impacts
to facilitate the implementation of risk mitigation measures, follows up the
progress of such measures, as well as summarises significant risks, other
risks and concerns in its quarterly report to the management and the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee discusses and reviews the risk management and
internal control systems with the internal audit team and the management,
and ensures that the Group has an effective system in place to monitor and
control the effectiveness of risk management.

The Company from time to time engages external auditor to provide risk
management consulting services. External auditor had previously assisted
the Company to assess and identify the high risk areas in relation to the
management of marketing and promotion, and supply chain management.

Internal Control System and its Main Features:

The Group’s internal control activities are embedded in the operational
processes. The Group has clear written policies and operational procedures,
as well as the internal control system. All policies of the Group are conveyed
to the staff in a timely manner. A dedicated network platform is established for
the staff to access the Group’s policies. Regular training programs are also
provided to ensure compliance of the code of conduct by all our staff.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
Internal Control System and its Main Features: (continued)

The Group has set up the whistle-blowing mechanism, such as the reporting
hotline, mailbox, etc. for internal staff and interested third parties to report
any actual or suspected occurrence of improper conduct. The internal audit
team independently and objectively performs specific investigation on such
reported matters, formulates an appropriate confidentiality system to avoid
any form of harassment suffered by staff or interested third parties who
reported or cooperated with the investigation and sets graded rewards based
on the investigation results.

The Group’s internal audit team participates in the formulation of major
operational policies and procedures, performs audit on the implementation of
policies and assists the management in formulating countermeasures.

The Group’s internal audit team establishes standardized audit procedures and
develops the annual audit plan. Such procedures and plan are submitted to the
Audit Committee for approval. Internal audit team puts the plan into execution as
approved. The management performs the self-assessment of internal control on
the processes and procedures of each operational cycles to obtain reasonable
assurance that the internal control is effective and to take measures to address
the internal control weaknesses identified. The internal audit team also audits the
self-assessment results of the management.

Our internal audit team communicates with the management the risks and
control weaknesses identified during the course of audit and recommends
for improvement measures. The management is responsible for ensuring
the improvement measures are being implemented within a reasonable
timeframe whereas the internal audit team will conduct a follow-up
review to ensure the improvement measures and solutions are effectively
implemented.

The Audit Committee receives quarterly reports from internal audit department
which cover the internal audit plan, material findings during the relevant
period and the progress of implementation of improvement measures by
the management in response to the audit findings. The quarterly reports
also address matters concerned by the Audit Committee members and the
management, the findings of special audit on specific key risk areas and
recommendations for improvement.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
The Board reviews the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in place during that full financial year on a quarterly basis. For the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, the Board assessed the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the Company and its
subsidiaries by considering reviews performed by the Audit Committee
with the assistance of the management team, internal audit department
and external auditors. The annual review also considered the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions. Based on the
assessment made by the Audit Committee, management team and the
internal audit team, the Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process
in place for identifying, assessing and managing the significant risks and
material internal controls (including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions) faced by our Group and the Board
considers the risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
effective and adequate.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information:

i The Company is aware of the requirement of timely disclosure of
inside information under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules. Inside information shall be announced by designated
persons authorised to act as spokespersons in strict accordance with
the applicable laws and enactments prevailing in Hong Kong, and with
reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission; and

ii The Company has incorporated in its code of conduct strict prohibition
on unauthorized disclosure or use of confidential and inside information.
Furthermore, employees at certain levels and posts are also required to
sign the Agreement on Code of Ethics, Confidentiality Obligations and
Resolving Conflict of Interests.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 and of the financial
performance and cash flows for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018,
and for ensuring that such statements are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and the applicable accounting standards.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Details of the reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of our Group for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2018 are set out on pages 105 to 111 of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company only has one class of shares. All shares are entitled to the
same voting rights and to dividends declared on a pari passu basis.

Method for convening an extraordinary general meeting

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company may, in accordance with the requirements
and procedures set out in the Articles of Association of the Company, make
a requisition to the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company and put forward proposals at the meeting. The objects of the
meeting must be stated in the written requisition which must be signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong at Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A, 132 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new resolutions
at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out above.

Method for nominating directors

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person, other than a retiring director,
for election as a director of the Company at any general meeting (including
an annual general meeting), the shareholder shall lodge a written notice of
his/her intention to propose such person for election as a director with the
company secretary of the Company at Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong during a period of at
least seven days commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the meeting convened for such election and ending no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting. Such written notice must be
accompanied by a notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of
his/her willingness to be elected.
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PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Participation in general meetings

Each shareholder is entitled to receive notice of (in writing or by electronic
means) and attend every general meeting of the Company.

At any general meeting on a show of hands every shareholder who is
present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder being a corporation by
its duly authorised representative) shall have one vote, and on a poll every
shareholder who is present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder being a
corporation by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy shall have one
vote for each share registered in his name in the register of members of the
Company. On a poll a shareholder entitled to more than one vote is under no
obligation to cast all his votes in the same way.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy with the
objectives of keeping shareholders and the investor community informed as
soon as reasonably practicable of the information on the Group and keeping
them abreast of the Company’s developments and ensuring they are provided
with relevant, balanced and clear information in a timely manner.

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing communications with
our shareholders and investors and maintains ongoing dialogues with them
through various channels, including the Company’s annual general meetings
(“AGM”), analyst presentations following the release of the interim and annual
results as well as participation in investor conferences.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

The Company’s AGM is an important platform for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders. The Chairman of the Board,
chairmen of all the Board committees and other Board members endeavor
to attend the AGM of the Company and answer queries from shareholders.
Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders and
code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting. The 2017 AGM was held in Hong Kong on 12
May 2017. Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board and Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin, an independent non-executive Director,
were unable to attend the 2017 AGM due to other important engagement
at that time. The rest of the Board members, including the chairmen of all
the Board committees (or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees) and the external auditor were available at the 2017 AGM to
answer shareholders’ questions. The 2017 AGM circular containing the notice
of the AGM and other relevant information of the proposed resolutions were
sent to shareholders at least 20 business days before the 2017 AGM.

Attendance record of each individual Director at the 2017 AGM is shown on
page 53 of this Annual Report.

We maintain a website (www.want-want.com) to keep our shareholders and
the general public informed of our latest corporate news, interim and annual
results announcements, financial reports and other public announcements.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

We always welcome shareholders’ and investors’ views and input.
Shareholders may send their enquires in writing to the Board by addressing
them to our company secretary. The contact details of our company secretary
are as follows:

Address: The Company Secretary

Want Want China Holdings Limited
Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780

Fax: (852) 27307781

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings
of the Company. In addition, shareholders may contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong share registrar of
the Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts, please
contact our investor relations office at:

Address: The Investor Relations Office
Want Want China Holdings Limited
Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780

Fax: (852) 27307781

Email: investor@want-want.com

COMPANY SECRETARY

Our company secretary, Ms. Lai Hong Yee, is a full-time employee of the
Company. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, Ms. Lai confirmed
that she complied with the relevant professional training requirements under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

TSAI Eng-Meng, aged 61, is our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
executive Director and also the chairman of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai
is also a director of a number of the Group’s subsidiaries. He succeeded his
father to become the Group’s Chairman in April 1987. Mr. Tsai joined our
Group and began his career in the food and beverages industry in 1976 and
has over 40 years of experience in the industry. He was a council member of
the Standing Committee of Taiwan Confectionery, Biscuit and Floury Food
Industry Association, and the Food Development Association of Taiwan. In
June 2013, Mr. Tsai was awarded an honorary doctorate degree in business
studies from the Chinese Culture University in Taiwan in recognition of his
outstanding achievements in business operations and active contributions
to social welfare. Mr. Tsai is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and
Norwares Overseas Inc. which have discloseable interests in shares of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai is the father of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung
and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia and the uncle of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.

TSAI Wang-Chia, aged 33, is our Chief Operating Officer, executive
Director and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai Wang-
Chia is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of our Group. Mr.
Tsai Wang-Chia graduated from the Canadian International School in
Singapore in July 2003. He joined the Group in April 2004 and has over
10 years of experience in the food and beverage industry. He held various
management positions within our Group such as product marketing
and planning in the snack foods business unit and had also acted as a
manager in the Chairman'’s office. He was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the dairy business unit in May 2008 and was promoted to vice
president of the dairy and beverages business group in 2009. He was
appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in December 2012.
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia is the son of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the younger brother of
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and a cousin of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

CHU Chi-Wen, aged 52, is our Chief Financial Officer, executive Director and
a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Chu graduated from Michigan State
University with a master’s degree in economics in 1992. He also graduated
with a master’s degree in professional accountancy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong & Shanghai National Accounting Institute. Mr. Chu
has over 25 years of experience in financial management. Before joining our
Group in April 1997, Mr. Chu was a financial analyst for the Taiwan Provincial
Government from 1992 to 1995 and a finance supervisor at Delta Electronics,
Inc. from 1995 to 1996. He worked at Dialer & Business Co. Ltd from 1996 to
1997 as an assistant finance manager.

CHAN Yu-Feng, aged 49, is our Chief of Staff, executive Director and also a
member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Chan is also a director of a number of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Chan graduated from Soochow University with
a bachelor’s degree in business administration and he also holds a master’s
degree in business administration from National Chengchi University. Mr.
Chan has over 20 years of experience in information technology and supply
chain management. He joined our Group as a director of the information
technology department in 2005 and was responsible for the Group’s
information infrastructure. He was promoted as the Group’s Chief of Staff in
2009. He also served as the managing director of the staff division during the
period from 2009 to 2012. In December 2014, he was re-designated as the
Group’s Chief Information Officer and re-appointed as our Chief of Staff in
July 2015. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chan was an executive responsible
for information technology and supply chain of various listed electronic
companies.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

HUANG Yung-Sung, aged 65, is our Chief Marketing Officer, executive
Director and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Huang graduated
from Taiwan Mingsin Junior College of Technology with a degree in
engineering. Mr. Huang has more than 30 years of experience in sales and
marketing. He joined our Group in January 1985 and was responsible for
planning and marketing affairs. Mr. Huang was the Group’s general manager
for the East China region from 1995 to 1998, being responsible for the
Group’s operations within such region. In 1999, Mr. Huang became a director
of the Group’s international sales division, being responsible for the Group’s
international sales operation. From 2002 until his appointment as the Group’s
Chief Marketing Officer on 1 March 2015, Mr. Huang served as the marketing
director of the China region.

Non-executive Directors

LIAO Ching-Tsun, aged 66, is our Vice Chairman, non-executive Director
and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Liao graduated from
Taipei College of Maritime Technology with a degree in aquatic food
processing. Mr. Liao has more than 40 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. He joined our Group in July 1977 and held various
positions within the Group such as vice president of the snack foods business
group, head of production section, head of quality control section, deputy
factory manager and factory manager of | Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd,
a subsidiary of our Company. He is one of the pioneers in spearheading
the Group’s China operations. Mr. Liao was our executive Director from
November 2007 to December 2016 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017.

TSAIl Shao-Chung, aged 36, is our non-executive Director and also a
member of our Remuneration and Nomination Committees. Mr. Tsai Shao-
Chung is also a director of a number of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Tsai
Shao-Chung joined our Group in March 2001, following his graduation
from the Canadian International School in Singapore. He held various
management positions within our Group and had served management
roles in several areas such as logistics, human resources, information
technology, planning and operations. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is a director of
Union Insurance Company (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation) and was an independent non-executive director of Netccentric
Limited (a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange Limited).
He has been a director of Asia Television Limited since 16 April 2009 and
a director of the Straits Exchange Foundation since March 2009. Mr. Tsai
Shao-Chung is the son of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the elder brother of Mr. Tsai
Wang-Chia and a cousin of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors (continued)

MAKI Haruo, aged 67, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Maki is the
president of ICCL, a listed company in Japan and one of the leading rice
cracker producers in Japan as well as our technical cooperation partner. Mr.
Maki graduated from Toyama National University with a bachelor’s degree.
Mr. Maki joined ICCL in 1976 and has served ICCL for over 40 years, and
was promoted to become its president in 1998. Mr. Maki joined our Group in
May 2001. He is a director of Want Want Japan Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company.

CHENG Wen-Hsien, aged 55, is our non-executive Director. He graduated
from the Graduate School of Commerce of Waseda University with a master’s
degree in commerce. Mr. Cheng joined our Group in August 2004. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Cheng worked at Izumi Securities in Japan and Cathay
Trust Investment and Chinfon Bank in Taiwan, before being appointed as
the vice president of Daiwa Securities SMBC-Cathay Co., Ltd. in Taiwan for
almost 10 years. Mr. Cheng is the nephew of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng and a cousin
of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.

Independent non-executive Directors

TOH David Ka Hock, aged 66, is our independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of our Audit and Remuneration Committees and also a
member of our Nomination Committee. Mr. Toh holds a bachelor’'s degree
in commerce from the University of New South Wales, Australia and is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is an
independent commissioner of the Board of Commissions of PT. Gajah
Tunggal Tbk (a company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). During
the period from 1975 to 1990, Mr. Toh worked at various accounting firms
in Sydney and Hong Kong. Mr. Toh joined the then Coopers and Lybrand,
Singapore as a tax principal in 1990 and later served as the head of corporate
tax. After Coopers and Lybrand merged with Pricewaterhouse to form
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Mr. Toh was the leader for providing tax advice on
mergers and acquisition transactions in Asia and the head of China Desk. Mr.
Toh retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers, Singapore in July 2007 and joined
our Group in November 2007.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PEl Kerwei, aged 61, is our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of our Nomination Committee and a member of our Audit,
Remuneration and Strategy Committees. He graduated from Southern
lllinois University with a master’'s degree in accountancy and holds a
doctorate degree in accounting from the University of North Texas. Dr.
Pei is a full professor of accountancy at the School of Accountancy at the
W.P Carey School of Business at Arizona State University. He was the
Executive Dean of China Programs at W.P Carey School of Business at
Arizona State University, director of the W.P. Carey EMBA program in
Shanghai, MiM Custom Corporate Program in China and the co-director
of W.P. Carey DBA in Global Financial Management. Throughout his
30-year career at Arizona State University, Dr. Pei has held the positions
of assistant professor, associate professor and professor. Dr. Pei has
acted as a consultant for a number of multi-national companies, including
Motorola Inc., Intel Corporation, Bank of America Corporation, Dial
Corporation, Raytheon Company, Cisco Systems Inc. and Honeywell
International Inc.. Dr. Pei is an external director of Baosteel Group
Corporation, the holding company of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He served as an
independent director of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2012
and has been a director since April 2012. Dr. Pei is also an independent
non-executive director of Zhong An Real Estate Limited, Zhejiang
Expressway Co., Ltd., and MMG Limited, all being companies listed on
the main board of the HK Stock Exchange. Dr. Pei is also an external
director of China Merchants Group. Dr. Pei is a member of American
Accounting Association. He was the chairman of the Steering Committee
on Globalization of the American Accounting Association and the chairman of
the Chinese Accounting Professors’ Association of North America. Dr.
Pei joined our Group in November 2007.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

CHIEN Wen-Guey, aged 80, is our independent non-executive Director
and also a member of our Audit and Remuneration Committees. Mr. Chien
graduated from Soochow University with a bachelor's degree in economics.
Mr. Chien worked at Formosa Chemicals & Fibre Corporation of Formosa
Plastics Group for 18 years from 1965 to 1983 and had held various positions,
including associate director of the accounting department and chief of staff
in the office of the chief executive officer. Mr. Chien joined Taiwan Pulp &
Paper Corporation in 1983 and had held various positions in his 12 years
with the company, including finance manager, vice president and executive
director. Mr. Chien joined our Group in February 2008. Mr. Chien was a
director of Golden Friends Corporation (a company listed on the Taiwan Gre
Tai Securities Market).

LEE Kwang-Chou, aged 74, is our independent non-executive Director and
also a member of our Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
Mr. Lee graduated from National Chung Hsing University with a bachelor’s
degree in agricultural economy. Mr. Lee worked at the First Commercial Bank
of Taiwan for 24 years from 1968 to 1992 and held various positions, including
branch manager, head of audit department and departmental manager at the
headquarters. Mr. Lee joined the headquarters of Grand Commercial Bank
in 1992 as an executive vice president of operations division. Mr. Lee held
various positions in different divisions in his 13 years with Grand Commercial
Bank, including executive vice president of the business division, president of
the central division and the private banking division at its headquarters. Mr.
Lee retired as the vice president of Grand Commercial Bank and a consultant
of Chinatrust Commercial Bank in 2005. Mr. Lee joined our Group in January
2008. Mr. Lee is an independent director of President Securities Corporation
(a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

KAO Ruey-Bin, aged 57, is our independent non-executive Director and also
a member of our Nomination, Remuneration and Strategy Committees. Dr.
Kao graduated from Tam-Kang University in Taiwan with a bachelor’'s degree
in computer science. He also holds a master’'s degree in computer and
information science from the University of Delaware and a doctorate degree
in business administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr.
Kao is well recognized within the telecommunication industry with a proven
track record in his career with famous multinational companies. He had held
various positions in business, marketing, product management and research
and development in AT&T Bell Labs in the United States of America and
China. He worked at Motorola Inc. for over 16 years from 1993 to 2010 and
had held various positions. He was previously the chairman of Motorola Asia
Pacific Business Council and the chairman of Motorola (China) Electronics
Ltd. Dr. Kao was the managing director and vice president of the enterprise
business of China Hewlett- Packard Co., Ltd from September 2010 to April
2011. After that, Dr. Kao acted as the vice president of Applied Materials Inc.
and president of Applied Materials China. Dr. Kao was the CEO of Telstra
Greater China from 2014 to 2017. He was a director of Autohome Inc. (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange) from February 2014
to June 2016 and ceased to be an alternate director of Autohome Inc. in
February 2017. He also holds directorship in China National Travel Service
Group Corporation (formerly known as China National Travel Services (HK)
Group Corporation), one of the largest diversified comprehensive travel
groups in China. Dr. Kao joined our Group in August 2011.
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HSIEH Tien-Jen, aged 56, is our independent non-executive Director and
also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee. Mr. Hsieh graduated from
National Taipei University Department of Law with a Master's Degree. He was
a lawyer at Ding & Ding Law Offices since 1988, until he established Hsieh,
Chi & Hsieh Law Offices in 1991. Mr. Hsieh has been a partner of Hsieh, Chi
& Hsieh Law Offices since its establishment. Mr. Hsieh has rich experience
in commercial law related areas, including general contract, merger and
acquisition, dissolution, liquidation and bankruptcy. He was a Maritime Law
lecturer at Chung Yuan Christian University from 1993 to 2013. Mr. Hsieh
joined the Consumer Education Foundation of Taiwan as a volunteer in 1995
and was the foundation chairman during 2008 to 2010. Mr. Hsieh is currently
an independent director of each of Union Insurance Company and China
Television Company Limited, each of which is a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation and is an associate of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng,
the Chairman, an executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the

Company. Mr. Hsieh joined our Group in June 2018.

LEE Kwok Ming, aged 60, is our independent non-executive Director and
also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee. Mr. Lee holds a Higher
Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and a Master
of Science degree in Business Administration from the University of Bath,
United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director
of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the HK
Stock Exchange) and the chief financial officer of Stella International Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the HK Stock Exchange). Mr. Lee has more
than 30 years of financial management experience and extensive experience
in corporate finance such as mergers and acquisitions. He assumed the
position of chief financial officer in a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of

Management Accountants. Mr. Lee joined our Group in June 2018.

80

BRI 56 BMYFHITES  UR
EREES  FWEES REZEEER
FREZESREZHAE - HIEEEENE
EAREBEEREFMELI 1988 F T
RABRLIEEKMBTEMER  HE
1991 F R I i B PR AR EHAI —HIE
EEBA - HEERBELEERER 2
EERE B —MEL - BOE FE
BERBEESHARFARZEERE  BEE
B o H1993FE E 20135 » #AEENT
[RREBFREGEEBAD o HEER1995F
MABEEEENHESEERT ¥R
2008 F Z2010 FIEEZELTEESR -
HEEBANAEBRSRSAEE LT
MREREENREROERARARFTEE
REEROERAFEEBLESE - I
REENDREBRHOBRABDRTFEHASHE
E¥RHDERATDIIARAERE  HTES
RERBRRESTHEECHBA - #E4E
2018 F 6 AMARER

ZEHE > 605k BIUFHTES - URE
REES  FHEES  REZEEERX
HMEEETEZHE T4 BEERBE
TERBERNSRSTER  URKE
University of Bath f8iZ YR E3 T+ 21y >
FEIFEE AL BTHEETRH
BRAR(EEBHIALETHNAR) NS
YHBTESRAEAZERERAT(ES
BEIMEIMNAR)WBBE - &4
BEA=TFNUEEELR  EHBER
CERMESETEBEZER HEES
BMEBLTATEEHMEEERMN - =4
ERAEBETMASNEREERKE
BHEESTHMAEEE - 5412018
F6AMAREH -



EERGREEAER
Directors and Senior Management

B8 ERAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
FH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CAO Yong-Mei, aged 45, is the managing director of the manufacturing
and R&D group. Ms. Cao graduated from Jiangnan University (the former
Wuxi University of Light Industry) with a doctoral degree in food science.
She also holds a master’s degree in business administration from the W.P
Carey School of Business at Arizona State University. Ms. Cao joined our
Group in January 2001 and has held various positions, such as manager
of the research and development, manager of the Chairman’s office and
the managing director of the Chairman’s office. In March 2012, Ms. Cao
was promoted to the managing director of the manufacturing department.
In November 2017, Ms Cao was promoted to become the managing
director of the manufacturing and R&D group, responsible for facilitating
sustainable development and talent pool of the Group’s manufacturing,
quality assurances equipment and R&D teams. Ms. Cao is the director of
our technology center, which is certified as Shanghai Municipal Enterprise
Technology Center, executive director of the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology (“CIFST”) and vice president of Snack Foods
Processing Technology Society of CIFST, director of the Shanghai Society of
Food Science, and a member of China Food Industry Brand Strategy Working
Committee.

LEE Yu-Sheng, aged 60, is the chief investment officer of the Group. Mr. Lee
holds a bachelor of laws degree from the National Chung Hsing University.
He joined our Group in May 1986 and was a director of various divisions,
including the administration division, investment division, legal division, civil
engineering division, equipment engineering division and human resources
division. Mr. Lee was appointed as a representative member of the Food
Development Association in Taiwan in 1999. He has been a member of
the Taiwan Beverage Industries Association and Taiwan Confectionery,
Biscuit and Flour Food Industry Association since 2006 and a member of the
Intellectual Property Office, Ministry of Economic Affairs, Taiwan since 2010.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

LIN Chen-Shih, aged 64, is the technology officer of the Group. Mr. Lin
graduated from National Chung Hsing University with a bachelor’'s degree
in food chemistry and engineering. Mr. Lin has more than 30 years of
experience in the food and beverages industry. Mr. Lin was appointed as
manager of the research and development in 1995. Since then, he has
held various positions, including director of the production department and
managing director of the manufacturing department. Prior to joining our Group
in August 1995, he was the head of the quality control section at Taiwan
Heysong Beverage Holdings Ltd. from 1979 to 1995. Mr. Lin was a director
of Shanghai Society of Food Science. Mr. Lin was awarded the Outstanding
Alumni Awards by the National Chung Hsing University in 2010.

MEI Philip Hong Tao, aged 62, is the managing director of the international
business division (America and Europe region). He joined our Group in
November 2001. Mr. Mei graduated from Concordia University in Canada with
a bachelor of commerce degree. Mr. Mei has 30 years of experience in the
food and beverages industry in the East Asia market and 36 years of experi-
ence in sales, marketing and management. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked at Unilever Taiwan Ltd. and Unilever China Ltd. and held various senior
positions between 1987 and 2001. Mr. Mei was the marketing manager of
wines and spirits division at Jardine, Mathesons & Co. Taiwan from 1983 to
1987. He had also previously served as an executive director of the Taiwan
Soap & Detergents Association and a director of the Department Stores Asso-
ciation of Taipei Chamber of Commerce.

CHEN Chun-Chiang, aged 49, is the managing director of R&D centre.
Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor's degree from the Department of Food
Science of National Chung Hsing University in Taiwan in 1992 and obtained
his master’s degree from Institute of Food Engineering of Da-Yeh University
in 1994. In 1996, Mr. Chen joined the research & development team of
our Group and has been committed to R&D for over twenty years. He has
organized the developments of over a hundred kinds of new products and
applied for many patents. Under his leadership, the Group’s R&D team now
has over two hundred food and design talents specialized in various fields,
including food technology research, visual design, consumer survey and
market research. Mr. Chen is the vice director of our technology center, which
is certified as Shanghai Municipal Enterprise Technology Center, the director
of Potato Food Professional Committee of China National Food Industry

Association, and member of Child Food Society of the CIFST.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

TING Hung-Hsing, aged 48, is the managing director of the information
technology centre. Mr. Ting graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and holds a master’s degree in hotel and tourism management.
He has worked in the field of information system management for many
years. Mr. Ting joined our Group in February 2006 responsible for information
system development. In 2007 and 2008, he was the deputy director of the
information technology department in charge of information network and
system development. In 2009, Mr. Ting was promoted to director of the
Chairman’s office responsible for facilitating and monitoring the Group’s
overall strategy execution. In 2012, he was promoted as the managing
director of the human resources department in charge of the human
resources function of the Group. In 2013, he served as the deputy general
manager of our Taipei office overseeing the business operations in Taiwan.
Since March 2016, Mr. Ting has served as the managing director of the
information technology centre.

CHEN Chien-Chen, aged 52, is the media and procurement managing
director of the Group. Mr. Chen has more than 28 years of experience in
trade, futures, logistics, procurement, advertising and management fields. In
1988, Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree from Taiwan National Chung
Hsing University. In 1997, he graduated from the department of business
administration of National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. In the same
year, Mr. Chen joined our Group and has held various positions over the past
21 years, including the vice head of the procurement department, head of
the procurement department, head of advertising and publicity department,
managing director of the procurement division and the managing director of
the media division. Before he joined the Group, he worked at Taiwan Great
Wall Enterprise Limited (a Taiwan listed company) as an assistant manager
of the purchasing department of commodity from 1990 to 1997.

WANG Jinping, aged 49, is the general manager of popsicles business unit.
Ms. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting. In 2002, she obtained a certificate of accounting
profession (advanced level). In 2013, she achieved a master’s degree in
business administration from the W.P Carey School of Business at Arizona
State University. Ms. Wang joined our Group in March 1997 and has held
various positions, such as financial head of Harbin subsidiary and marketing
director in charge of the sales in three provinces at North Eastern China. In
August 2002, Ms. Wang was transferred to Shanghai and responsible for
marketing activities of popsicles. In April 2011, she was promoted to the
general manager of beverage business unit, in charge of marketing activities
of popsicles and beverages. Since April 2013, Ms. Wang has served as the
general manager of popsicles business unit, in charge of marketing activities
of “Popsicles”, “Sip & Slurp” and “Dongchi” as well as coordination of new
product launch. Ms. Wang has 20 years of sales experience in the food
industry.
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Our Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.

As announced by the Company on 22 August 2017, the Company’s financial
year end date has been changed from 31 December to 31 March. The
financial statement presented for current financial reporting period covers
a period of fifteen months from 1 January 2017 to 31 March 2018 with the
comparative figures cover for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The new financial years subsequent to the change would cover the full year
from 1 April of a relevant year to 31 March of the following year. To provide
a clear picture of the Group’s operating results during the new financial
year, the Group also presents the financial information for the twelve-
month period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the “New 2017FY”), and
the comparative financial information covers the twelve-month period from
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 on a voluntary basis.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sales of food and beverages.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Group respectively for the fifteen
months and twelve months ended 31 March 2018 by business segments is
set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the business and performance of the Group, including the analysis
using financial key performance indicators, during the fifteen months ended
31 March 2018 as well as during the New 2017FY and the outlook of the
Group’s business are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 15 to 16 and pages
17 to 46 of this Annual Report respectively. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group can be found throughout the Annual
Report including the financial risks as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statement.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group focuses not only on manufacturing but also on reciprocating the
communities by making sustainable development and social responsibility
contributions as important parts of the Group’s development. The Group
endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its business, so as
to realise sustainable development and operation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

The Group encourages environmental protection, advocates energy
conservation and emission reduction within the Group by emphasizing
on the importance in protecting natural resources and environment and
promotes the environmental awareness of its employees such that fulfilling
the environmental protection responsibilities will become the common value
and direction of the management and every staff.

The Group has established the Want Want Standard Management System
(WSM) by incorporating key control contents of 1ISO14001 (Environmental
Management System) based on the requirements of 1ISO22000 (Food Safety
Management System) so as to incorporate the environmental management
requirements and continuous improvement concept into its daily operation.
A phased energy saving and environmental protection objective is set
according to the prevailing circumstances of the Group and the government
emission reduction targets in order to continuously enhance the energy
efficiency of its factories.

The Group also adheres to the principle of 3Rs — “Reduce”, “Recycle” and
“Reuse”, promotes green manufacturing, ensures disposition of hazardous
waste by lawful means in accordance with the national regulations and local
environmental requirements and addresses to the consumers’ desire for a
healthy and green lifestyle in its product research and development.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
consider further implementation of measures on environmental protection in
the Group’s operations, thereby enhancing environmental sustainability.

Please refer to the separately published Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules for detailed discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, which will be published on the
Company’s website and that of the HK Stock Exchange within three months
after the publication of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group ensures compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
of the places where the Group has business operations that have material
impact on its operations, including the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

The Group will closely monitor any changes in government policies, relevant
laws and regulations from time to time and assess the impact of such changes
and seek external advice if considered necessary.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from the
stakeholders, including but not limited to employees, customers (primarily
distributors and modern channel retailers) and end-consumers, suppliers and
shareholders, which is also key to its sustainable development. According to
the Group’s philosophy of “Destiny, Confidence and Unity”, the Group sees
great value in relationships with its key stakeholders.

Employees

The Group is committed to establishing a healthy, harmonious and caring
working relationship with employees which form the bedrock of any
successful organization. The Group provides a safe and happy workplace
as well as a grand stage where Want Want staff can exhibit fully to their
potentials, provides our staff with suitable training and development plans and
career growth opportunities and develops competitive incentive plans and
remuneration and benefits programs to motivate our employees.

Customers and end-consumers

The Group primarily sells its products to distributors who distribute the
products to end points of sales for consumers to choose. The Group also sells
its products directly to modern channel retailers who then on-sell the products
to end-consumers.

The Group realizes the importance to maintain good long-term relationship
with its customers (primarily distributors and modern retailers). The Group
continues to look for quality distributor partners who are willing to collaborate,
to review the distributor policy from time to time to ensure its competitiveness
and attractiveness, and to provide distributors and modern channel retailers
with marketing resources and support so that Want Want’s products could
be delivered and displayed on the shelves at the points of sales in a timely
manner and in attractive, eye-catching ways. Meanwhile, the Group has also
paid great attention to the inventory management of its distributors to ensure
that the aging of its products would remain highly competitive in the channels
and at the points of sales so that consumers could always enjoy the fine taste
of Want Want products.

The Group adheres to strict product quality control to safeguard product
quality and safety and has established the quality assurance system covering
the whole supply chain so as to make its products perfect in all aspects,
build great reputation of Want Want brand and reassure the consumers’
confidence.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Customers and end-consumers (continued)

Upholding “Be Caring, Be Attentive and Be Considerate” as the motto
of the Company, the Group provides consumers with various means of
communication in order to respond to consumers’ enquiries promptly and
realize its service commitment, which is “Customers First, Wholeheartedly for
You”.

In recent years, the Group has made use of different social media platforms
and channels to connect with consumers and create dialogues to enhance
communication and interaction with consumers and to gain consumer loyalty
and insights on the changing market demand so that the Group could respond
proactively. The Group also attempts to deliver more personalized content
and advertisements tailored to the interests and preferences of each target
consumer group.

Suppliers

The Group generally centralizes the procurement of a majority of its key raw
materials and packaging materials to take advantage of economies of scale
and maximize its bargaining power with suppliers. This approach enables it to
enjoy competitive prices.

The Group has established a stable long-term relationship with its major
suppliers to ensure stable and sustainable supply of raw materials and
packaging materials, their quality and timely delivery.

The Group emphasizes on the evaluation and selection of suppliers and
persists in sustainable development.

The Group has established a sound supplier selection process. The Group
also assesses and manages its suppliers from different aspects and sets
up a rating system based on the assessment result. The Group manages
its suppliers according to their rating and informs them monthly assessment
result in order to work on areas of improvement with them.

Shareholders

The Company is committed to uphold high corporate governance standards
to promote corporate transparency and accountability and to enhance
shareholders’ value.

The Company recognizes the importance of continuing communications with
its shareholders. Annual general meeting is an important platform for direct
communication between the Company and its shareholders.
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SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 are
set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2018 are set out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 114 and 115 of this Annual
Report.

DIVIDENDS AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
An interim dividend of US0.48 cent (2016: US0.58 cent) per share for
the six months ended 30 June 2017, totalling RMB395,642,000 (2016:
RMB494,314,000), and a second interim dividend of US0.48 cent (2016:
nil) per share for the three months ended 30 September 2017, totalling
RMB394,520,000 (2016: nil) were paid in October and December 2017,
respectively.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of US0.90
cent (for the year ended 31 December 2016: US1.19 cents) per share and
a special dividend of US1.25 cents (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
nil) per share in respect of the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018. Subject
to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming 2018 AGM to be held on
25 July 2018, the proposed final and special dividends will be paid on or
about 15 August 2018. Shareholders registered under the principal register
of members in the Cayman Islands will automatically receive their dividends
in United States dollars while shareholders registered under the Hong Kong
branch register of members will automatically receive their dividends in
Hong Kong dollars. The Hong Kong dollars final and special dividends will
be calculated with reference to the exchange rate of United States dollars
against Hong Kong dollars on 25 July 2018, being the date of the 2018
AGM on which such final and special dividends will be proposed to the
shareholders of the Company for approval.

In order to qualify to attend and vote at the forthcoming 2018 AGM, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on 19 July 2018, for the purpose of effecting the share
transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed from 20 July
2018 to 25 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).
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DIVIDENDS AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(continued)

In order to qualify for the entitlement to the above mentioned final and special
dividends, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on 30 July 2018, for the purpose of effecting the
share transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed from
31 July 2018 to 1 August 2018 (both dates inclusive).

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
RMB3,852,267,000 (31 December 2016: RMB5,200,427,000). Movements in
the reserves of the Company during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018
are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The five largest customers contributed in aggregate less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.

The five largest suppliers constituted in aggregate 36% of the Group’s total
purchases for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018. The largest supplier
accounted for 14% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 did the Directors
or any of their close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interests in these suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 and up to the

date of this Annual Report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Chan Yu-Feng (Chief of Staff)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
(re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung
Mr. Maki Haruo
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Chien Wen-Guey

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou

Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin

Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen (appointed with effect from 6 June 2018)
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming (appointed with effect from 6 June 2018)

At the forthcoming 2018 AGM, the Directors retiring by rotation in accordance
with Article 130 of the Articles of Association are Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, Mr. Liao
Ching-Tsun, Mr. Maki Haruo, Mr. Toh David Ka Hock and Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin.
Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin has informed the Board that he would not offer himself for
re-election and accordingly will retire as Director upon the conclusion of the
forthcoming 2018 AGM. Save for Dr. Kao, all the aforesaid retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2018 AGM.

Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen and Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, who were appointed by the
Board as independent non-executive Directors under Article 114 of the
Articles of Association, shall hold office until the forthcoming 2018 AGM and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chien Wen-Guey has tendered his resignation as an Independent non-
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming 2018
AGM, due to retirement.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2018 AGM do not
have any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ISSUANCE OF BONDS

In April 2017, Want Want China Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued US$500,000,000 guaranteed bonds (“Bonds”) due
2022, bearing an interest at a fixed rate of 2.875% per annum and listed on
the HK Stock Exchange, to fix the interest cost of the Group in the medium to
long term and enhance the working capital requirement of the Group.

DONATIONS

The charitable and other donations made by the Group during the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately RMB9,048,000 (for the year
ended 31 December 2016: RMB18,019,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2018 and the four years ended 31 December 2016 and the
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2013, 2014, 2015 and
2016 and as at 31 March 2018 are set out in the Financial Summary on pages
13 to 14 of this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers Mr. Toh David Ka Hock, Dr. Pei Kerwei,
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou, Mr. Chien Wen-Guey and Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin to be
independent.

Each of Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen and Mr. Lee Kwok Ming has confirmed to the
Company and the HK Stock Exchange upon their respective appointment as
being independent for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
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and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows: ZEERREWOT
(i) Interests in the Company (long position) (i) RAEAQTWER (FE)
Number of shares held
FERPYE
Approximate %
Interests in of the issued
Beneficial Family controlled share capital of
Name of Directors interests interests corporations Total the Company
224 BARAR BB
gEn BHEs KGR NRIER By REMBNBEILO
Tsai Eng-Meng 98,445,000 @ 6,143,843,100© 6,242,288,100 50.1417%
478
Liao Ching-Tsun 90,200 90,200 0.0007%
BEE
Tsai Wang-Chia 42,000 101,300,000 ) 101,342,000 0.8140%
B
Huang Yung-Sung 22,100 22,100 0.0002%
EK#D
Chan Yu-Feng 36,000 36,000 0.0003%
E¥%z
Chu Chi-Wen 197,200 197,200 0.0016%
REX
Tsai Shao-Chung 100,000,000 ® 100,000,000 0.8033%
el
Maki Haruo 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.0080%
EE=FS
Cheng Wen-Hsien 76,600 463,086,040 © 463,162,640 3.7204%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

EFREETRASRELFAREE
BiEEZBn  HRRMRESZ#E

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS HsRkE (&)
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)
(i) Interests in an associated corporation of the Company (long (i) RALTEBEIENER (F8)
position)
Approximate
Number % of total issued
Name of the of shares share capital of the
Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interests held associated corporation
AR ZECRT
2] HEEE B BEME FERAEA REBBHAEIL
Tsai Shao-Chung Want Want Holdings Ltd. Beneficial interests 9,665 0.0007%
Bk EEZERERAR EnfEn
Notes: MiEE:

(1) Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2018,
comprising 12,449,287,135 shares.

(2) These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s children under
the age of 18.

(3) These shares are directly held by Want Power Holdings Limited (“WPHL”)
and Norwares Overseas Inc. (“NOI”) as to 5,080,063,100 shares and
1,063,780,000 shares respectively. Both WPHL and NOI are wholly-owned
by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng.

(4) These shares are directly held by ThemePark Dome Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.

(5) These shares are directly held by Twitcher Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung.

(6) These shares are directly held by Mr Big Capital Limited and Mr Big Limited
as to 163,596,040 shares and 299,490,000 shares respectively. Mr Big
Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien. Mr. Cheng is also
the controlling shareholder of Mr Big Limited holding 60% of its shares and
his children under the age of 18 also have interests in the company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors, nor
the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 March 2018, insofar as the Directors are aware, the interests and
short positions of any person, other than any Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange, are as
follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)
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mRKE (HF)
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R AREHINNT ¢

RAEQBNER (FE)

Approximate % of the
Number issued share capital
Name of shareholders Nature of interests of shares held of the Company ("
AR BITRAH
RERHA EmME BERHEE BOADHEO
WPHL Beneficial interests 5,080,063,100@ 40.8061%
Bt
NOI Beneficial interests 1,063,780,000 @ 8.5449%
B
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Interest in the Company (long position) (continued)
Note:

(1) Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2018,
comprising 12,449,287,135 shares.

(2) The shares held by WPHL and NOI were beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng and are the same shares disclosed as Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s
interests in controlled corporations as set out under the heading “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation”
above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors and the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which requires disclosure to the Company under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements headed
“Related Party Transactions” and the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party or were parties and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 or
at any time during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement

On 28 December 2016, the Company entered into a framework property
lease agreement (the “San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement”)
with San Want, pursuant to which San Want agreed to lease to the Group
certain properties with a total gross area of approximately 31,275 square
meters for two years commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31
December 2018. Such properties are currently used and will continue to be
used as the Group’s offices in Shanghai.

Pursuant to the San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement, the annual
rent payable shall be RMB40,234,000 and RMB40,797,000 for the year
commencing on 1 January 2017 and 1 January 2018, respectively, exclusive
of property management fees and/or utility charges, and shall be payable
in four equal instalments in cash in advance on a quarterly basis and each
instalment (other than the first instalment) shall be payable five days before
the expiry of rental period of preceding instalment. A deposit representing
one month’s rental and the first instalment are payable upon signing of the
individual lease agreements.

The proposed annual caps of the aggregate rental amount payable by the
Group under the San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement for each
of the two years ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are
RMB40,234,000 and RMB40,797,000, respectively.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2016.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive Director
and controlling shareholder, is the controlling shareholder of San Want. As
such, San Want is an associate of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng and hence a connected
person of the Company. The transaction contemplated under the San Want
Framework Property Lease Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction and is subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but is exempt from independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The total rent incurred by the Group pursuant to the San Want Framework
Property Lease Agreement for the twelve months ended 31 December 2017
and for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 were RMB39,965,000 and
RMB50,047,000, respectively, which did not exceed corresponding proposed
annual cap for the same periods.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement

On 28 December 2016, the Company also entered into a framework property
lease agreement (the “CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement”) with
China Television Company Limited (“CTV”) in respect of the lease of the
premises with a total gross area of approximately 1,052 square meters
situated at 1/F and 7/F, No. 120 Chung-Yang Road, Nangang District, Taipei,
Taiwan (the “Premises”) for a term of two years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2018 (both dates inclusive). The Premises will be used as office by
the Group.

The annual rent payable under the CTV Framework Property Lease
Agreement shall be New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD”) 5,814,610 for each of the
years commencing on 1 January 2017 and 1 January 2018, exclusive of
electricity, gas and all other costs incurred by the Group in relation to the
Premises. The rental shall be payable in cash on a monthly basis on or
before 25th of each calendar month during the term of the lease. A deposit
of approximately NTD969,102, representing two months’ rental are payable
upon signing of the individual lease agreement.

The proposed annual cap of the rental amount payable by the Group under
the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement for each of the two years
ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 is NTD5,814,610.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2016.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng is the controlling shareholder of CTV, therefore, CTV
is an associate of Mr. Tsai and a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the CTV Framework Property
Lease Agreement constitute a continuing connected transaction of the
Company and is subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but is exempt from independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The total rent incurred by the Group pursuant to the CTV Framework Property
Lease Agreement for the twelve months ended 31 December 2017 and for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 was NTD3,314,000 and NTD4,641,000,
respectively, which did not exceed corresponding proposed annual cap for
the same periods.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Framework Advertising Agreement

On 28 December 2016, the Company also entered into the Framework
Advertising Agreement with CTI Television Incorporation (“CTI”), pursuant
to which CTI agreed to sell advertising airtime on its television channels to
broadcast the advertisement produced by the Group according to the pre-
agreed broadcasting schedule, and primarily in markets outside Chinese
mainland for two years commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on
31 December 2018.

The annual amount of advertising cost payable under the Framework
Advertising Agreement shall be US$6,100,000 for each of the years
commencing on 1 January 2017 and 1 January 2018, subject to adjustments
based on the total actual broadcasting airtime incurred during the year as
provided by CTI and being agreed upon by the Group not later than 25
December in each year. Pursuant to the Framework Advertising Agreement,
for each year during the term, the first instalment of US$3,050,000,
representing 50% of the annual contract amount, shall be payable not later
than 31 August in each year while the remaining balance adjusted based
on the actual broadcasting airtime incurred during the year shall be payable
within 15 days after receipt of the invoice issued by CTI and not later than 25
December (or such a later date as the parties may agree).

The proposed annual cap of the advertising cost payable by the Group under
the Framework Advertising Agreement for each of the two years ending 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 is US$6,100,000.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2016.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng is the controlling shareholder of CTI, therefore CTI is
an associate of Mr. Tsai and a connected person of the Company. The
transaction contemplated under the Framework Advertising Agreement
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company and is
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but
is exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Framework Advertising Agreement (continued)

The amount of advertising cost paid by the Group pursuant to the Framework
Advertising Agreement for the twelve months ended 31 December 2017
and for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 were US$6,000,000 and
US$7,000,000, respectively which did not exceed corresponding proposed
annual cap for the same periods.

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that each of
the transactions has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the HK Stock
Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules, except for the transactions contemplated under the
San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement, CTV Framework Property
Lease Agreement and Framework Advertising Agreement described in the
paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”, in respect of which
the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have
been complied with.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 4 February 2008 which expired on 4 February 2018. No option was
granted under the Share Option Scheme during its term. From the expiry date
onwards, no options will be further granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme.

Share Option Scheme
The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means of incentivising and retaining employees, and to encourage
employees to work towards enhancing the value and promoting the long-term
growth of the Company. This scheme will align the value of the Company
with the interests of the participants, thereby enabling the participants and the
Company to develop and promote the Company’s corporate culture together.

The Directors may, at their sole discretion, invite any directors, employees
and officers of any member of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners and service providers of
any member of the Group whom the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group to participate in the Share
Option Scheme.

100

Rif e 42

KRATNA2008F 24 HERM—EHBR
T E ([BIRERTE ) AN 2018528 4
AEim - RIBIRETE B A - HER
BERESIRGENERE - BEEWA
EARARTEBREBREFEREER
E o

BT E
BRETENKRRTES LEHHRBEITEN
&3

BRESAEELSTAQA—BEETHE
MREET UREBEIREAALT
MEEMTENESAATRERRE - It
%%%$“ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂéﬁ%
R RBERERAQTHEBELNED
NN EWm%Iﬁo

EEN RN BEREESSETRAEN
EECEERKE #&Eﬁm$ﬁlﬁﬁ
REARNENES - ETRSABER
$Elﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ\%ﬁﬁ

CREETES  RER  BORER  RE
A BFE - EBBH - GELEEBEM
kIR MHERSEBRE S o



EEEgRE
Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Initially the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all the options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes adopted by the Company (and to which the provisions
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate number of the shares in issue as at the date of the Listing which
was 1,325,272,275 shares, representing 10.65% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all the options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company (and to which the provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) must not exceed 30% of the aggregate
number of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the Company (and to
which the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The vesting periods, exercise periods and vesting conditions may be
specified by the Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall
expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

At the time of the grant of the options, the Company may specify any
performance target(s) which must be achieved before the options can be
exercised. The Share Option Scheme does not contain any performance
targets.

The amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of options is
HK$1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company being the subject of the
options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the HK Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the HK Stock Exchange for the five HK Stock
Exchange business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share on the date of grant.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Share Repurchases

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, the Company repurchased
a total of 74,688,000 shares on the HK Stock Exchange for an aggregate
amount (excluding expenses) of HK$440,428,176 and such repurchased
shares were cancelled. Particulars of the shares repurchased on the HK
Stock Exchange during the period are as follows:

MR HEXROEXLFLTES

iz 17 B 88
HZ2018F3831ALE+HM@A » &
AEEEBERIMULBE(TEEER)
440,428,176 B B B & £ 74,688,000 i
7 ZECBE2RHIECTHE - HiE
REBHIABERG 2FBOT:

Aggregate

Total number Highest Lowest amount paid

Month of of shares price paid price paid (excluding
repurchases repurchased per share per share expenses)
XHER XAAER XA

BBmE A6 M E R0 A B BaE RIEE (TEEER)
(HK$) (HKS) (HK$)

(B) (&) (&)

January 2017 2017618 8,435,000 5.00 4.89 41,860,090
February 2017 201752 A 1,416,000 5.39 5.36 7,597,971
September 2017 201799 A 3,055,000 5.23 5.16 15,872,000
October 2017 201710 A 3,300,000 5.75 5.68 18,864,120
November 2017 2017%11 8 20,650,000 6.27 5.95 126,130,695
December 2017 2017%12 8 21,479,000 6.15 5.86 129,274,320
February 2018 2018%F 2 A 3,606,000 6.18 6.08 22,187,754
March 2018 2018%F 3 A 12,747,000 6.30 6.10 78,641,226
74,688,000 440,428,176

The Directors of the Company believe that the above repurchases are
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share of the
Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES (continued)

Senior Notes

Want Want China Finance Limited, a wholly-ownded subsidiary of the
Company, has redeemed and settled at maturity on 14 May 2018 (the
“Maturity Date”) the US$600,000,000 1.875% guaranteed unsecured senior
notes due 2018 (the “Notes”) in full at their principal amount together with
interest accrued to the Maturity Date. Following the completion of the
redemption, the Notes were cancelled and ceased to be listed on the HK
Stock Exchange.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities (including the
Notes and the Bonds) of the Company during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

Details of compliance by the Group with the Model Code are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 47 to 72 of this Annual Report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
The change of Director’s information as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules is set out below.

The annual director fee of Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou, an independent non-
executive Director, was revised to US$30,000 with effect from 6 June 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (“Companies Law”),
every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all loss or liabilities
incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018 in respect of any legal actions which may be
taken against the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of their
duties or in relation thereto.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands (where the Company is
incorporated) which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders first.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the level of public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018 and has continued to maintain a public float as at 5 June 2018.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2018 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the
ensuring year will be proposed at the forthcoming 2018 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 5 June 2018
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To the shareholders of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 112 to
228, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2018;

. the consolidated income statement for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2018;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

. Income Tax Provisions
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

BREIEE

ETAURE
BRESZENNE

Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

Refer to Note 2.24 Revenue Recognition:
(a) Sales of goods in the consolidated
financial statements.

During the period from 1 January 2017
to 31 March 2018, the Group has
recognised revenue from sales of goods
of Renminbi 24,854,462,000.

Revenue is recognised when risks and
rewards of the underlying products have
been transferred to the customers.

We focused on this area due to the
huge volume of revenue transactions
generated in many different locations
and from various customers, and thus
significant time and resource were
devoted in this area.

Income Tax Provisions

Refer to Note 4 Critical accounting
estimates and judgments and Note 30
Income tax expense in the consolidated
financial statements.

During the period from 1 January 2017
to 31 March 2018, the Group has
recognised current income tax expense
of Renminbi 1,319,873,000.

The Group is mainly subject to income
tax in the People’s Republic of China.
Significant judgements are required in
determining the provision for income
taxes as tax treatments and practices
may vary across different regions.

We focused on this area due to the
inherent complexity and judgements in
estimating the amounts of tax provisions
required.

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key
controls in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from
contract approval, recording of sales based on delivery notes,
through to reconciliations with cash receipts and customers’
records. In addition, we tested the general control environment
of the Group’s information technology systems and the selected
automatic controls that were related to revenue recording to
assess the completeness and accuracy of the revenue entries
generated by the system.

Furthermore, we conducted testing of revenue recorded
covering different locations and customers, using sampling
techniques, by examining the relevant supporting documents,
including sales orders, invoices, goods delivery notes and cash
receipts. One of our focuses was on sales transactions that took
place shortly before and after the balance sheet date, including
inspection of goods delivery notes with customer’s acceptance
and credit notes issued after that date, to assess whether
revenue was recognised in the correct reporting periods.

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s revenue
recognition in relation to sales of goods was supported by the
evidence that we gathered.

We had periodic meetings with the Group’s tax team and local
management to understand and assess the Group’s processes
and controls for identifying uncertain tax positions that might
require provisions, together with the related accounting policy of
provisioning for tax exposures.

We evaluated and tested the controls over management's
estimation process. In addition, with the assistance of
our tax specialists, we recalculated the provisions and
validated that they were supported by appropriate data and
management assessments, and that the judgements applied
were supportable considering the potential exposure and
the likelihood of a payment being required. We inspected
management’s correspondences with relevant tax authorities,
examined tax payments by tracking to payment records and
tax filing forms, and compared the provisions with the final tax
assessment notes of previous periods to assess whether the
estimates were reasonable.

Based on our audit procedures, we found management’s
judgements and estimates on the income tax provisions were
supported by the available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter
The consolidated income statement, statement of comprehensive income
and related explanatory notes, for the twelve months ended 31 March 2018

and 31 March 2017 have not been audited or reviewed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Esmond S.C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 5 June 2018
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Audited Audited
BEX BB
As at As at
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
R2018 5 2016 &
3A31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARET T ARBT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERY N 6 7,800,800 8,693,113
Leasehold land and land use rights HEL R L E AR 7 1,149,627 1,205,512
Investment properties REMHE 8 39,293 41,112
Intangible assets BEE 9 15,968 7,635
Investments in associates BENTRE 10 28,859 42,867
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHERE 24 248,560 281,329
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESHEE 12 46,962 36,567
9,330,069 10,308,135
Current assets WEEE
Inventories F7E 13 2,569,489 2,452,558
Trade receivables BH RN 14 1,146,340 1,270,838
Prepayments, deposits and BARE - &e
other receivables R E M RE R 15 671,723 678,749
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBERZ
through profit or loss RN EREE 16 465,790 941,556
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 17 12,499,692 11,557,371
17,353,034 16,901,072
Total assets nEE 26,683,103 27,209,207
EQUITY Em
Equity attributable to equity AAREEREA
holders of the Company FEihEs
Share capital &N 18 1,871,067 1,880,898
Reserves ] 20 12,617,130 10,390,307
14,488,197 12,271,205
Non-controlling interests FEHI R 122,703 49,718
Total equity MR 14,610,900 12,320,923
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Audited Audited
BEZX EZ
As at As at
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
MN2018 & 2016 &£
3A31H 12A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥T T AREFTT
LIABILITIES af
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Borrowings B 23 3,101,257 5,890,452
Deferred income tax liabilities REMEHEE 24 144,200 125,101
Other non-current liabilities HtERBEE 97,794 100,734
3,343,251 6,116,287
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables BHEMNAR 21 1,286,830 1,345,427
Accruals and other payables ErrERREMENR 22 3,223,446 3,017,393
Current income tax liabilities EHfEHAas 415,820 396,083
Borrowings LN 23 3,802,856 4,013,094
8,728,952 8,771,997
Total liabilities HEE 12,072,203 14,888,284
Total equity and liabilities HMEZNEE 26,683,103 27,209,207

E120E 58228 A2 ARG BRERZ

The notes on pages 120 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements. — 5 o

F112E228HEZ R VB BRCHESS
M2018F6 A5 AHE  WRRESES

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 228 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 5 June 2018 and were signed on its behalf.

=,
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
BEREX KA
Director Director
= =
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Audited Unaudited
RER REER
Fifteen months Year ended Twelve months
ended 31 March 31 December ended 31 March*
2018 2016 2018 2017
BE2018F  BZE2016F BZ3R31H
3A31H 12A31R LE+=fEA
It+EM@A tEE 20185 20175
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARBT T AR%BTF T ARBTR
Revenue & 5 24,854,462 19,710,128 20,274,708 19,016,845
Cost of sales SHE A 27 (14,064,890)  (10,285,955)  (11,539,379)  (10,043,578)
Gross profit EA 10,789,572 9,424,173 8,735,329 8,973,267
Distribution costs DA 27 (3,692,154) (2,739,715) (3,003,774) (2,669,203)
Administrative expenses THER 27 (2,783,910) (2,388,990) (2,241,074) (2,346,488)
Other income HA 25 711,839 429,536 553,211 437,650
Other gains — net Hitis - 8 26 167,473 86,225 148,384 81,096
Operating profit EERNE 5,192,820 4,811,229 4,192,076 4,526,322
Finance income BMEBA 29 435,450 276,339 349,680 288,979
Finance costs BEMA 29 (297,598) (185,626) (240,963) (203,012)
Finance income — net BWEWN - FEE 29 137,852 90,713 108,717 85,967
Share of losses of associates LR = A FEE 10 (7,939) (6,094) (7,326) (4,615)
Profit before income tax BRFTEB AR 5,322,733 4,895,848 4,293,467 4,607,674
Income tax expense FiSRER 30 (1,468,445) (1,378,473) (1,183,019) (1,273,757)
Profit for the periodiyear B FEFE 3,854,288 3,517,375 3,110,448 3,333,917
Profit attributable to: FEAERIE -
Equity holders of the Company ~ AAREREAA 3,862,603 3,519,168 3,115,834 3,336,858
Non-controlling interests JF I (8,315) (1,793) (5,386) (2,941)
3,854,288 3,517,375 3,110,448 3,333,917
Earnings per share for profit RPRREREA
attributable to equity holders FEMEFIEM
of the Company SREA
Basic earnings per share SRELREF 31 RMB30.90 RMB27.70 RMB24.93 RMB26.39
cents cents cents cents
ARM30900 ARM27705 AR¥2493%5 AR¥26.39%
Diluted earnings per share SREERF 31 RMB30.90 RMB27.70 RMB24.93 RMB26.39
cents cents cents cents
ARM30900 ARM27700 AR¥2493% AR¥26.39%
The notes on pages 120 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated E120F8 228 2 M AAREMBHRK 2
financial statements. —&7 o
* Voluntarily presented * BREZ5
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Audited Unaudited
BEH RSE
Fifteen months Year ended Twelve months
ended 31 March 31 December ended 31 March*
2018 2016 BZE3A31A
HZ2018F  HZE2016F IE+=f@A
3A3A 12A31H 2018 2017
t+EEA fI=:3:4 2018 20175
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Profit for the period/year 5/ EENE 3,854,288 3,517,375 3,110,448 3,333,917
Other comprehensive income:  Htt2EWE :
Item that will not be reclassified ~ BHAFBEREF
to profit or loss BB
Remeasurements of
post-employment BABHNEEZER
benefit obligations iHE 20 (1,946) (2,074) (1,946) (2,074)
Items that may be reclassified RETHEESHZ
to profit or loss BB
Change in value of AHLELRER
available-for-sale financial assets ~ BEZ 12,20 11,975 (13,793) 7,031 (1,646)
Currency translation differences ~ S¥EREH 503,409 (375,986) 471,144 (363,936)
Other comprehensive income
for the period/year HE/ FEHMZERE 513,438 (391,853) 476,229 (367,656)
Total comprehensive income
for the period/year HE/ FE2EREEE 4,367,726 3,125,522 3,586,677 2,966,261
Attributable to: FEfL
— Equity holders of the Company ~ — AR AIHEREE A 4,374,552 3,126,794 3,592,118 2,967,077
— Non-controlling interests —FREIMER (6,826) (1,272) (5,441) (816)
Total comprehensive income
for the period/year HE/ FEZAREEE 4,367,726 3,125,522 3,586,677 2,966,261
The notes on pages 120 to 228 form an integral part of these consolidated F1208F228E o T BEEMEHER >
financial statement. — k7 o
* Voluntarily presented * BEEZ7%
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RLABERE AL
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  eamings Total interests equity
FiREIE

kx  ROEE AbRE REEA st ks AR
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Mz ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2016 016%1 81848 1925328 462,130 (4,904,622) 14,636,022 12,118,858 49422 12,168,280
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EEFH - - - 3519168 3,519,168 (1,793) 3,517,375
Other comprehensive income At 2EKE
Change in value of THEESREE

available-for-sale financial assets BEZE 12,20 - - (1379 - (1379 - (13,793)
Remeasurements of post-employment  RIKERIEEZ

benefit obligations BifitE 20 - - (2,074) - (2,074) - (2,074)
Currency translation differences ERELZE 20 - - (376,507) - (376,507) 51 (375,986)
Total other comprehensive income A2 EhEEE - - (392374) - (392374) 521 (391,853)
Total comprehensive income 2AKEEE - - (392,374) 3519168 3,126,794 (1,272) 3125522
Transactions with owners BERALRS
Shares repurchased BBEZRA 18 (¢4,430) - - (1392589) (1437.019) - (1437019)
Dividends paid $HRE 2 . - - (15728 (1537428 (672) (1,538.100)
Appropriation to statutory reserves BB LTRE 2 - - 284309 (284,309) - - -
Capital contribution by RIS

non-controlling intersts ERRA - - - - - 2,240 2,240
Totaltransactions with owners SREAZRSEE (¢4,430) S BA309 (3214306) (29T444T) 1568 (2972879)
Balance at 31 December 2016 201612 A B8 1,880,898 462130 (5,012,687) 14,940,864 12,271,205 49718 12,320,923

The notes on pages 120 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated 1208 FE 228 B W AE A BEREY
financial statements. — B4 o
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RLREREE AR
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
FiEHM

Bx  BRtEE HiRE RERN EH BE  fER
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ME  ARETR AR%TR ARMTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2017 017F1 18485 1,880,808 462,130 (5,012,687) 14,940,864 12,271,205 49,718 12,320,923
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the period el - - - 3,862,603 3,862,603 (8,315) 3,854,288
Other comprehensive income Efr2EkE
Change in value of IHLESRER

available-for-sale financial assets EEZ 12,20 - - 11975 = 11975 = 11,975
Remeasurements of post-employment  RIKERIEEZ

benefit obligations BifitE 20 - - (1,946) - (1,946) - (1,946)
Currency translation differences EMERER 20 - - 501,920 - 501920 1489 503,409
Total other comprehensive income Hit2EREAE - - 511,949 - 511,949 1489 513438
Total comprehensive income 2ANBEE - - 511949 3862603 4,374,552 (6,326) 4,367,726
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Shares repurchased BREZRA 18 (9,831) - - (361,882 (371,713) - (M)
Dividends paid THARE 20 - - - (1,803,847) (1,803,847 (189) (1,804,036)
Appropriation to statutory reserves BT E 2 - - 186510  (186,510) = = =
Partial disposal of subsidiary = 36 - - 18,000 - 18,000 80,000 98,000
Totaltransactions with owners EREAZRSEE (9,831) - 24510 (2352239) (257560 7981 (2077,749)
Balance at 31 March 2018 201835 31 ALE 1,871,067 462,130 (4,296,228) 16,451,228 14,488,197 122,703 14,610,900

The notes on pages 120 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated F120F8 228 M AAREMBHRKR 2
financial statements. —H o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Audited
BER
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2018 2016
HZ2018F HZE 2016 F
3HA31H 12A31H
Lt+HMEA ILFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR%T T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities EEITBHNRERE
Cash generated from operations EEEENERES 33 6,613,300 6,382,479
Interest paid BAFIE 29 (265,546) (172,826)
Interest received S URIE 371,232 276,339
Income tax paid 2R (1,402,121) (1,378,194)
Net Cash generated from operating activites &EZEELNERS 5,316,865 5,107,798
Cash flows from investing activities RETZBHNRESHKE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB A - #2 R H 1 (408,784) (444.,441)
Purchases of leasehold land and BAEE L
land use rights R & b PR AE 7 (9) -
Purchases of intangible assets BABTEE 9 (11,096) (3,094)
Purchases of financial assets at fair BARAFEEBRER
value through profit or loss RERMNEREE - (1,135,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - gk
plant and equipment RIBATBRIE 48,225 21,707
Proceeds from disposal of leasehold HEHRET R i
land and land use rights F ARERBRIE 20,264 1,019
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAEEBEBRET
assets at fair value through profit or loss RS REEMBNKE 523,662 265,050
Net Cash generated/(used) in investing REEBES (FA)
activities KBRS 172,262 (1,294,759)
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Audited
BER
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2018 2016
BZ2018F HZE2016F
3HA31H 12A31H
It+HMEA ILFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARET ARBT T
Cash flows from financing activities RETENRERE
Shares repurchased and cancelled SR RFHEZ BT 18 (322,524) (1,433,062)
Dividends paid to equity holders BN AR A
of the Company TIRE 32 (1,803,847) (1,537,428)
Dividends paid to non-controlling mFEEEHIMREERE A
interests holders TRRE (688) (883)
Capital contribution by non-controlling IR
interests BAREA - 2,240
Cash received from partial disposal &2 BB A FIURER
of subsidiary R 36 98,000 -
Proceeds from borrowings EEEEE 4,061,313 6,553,324
Repayments of borrowings BEER (6,451,473) (5,227,134)
Net Cash used in financing activities MEEBANERE (4,419,219) (1,642,943)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RE&ERREZEYIEINFE 1,069,908 2,170,096
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning HEINBEER
of the period/year HEEEY 11,557,371 9,372,597
Exchange (losses)/gains X (&E) ik (127,587) 14,678
Cash and cash equivalents B/ EENRER
at end of the period/year BEEEY 17 12,499,692 11,557,371

The notes on pages 120 to 228 form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

—#B7 e

F1202F228B 2 M BEEM KRR
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Want Want China Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
distribution of food and beverages. The Group’s activities are primarily
conducted in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”), and its
products are also sold to North America, East Asia, South-East Asia and
Europe.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 October
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company has had its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 26 March 2008.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

—iEH

R ERARAR ( [AAF] )
RERBAR (A8 TAEKE] ) £
EREFHELDHBTRMAR - &
SENEHTEEPEARLNE
(THRE] ) #ET HERIFHEIL
% REE  REEXEUM -

A A B F2007 510 A3 H 1R #% B
EFRSAEEERSESFMM L
REBRBRAA o ARQ AR
WEEMU B Maples Corporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

AABRMHE2008FE3 A26 HEH
REBEBHEXZMABARABEMR
e

BREBERN  HFEHBRFHU
ARBETARED 25 -

EERFBREE

RUAGEHMBTRERANIES
ABRENRTX - lREBERMBI
HEBRERIBNAEFENE
AR

2.1 REEE

ARENGEMBEREIRERSE
BRANTEMHEREENTESEY
BHR&EEN)DEE - GEMBTEHRE
BRELRAZLER - LA HH
EcMEELEATEEBRERER
RNEMEENEM(RR2TER
B) MIEHERT -

RUNEBEMBREENNYT
BRBEEAE TR AR -
ENRFTEEERERAASENE
ABRBREPITEAYE - P LS
EMFIE S EREEEE - %
BRHGEEMBTRREEEXRR
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) Change of financial year end date and voluntary financial
information

As different timing of the Chinese New Year in each year may give
rise to a substantial year-on-year fluctuation of the operating results
of the Group when having a financial year end date of 31 December,
the Board of Directors has resolved to change the financial year end
date of the Company from 31 December to 31 March. Accordingly, the
current financial year will cover a fifteen-month period from 1 January
2017 to 31 March 2018. These consolidated financial statements
now presented cover a fifteen-month period from 1 January 2017 to
31 March 2018, and the comparative figures in these consolidated
financial statements cover a twelve-month period from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2016. So the figures presented in these consolidated
financial statements are not comparable.

In order to improve the comparability of financial information, the
Company has voluntarily presented the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and related
explanatory notes for the twelve-month period from 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2018, and the comparative figures in the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
related explanatory notes for the twelve-month period from 1 April 2016
to 31 March 2017.

(b) Amendments of HKFRS adopted by the Group during the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018

The following amendments to existing standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017.

. Amendments to HKAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ introduced an
additional disclosure that will enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

. Amendments to HKAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ on the recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses clarify how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair
value.

2.

EESHBREER (&)

2.1 REBEEZE(E)
EHEREE

(a) BEHHFEFHAHREEY
HEH

BBREE B TR ERKE BB IK
FEE(LU12BA31BAMREEESE
A)REKRLETRBE  EFS
CRRESEVBRFEFSEHH12A
31E®XA3A31H - At » NEHE
B REB2017F1818#EZE2018
F3A3MBLETHBERAHB - RE
2R e MEHRERIRER 2017 F1
B1H#EZ2018F3A31HILTH
B AR MmAGZEMEREK 2L
BYFHREBH2016FE18188E
2016 F 12831 HiIE+={E B HAR
il REMBRRFAEZINET
At o

BRAVBERN TR M KO
TEHE2YREH2017F4818ZE
20183 A31HIE+ AR HARK
mEWER SKEEZEREREN
BAMFE LN R EH 2016 F4 A1HE
20173 A31HIE+ =188 HE 4
EhHER GEEZEWERNEE
Mzt Z LR o

(b) FEEREZ2018F3531H
LE T+ AE B R 1 & BB IR

28 A 15 ET

UTHEEANEITICHAEERR
20171 B 1 HERBEHNBTTBEEEX

« BHBETERETRUEIDIER
EREBRISIABHRKE - UE
MBH/EREAEFERETE
EENEEE -

- BHBEFERAE125(ERT)
(AR EBRAKREREX
BRIEEMSHEENEBIE
BTYUQAFEFENEBIAR
18 B AV IR FIE PR 15 B0 & 2 T &
HHRE o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Amendments of HKFRS adopted by the Group during the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interest in Other
Entities’ is part of the annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 cycle. It clarifies that the disclosure requirement of HKFRS
12 is applicable to interest in entities classified as held for sale
except for summarised financial information (para B17 of HKFRS
12). Previously, it was unclear whether all other HKFRS 12
requirements were applicable for these interests.

The adoption of the above amendments starting from 1 January
2017 did not give rise to any significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2018.

The amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure of changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, see note 33(b).

Other than the amendments above, the remaining new standard
and amendments are not relevant to the Group.

New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group

A number of new standards amendments and interpretitions to existing
standards have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2017, and have not been early adopted by
the Group in preparing these consolidated financial statements. These
new standards and amendments are set out below:

2.
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21

(b)
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H20175F1 81 HBBEMU £
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and
is expecting the following impact from the adoption of the new
standard on 1 April 2018: The Group’s equity instruments that
are currently classified as available-for-sale (AFS) will satisfy
the conditions for classification as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and hence there will be no
change to the classification for these assets.

The other financial assets held by the Group currently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), which will continue to be
measured on the same basis under HKFRS 9.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new guidance to
affect the classification and measurement of these financial
assets. However, gains or losses realised on the sale of financial
assets at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to profit or loss
on sale, but instead reclassified below the line from the FVOCI
reserve to retained earnings. During the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018, no such gains were recognised on the sale of the
available-for-sale financial assets of the Group.

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Impact (continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have
not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit losses (ECL) rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies
to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on
the assessments undertaken to date, the Group does not expect
material change to the loss allowance for trade debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EEOHBERBEHE)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEE(F)
(c) New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued (c) EFEMEMHAR2017F 181
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January H B8 89 81 B F B £ R Y FT AT
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued) ERIR & BRI E AR5
FIRFZRE  MAEEILKIEELR
A (&)
«  HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued) - EBUBRMESEREIFRIEH
THIE)
Date of adoption by the Group KEBER A HE
Must be applied for financial years commencing on or after 1 ERMBERESERNFEIRMAE
January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules retrospectively 2018 F 1B 1HR 2%
from 1 April 2018, with the practical expedients permitted under WEBEERER - AEEH
the standard. Comparatives for the fifteen months ended 31 BH2018F 481 HEEBWER
March 2018 will not be restated. FRB > WERMZER LT

A{TEE L - BE20184F3
B31BLETHEBEANLERET
BrEET -

. HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers . EBYEREEAFE 155 [ H
EE2RBNEREENIE ]

Nature of change BEZMHE

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of BRGSO BMANERE

revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers revenue arising REFETER o WK ER

from the sale of goods and the rendering of services and HKAS 11 S ERE 18 ORELEER

which covers construction contracts. BREEBREEENRE)RE
BETENFEMEOCREES
&fRE) e

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is HWHZERTRIEEE RIRE

recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a REFREETEFK SRR

customer. Wmz RAITES -

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified HWERRFEZEMEBPERMBE

retrospective approach for the adoption. BRI R o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued

but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

. HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group’s financial statements and has identified
the following areas that will be affected.

When applying HKFRS 15, revenue shall be recognized by
applying following steps:

. identify the contract(s) with customer;

. identify separate performance obligations in a contract;

. determine the transaction price;

. allocate transaction price to performance obligations;

. recognise revenue when performance obligation is
satisfied.

EEEHBERRE (&)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EEOHBERBEHE)

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEE(F)

(c) New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued (c) EFEMEMHAR2017F 181

but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) .

Impact (continued)

Management has identified the following areas that are likely to be
affected:

. payment to customer — the application of HKFRS 15 may
result in the consideration payable to a customer to be
recorded as a reduction of the arrangement’s transaction
price, thereby reducing the amount of revenue recognized,
unless the payment is for a distinct good or service received
from the customer;

. rights of return — HKFRS 15 requires separate presentation
on the balance sheet of the right to recover the goods from
the customer and the refund obligation. Due to the large size
and low value of the Group’s products, the historical goods
return rate is very low. And the financial impact of apply new
HKFRS 15 is not expected to be material.

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the cumulative impact
of the adoption will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 April
2018.

Based on the preliminary assessment result, the Group does not
expect a material impact on the adoption of new HKFRS 15.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognized on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the
new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognized. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of RMB134,583,000.
However, the Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because of
the change in the definition of the lease term and the different
treatment of variable lease payments and of extension and
termination options. It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that will have to
be recognised on adoption of the new standard and how this may
affect the Group’s profit or loss and classification of cash flows
going forward.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis

of preparation (continued)

(c) New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January

2017

and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

. HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Date

of adoption by the Group

The standard is mandatory for first interim periods within annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. At this

stage
effect

, the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its
ive date. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition

approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year
prior to first adoption.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 ‘Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment Transactions’, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 or
when the entity first applies HKFRS 9.

Amendment to HKFRS 1 ‘First time adoption of HKFRS’,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

Amendment to HKAS 28 ‘Investments in associates and
joint ventures’, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards amendments and interpretitions of HKFRS issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

. Amendments to HKAS 40 ‘Transfers of investment
property’, effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

. HK (IFRIC) 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.

. HK (IFRIC) 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

. Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 “Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture”, effective date to be determined.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

2.

EEEHBREER ()

22 MEBLT(#E)
22 156t8RE (#&)

(b) TEHK LR NELT
FrEERHEH

TEYREEGEZFEGIEER
REANRIERBRRS -NEME
BEUHERRBEESNETHX
5 ENENHELIFEERYE
HEEEHBAR FEEREEZ
ERIMEES o AFFEFEES
E2BE I EfE o

(c) HEHBLA

REBMAEEGER  RERZME
ARBESERAEZEHEEIZA
FEHEHIE FEREAEZHHE
BHEER ATERARREERZN
BEARMSEAKRE SR ER
EEMMMKRIREE LI TR
Hitz AW EHRIALEZEREHEZ
FREHEZBNAEECEERE
FHREERRBEZARNAR LA
REERENEHMOZERERAZ
SHEH O EERES -

2.2.2 B B IEERE

BB 2 B R & & AR A 1 BR OB E B
fRe AT BERENEERBRK
KeMBARANEABALTEZE
Wk e AR B ABR ©



e HRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities are
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised in the
Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive Directors that make strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is US$ and the consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence) the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the purchase of the land.
Freehold land is not subject to depreciation.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the
costs of construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing costs.
No depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned
are available for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statements during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost less impairment loss (if any), other than freehold land and
construction in progress, to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 20-60 years
- Furniture, machinery and equipment 2-15 years
- Vehicles, aircraft and transportation 5-20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised within ‘other gains
— net’ in the consolidated income statement.

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost
represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plants and buildings are situated for periods from 20 to 70 years.
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

2.8 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group, are
classified as investment properties.

Properties and the building component of leasehold investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss (if any). The land component of leasehold
investment properties is accounted for as leasehold land and classified
in leasehold land and land use rights.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost less impairment loss (if any) to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.9 |Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the consideration transferred over the Company’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have finite useful lives
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

(c) Computer softwares

Computer softwares represent purchased softwares and amortised
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, associates and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Other
non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.

2.

EESHBRER(F)

210 MEBAF BELRARIFTH
EERENRE

ERFHIEENEE (HUEHE)
BEHE EESFANREETR
Ao HikeMEE - EASHH
By BR# R IREE T EEE
Wy 1= B A E AT ORLE R RY o BB R 1R
REENREAEBELETRE £
BEWEHER TRESEUEE
MAFENREERNAREREE
MEZERSERE - N MERE
B BEERUIMBRIRSRE (R
EEHER) WREBRAES - BB
20 CERBENFEREER
BEKRSE MO RERST T UE
Bl TARES

ERIMBLARRENKRER M
REBBANBATAERESEMAH
MEZREWERE  REBILYHR
RNRERAEBBRRELDFE
EREHE)EFRAMBRRNE
HE - BAAHBEBEREETHE
A e

AEBREHREHMEEREHE
AEBRERATRBEERTAZRE
HERE - B HRERE A%H
BBMERARAz I WE S HEHRE
BEz=RFAERESHE  IRKE
RAEEBEDRARBANNEE | #E
REH -

139

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
FEBEIBTIERARDIE F



2017/2018 ANNUAL REPORT
F£3f PEBIRERRERAA

e MR RME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

140

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets are acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the report period and are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and
other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within ‘other gains — net’, in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of ‘other income’ when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement as ‘other gains — net'.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.16 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
income tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
income tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b)  Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis difference

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan
is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that
an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the
income statement in employee benefit expense, except where included
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the current year, benefit
changes, curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the income
statement.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Pension obligations (continued)

The Group participates in various defined contribution plans
administered by the relevant authorities or third parties, where
appropriate, and defined benfied plans for its employees in places
where it conducts business.

(b) Bonus plan

The Group recognises provision for bonuses where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.22 Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates one equity-settled, share-based compensation
schemes, under which the Group receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining employees of the entity over a specified time period).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)

Service and non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based on the service
and non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the risk and
reward of the goods has been transferred to the customer, which is
usually at the date when a group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the leases.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)
(d)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
income statement over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
presented by deducting the grant in calculating the carrying amount of
the asset, and recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable
asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

2.26 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s shareholders or
Directors, when appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s functional currency is US$ and majority of its
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future purchases from overseas, and certain recognised assets
or liabilities, such as the available-for-sale financial assets which
are denominated in Japanese Yen (Note 12) and the cash and cash
equivalents which are denominated in US$ and other currencies (Note
17), and net investments in foreign operations. The Group has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk because the exposure, after
netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is
not significant.

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against RMB with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax profit for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018
would have been RMB14,227,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2016: RMB14,950,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of US$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents and receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because the equity
investments held by the Group which are classified on the consolidated
balance sheets as available-for-sale financial assets. The Group has
not hedged its price risk arising from these investments (Note 12) and
will continue to monitor price risk exposure.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s equity investments that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date.

(i)  Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings at
variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The interest rates and terms of repayments of borrowings are disclosed
in Note 23.

The Group currently does not use any financial instruments to hedge
against its interest rate risk exposure. Management will continue to
monitor interest rate risk exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 10% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax would have been RMB11,191,000 (for
the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB15,242,000) lower/higher
respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on
floating rate borrowings.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, except for
short-term bank deposits, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates because the interest
rates of bank deposits are relatively low and not expected to change
significantly.

MBEREER (&)
3.1 UBERBEEE)
(a) 5 EE ()
(i) 1BrEERE

HRAEERENRAREEREE
EEERIIBIHLESHEE &
SEHERAZFERRR - AEH
I EE P2 S RENVERER (I
12) T EFHEHERRERETER -

RARELOHEBENRAREM
5 AFESZRTEHREMETE
HRAKELFAREENREARE

EASEERABUNELSE
FEMEERBESEEERERA
BRI HERRAEHBRER -

(iii) B L7 EFFE R

AEENEENRERREBZETE
FMRFEWRITER EELEH
HERERERNRER &K F
RMBFIRBRHEE23 -

AEBEHREREMESMTARY
R =R EEESSHEHT
ZREMBETEBLEZREFEKR
MERERE R EFHE

B £2018F3A31H It + & @
B iRITEROANELEH T B
10%MEBEMEHRZTIE
REFENRBEAFESE2BE
LA R 11,191,0007T (B2
201612 A31ALEE: AR
15,242,0007t) * TEHMNZEMER
FIR SR ZIE I, R PR

HRAEETEEAGFEREE K
ZHRTERN  AEEAWREM
RERSTREBEREAZHHR R
BIHNTE EEEAENTEREE
NGB FrEERRELE BA
RITERANEEHREAEF TS
RIgEE o



mE MR RMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated financial statements represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016, all bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss were deposited in the high quality financial institutions without
significant credit risk. Therefore, the Group believes they suffer no
significant credit risks or cause any significant losses as a result of
contract breach of the counterparts.

Most of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in checks by its
customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales are made only to selected
customers with good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely basis.

In relation to balances with subsidiaries, the Company assessed the
credibility of the subsidiaries by reviewing their operating results and
cash flow position periodically.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents, the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group’s objective is to
maintain adequate committed credit lines and cash balances to ensure
sufficient and flexible funding is available to the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

3. MBERER(F)

3.1 HEREREZ(E)
(c) mEEREE

EENRDESRREEGEERS
FHRNRERBESEEY BB
HEFNABFERRHBE - K
EEERESERTHNEARGEEER
B UERASEARAM
EEMHRE -

TREBEERBERAZEHNIH
ANGTHBRASESRFEEE
FENERBEREFETHARE
ToM - -RETEENEEREY
MRFREERE -

Between 3
Lessthan  months and Between 1 Between 2 Over5
3 months fyear and2years  and5years years Total
MEAMT JEAE1FR  1E2ER 2E5FR SENL a3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARWTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  AR®TR
At 31 March 2018 R21BEIANA
Borrowings (Note 23) B (HE2) 3,798,849 4,489 - 3,144,050 - 6,947,388
Interests payable EHE 34,488 75,832 101,102 215,403 - 426,825
Trade payables (Note 21) BREMF (W 21) 1,250,559 2,211 - - - 1,286,830
Accruals and other payables and s BRRAER
other non-current liabilities REtERBEE 1,344,003 1,475 5,898 17,692 85,787 1,454,855
6,436,899 109,067 107,000 3,377,145 85787 10,115,398
At 31 December 2016 R2016512531A
Borrowings (Note 23) ER(HE2) 449,733 3,563,361 5,896,450 - - 9,909,544
Interests payable EHFIS 70,580 156,231 35,580 - - 262,391
Trade payables (Note 21) BRI (M 2) 1,310,694 34733 - - - M54
Accruals and other payables and s BRRAER
other non-current liabiiies JSELE T 1,537,965 442 5,898 17,692 86918 1,652,896
3,368,972 3,758,748 5,937,928 17,692 86,918 13,170,258




mE M BRERMET
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the net gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
net of cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity excluding non-
controlling interests.

The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016 were
as follows:
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31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 F 2016 F
3A31H 128 31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBFT

Total borrowings (Note 23) AR (MiEE23) 6,904,113 9,903,546
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W RERREEEY

(Note 17) (FEE17) (12,499,692) (11,557,371)
Net debt &% (5,595,579) (1,653,825)

Total equity excluding MEER > 1S

non-controlling interests JEIEHI MR RS 14,488,197 12,271,205
Net gearing ratio FREREEE (38.6%) (13.5%)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 March 2018 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following tables present the Group’s assets that are measured at
fair value as at 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016:

MERSER (&)
3.3 AFEMHE

TRBBETGAFENEERN
REFERIMNBANEBLR 24
EBMNR2018F 12831 BRAFEA
IRWNEMIT R - BB ARBLAT
BEERBREAUT=E :

- HEREEREBEERHEHHN
RECRERE)(E1E) -

- BRITE1EMEFRENRED
ZEEFRENTHEENEM
WA REE (B MER) R
B (BRBER) (E28) °

- BEIEELFMBEAHEED
SHENBA (TR
A)(E3E) °

TRERKEEN2018F3 4318
¥ 2016512 A31 BIR A FEEN
BE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1E E2E E3IE @sr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3H31H
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBERTERN
through profit or loss (Note 16) SREE (FiiE16) - 465,790 - 465,790
Available-for-sale financial EHESHERE
assets (Note 12) (FiEE12) 46,958 - - 46,958
Total Faby 46,958 465,790 - 512,748
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12H 318
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBERTERN
through profit or loss (Note 16) SREE (FiiE16) - 941,556 - 941,556
Available-for-sale financial EHESHERE
assets (Note 12) (KFzE12) 36,562 - - 36,562
Total Faby 36,562 941,556 - 978,118
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(a)  Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, and the price represents actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

(b)  Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates, if all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments is
quoted market price.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

PRC taxes

The Group is mainly subject to different taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that are
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
Directors. The executive Directors review the Group’s internal reports in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on their reports.

The executive Directors consider the business from a product
perspective and assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment profit or loss. Management assesses
the performance of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.

The Group’s operations are mainly organized under four business
segments, including manufacturing and sale of:

- Rice crackers, including sugar coated crackers, savoury crackers

and fried crackers, gift pack;

- Dairy products and beverages, including flavoured milk, room-
temperature yogurt, yogurt drinks, ready-to-drink coffee, juice
drinks, sports drinks, herbal tea and milk powder;

- Snack foods, including candies, popsicles, ball cakes and jellies,
beans, nuts and others; and

- Other products, including mainly wine and other food products.

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and business activities are conducted
in the PRC.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The executive Directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before income tax excluded other unallocated
head office operating expenses, finance income — net and share of
losses of associates, which is consistent with that in the financial
statements.

The revenue of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018,
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and for the twelve months ended
31 March 2018 and 2017 are set out as follows:

5. SEBEHGE)

HITESRERAEHARE (R
Ht AR D BADEXER BER
A-FEREEBEARER) FME
EBoWM2RE  EMBHRER-H -

AEBHZE2018F3A3MHILETH
@A - BE2016F 12831 AILFEE
FEZ2018F K 20173831 HIE
TEAMKENT

Audited Unaudited
REY AEEY
Fifteen months Year ended Twelve months
ended 31 March 31 December ended 31 March
2018 2016 2018 2017
BE2018F  BZE2016F BZ3A31AH
3A31H 12A31R E+=f@A
IEt+HEA JIR:355 20185 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®ETR AR®TR ARETT
Rice crackers RE 6,717,798 5,449,392 5,653,516 5,216,969
Dairy products and beverages AmRER 11,833,918 9,298,022 9,614,565 8,976,453
Snack foods RERR 6,244,645 4,914,142 4,961,726 4,770,656
Other products HiER 58,101 48,572 44,901 52,767
Total revenue el 24,854,462 19,710,128 20,274,708 19,016,845

161



2017/2018 ANNUAL REPORT \OGCRUR:E & LEE:
=30 gel:E1: i) e 1D S I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SBFEHEE)
The segment information for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 BZE2018F3A31HLETRER D
is as follows: WERAOT :
Audited
37
Fifteen months ended 31 March 2018
BZ201853A31HLTRMA
Dairy
products
Rice and Snack Other
crackers  beverages foods  products Unallocated Group
KE  ARREM  AHEeR  HttES KAE &8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥Tr ARETR ARETR AR%Tn
Segment results PHEE
Revenue W& 6,717,798 11,833,918 6,244,645 58,101 - 24,854,462
Segment profit(loss) AHFE/ (BiE) 1084361 3465146 1,238,051 888 (506,526) 5,192,820
Finance income - net BEWA-FE 137,852
Share of losses of associates NG (7,939)
Profit before income tax BRETSBAIRIE 5,322,733
Income tax expense FresiER (1,468,445)
Profit for the period AR 3,854,288
Other segment items included FtARERZ
in the income statement HttAHER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - ¥ R R{&1TE 318,382 453,984 311,512 2,181 24934 1,110,993
Amortisation of leasehold land and HEt Rt
land use rights fEREE 10,180 17,675 7,679 1,524 255 37,313
Depreciation of investment properties RENENRE - - - 1,872 - 1,872
Amortisation of intangible assets BN EESE - - - - 2,736 2,736
Capital expenditure EAEY 55,690 205,014 88,071 17,545 53,569 419,889
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. EBEHE)

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, financial assets THEETEREGRESEE
at fair value through profit or loss, investments in associates and other M -BAFEEBRBERCERENESH
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are EE BELNTRE URHEMSK
managed on a group basis. Segment liabilities exclude borrowings and PENBHERATNEE REZEE
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities, as these liabilities EREEEAEE 2MPEBETE
are managed on a group basis. EERREMRIBMNETR DA

8 ARFAERKEREEE -

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2018 are as follows: R2018F3 AN AMAHEERA
BWT :
Audited
7
31 March 2018
R20185 38 31R
Dairy
products
Rice and Snack Other
crackers  beverages foods  products Unallocated Group

KR ARREH  AERE  HtES Vil KE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
Segment assets PEEE 2,709,716 7413141 3,301,756 121,739 142,410 13,688,762
Cash and cash equivalents REeRBLEEY 12,499,692
Financial assets at fair value EOVEEBERTE

through profit or loss femEE 465,790
Investments in associates BanaRE 28,859
Total assets BEE 26,683,103
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,335411 2,352,429 1,241,354 11,550 227,346 5,168,090
Borrowings B 6,904,113
Total liabilities BaE 12,072,203
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SEBEHEE)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as BZE2016F12A31HILFESHE
follows: BT
Audited
21
Year ended 31 December 2016
BZ2016F 12831 BLLEE
Dairy
products
Rice and Snack Other
crackers  beverages foods products  Unallocated Group

*R  AmREE  #ERE  HtER AOE &5
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Segment results PREE
Revenue K& 5449392 9,298,022 4,914,142 48,572 - 19,710,128
Segment profit(oss) AHHE,/ (58 1113473 3106960 1,152,644 49 (562327) 4811229
Finance income — net BEWA-FE 90,713
Share of losses of associates NG (6,094)
Profit before income tax BRETSBAIAIE 4,895,848
Income tax expense FresiER (1,378,473)
Profit for the year EETE 3,517,375
Other segment items included FtARERZ

in the income statement HttAEHER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥]% - MR RERE 260,126 306,402 265,606 1,869 51,868 885,871
Amortisation of leasehold land and RET R L0ERE

land use rights B 5,848 14,272 6,362 1,300 203 27,985
Depreciation of investment properties RENENRE - - - 1,538 - 1,638
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEE - - - - 867 867
Capital expenditure EREX 51,226 234,810 74,016 18,796 68,687 447 535
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. EBEHE)
Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, financial assets THEETEREGRESEE
at fair value through profit or loss, investments in associates and other M -BAFEEBRBERCERENESH
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are EE BEQARARERAEMKRIE
managed on a group basis. Segment liabilities exclude borrowings and ZBARREXERE  ARRZEE
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities, as these liabilities EHEESE—EE - 0EETE
are managed on a group basis. FEERREMRIBMzEATRE
¥BE BARZEEEHEES—
B -
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016 are as MR2016F12A31 BN HEERE
follows: BT :
Audited
BEY
31 December 2016
#2016 128318
Dairy
products
Rice and Snack Other
crackers  beverages foods products  Unallocated Group

AR AmREH  fERR  HtES Vil &E
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMBO00O ~ RMBO0O ~ RMBOOO  RMBO00O
ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTZR

Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
Segment assets APHEE 2,980,362 7,779,528 3,646,860 109,011 151,652 14,667 413
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRLEEY 11,557,371
Financial assets at fair value RATERBBRRCR

through profit or loss femEE 941,556
Investments in associates BeENRRE 42,867
Total assets BEE 27,209,207
Segment liabilities AHEE 1,391,258 2,035739 1,202,014 237,259 118,468 4,984,738
Borrowings EE 9,903,546
Total liabilities Bef 14,888,284
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SWBEE(F)
The segment information for the twelve months ended 31 March 2018 BZ2018F3A31MBLE+=ERSD
is as follows: WERAOT :
Unaudited
FEEY

Twelve months ended 31 March 2018
BZ2018F3 531 ALLT=fEA

Dairy
products
Rice and Snack Other
crackers  beverages foods  products Unallocated Group

XR  ARREH  AERE  HtES Vil RE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

Segment results PHEE
Revenue e 5,653,516 9,614,565 4,961,726 44,901 - 20,274,708
Segment profit(oss) AHHE,/ (58 939,145 2785028 936194  (2596) (465,695 4,192,076
Finance income - net BEWA-FE 108,717
Share of losses of associates NG (7,326)
Profit before income tax BRETSBAIFIE 4,293,467
Income tax expense FresiER (1,183,019)
Profit for the period HERE 3,110,448
Other segment items included ftAkERZ

in the income statement HttAHER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥]% - MR RERE 254,524 369,104 238,306 1,743 18,939 882,616
Amortisation of leasehold land and RET R L0ERE

land use rights B 8,719 14,107 6,087 1,220 201 30,334
Depreciation of investment properties RENERE - - - 1,492 = 1,492
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEREH - - - - 2,531 2,531
Capital expenditure BARY 48,018 163,482 51,008 16,686 43,862 323,056
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information for the twelve months ended 31 March 2017

5. SEBEHGE)

BE2017FE3A3MBLET=@A S

is as follows: BERANT :
Unaudited
RSB,
Twelve months ended 31 March 2017
BE2017E3ANALT=EA
Dairy
products
Rice and Snack Other
crackers  beverages foods products  Unallocated Group
KR ARRER  HERR  HHESR RAE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETrT ARBTn ARETR AR%Trn ARET:R
Segment results PREE
Revenue K& 5,216,969 8,976,453 4,770,656 52,767 - 19,016,845
Segment profit(oss) AHHE,/ (58 1018871 2985729 1,079,328 8320  (565926) 4,526,322
Finance income - net BEWA-FE 85,967
Share of losses of associates NG (4,615)
Profit before income tax BRETSBAIAIE 4,607,674
Income tax expense FresiER (1,273,757)
Profit for the period HERE 3,333,917
Other segment items included FARGERZ
in the income statement HttAHEA
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥]% - MR RERE 260,067 316,173 273,513 1,820 42,396 893,969
Amortisation of leasehold land and RET R 0ERE
land use rights B 5,847 14,272 6,364 1,295 207 27,985
Depreciation of investment properties RENENRE - - - 1,534 - 1534
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEHE - - - - 861 861
Capital expenditure BARY 37,846 166,698 73,957 14,699 56,897 350,097
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. ME- -BIBRERME
Furniture, Vehicles,
machinery aircraft
Freehold and and Construction
land Buildings equipment  transportation in progress Total
XA il BE AE R
St BF e REHIA HRIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG S0 ARBTT ARETR ARETR AEETTR ARETR
At1 January 2016 R2016E1R18
Cost FiR 33,660 4,392,849 8,840,732 283,329 1415217 14,965,847
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (1,312,159) (4,214,409) (190,223) - (5,776,791)
Net book amount REFE 33,660 3,080,690 4,566,323 93,106 1415217 9,189,056

Year ended 31 December 2016 BEW6E12AMBLEE

Opening net book amount EBREE 33,660 3,080,690 4,566,323 93,106 1415217 9,189,056
Additions N - 31,119 150,070 5098 225193 411480
Transfer upon completion THEER - 841,882 714,834 4,060 (1,560,776) -
Disposals (Note 33) RE (H3E33) - (5,181) (26,386) (389) - (31,956)
Depreciation (Note 27) & (W) - (200977) (639,089) (45,805) - (885,871)
Exchange differences EREE 2,782 3752 2,408 45 1417 10,404
Closing net book amount ERRHFE 36,442 3,751,285 4,768,160 56,115 81,111 8,693,113
At 31 December 2016 R2016E12B31A

Cost s 36,442 5,269,959 9,606,983 287599 81,111 15,282,094
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (1,518,674) (4,838,823) (231,484) - (6,588,981)
Net book amount FEFE 36,442 3,751,285 4,768,160 56,115 81,111 8,693,113
Fifteen months ended BEA8E3ANEA

31 March 2018 ttEAR

Opening net book amount HNREFE 36,442 3,751,285 4,768,160 56,115 81,111 8,693,113
Additions N - 10,933 92469 4238 173,959 281,599
Transfer upon completion EREER = 55,478 145,667 1451 (202,59) =
Disposals (Note 33) RE (H3E33) - (40,813) (19,408) (503) (473) (61,197)
Depreciation (Note 27) & (W) - (278,105) (814,504) (18,204) - (1,110,993)
Exchange differences EiER 90 (1,463) 3 4 (376) (1722)
Closing net book amount HAREFE 36,532 3497 315 4172317 43,011 51,625 7,800,800
At 31 March 2018 R2018E3A3NA

Cost o 36,532 5,260,767 9,715,260 283,662 51,625 15,347,846
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (1,763452) (5,542,043) (240,851) - (7,547,046)
Net book amount FEFE 36,532 3497315 4172317 43011 51,625 7,800,800
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The majority of the buildings of the Group are erected on leasehold
land and land use rights (Note 7). The buildings comprise factories,
offices, sales offices and warehouses.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, depreciation
expenses of RMB702,018,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2016: RMB561,932,000) have been charged in ‘cost of sales’,
RMB17,857,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
RMB5,696,000) in ‘distribution costs’ and RMB391,118,000 (for the
year ended 31 December 2016: RMB318,243,000) in ‘administrative
expenses’.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, lease rentals amounting
to RMB228,064,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
RMB168,961,000) relating to the lease of leasehold land and buildings
are included in the consolidated income statement (Note 27).

There is no pledge of property, plant and equipment for the Group as at
31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016.

M - R RER0E (&)

AEEXRBOBTFEREAELHE
THfEREZ £ (HEE7) - %FE
THERE WMAZ  HEMER
K&

HE2018E3H31HLE+HEBH
Mo ERXH BRITEERA]
85 A R #702,018,000 7T (£ =
2016 FE12H31HILEEE: AR
561,932,0007¢) » 7 T EHRRAR | B2
M AR 17,857,000 ¢ (£ 2016 FF
12B831HLEFE : AR¥5696,000
TT)RRTITHRERI AXHARE
391,118,000 7T (& £ 2016 F 12 A 31
HIEFEE : AR#318,243,0007T) °

HZE2018F3 A31 HIE+HEFER -
HEAETHTEFHANEERS
¥ A R #228,064,000 7T (# =
2016 FE12A3MHIEFEE: AR
168,961,0007T) Bt AGZFE W R T
A (FFEE 27) ©

720183 H31H £ 2016512 531
B ASEEEEREYE -
R -
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7. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 7. HRITHMRTHMERE

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
March 2018 2016
HZE201845F HZE2016F
3A31H 12A31H
IE+HEMEA ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

Opening balance 0 F PR 1,205,512 1,233,850
Additions R 9 -
Disposals (Note 33) & (FEE33) (17,628) (1,019)
Amortisation (Note 27) #eH (pyeE27) (37,313) (27,985)
Exchange differences EHZEE (953) 666
Closing balance HE R 1,149,627 1,205,512

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments. Most of the Group’s leasehold land
and land use rights are located in the PRC. The remaining lease periods
of the Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are between 20 to 50
years.

The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights comprise land for
buildings of factories, offices, sales offices and warehouses.

The amortisation of the Group’s leasehold land and land use rights has
been charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

There is no pledge of leasehold land and land use rights for the Group
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016.

AEENEHEL R T HEAER
SEBVKEHENE  AEEN
REBoHAE LR+ i E BEHS R
RepE - SENEEL R Lt fE
FARERNSGHEERNR20FE50F -

rEENHET R I HERAES
REEFHN LM -

AEENEEL R T HEAEER
HEREFRESRBRNTHRERF
X8 ©

A20185F3A31H K20165F 128
1A AERELEEFEE LR
LA
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8. IEWME

Fifteen months Year ended

ended 31 31 December

March 2018 2016

HZEZ2018FE HZE 2016 F

3A31H 12H31H

IE+HEA FE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFT

Investment properties wEWE

Opening balance 8/ EWlEEeR 41,112 41,108
Depreciation (Note 27) e (fFEE27) (1,872) (1,538)
Exchange differences PE R Z=%E 53 1,542
Closing balance HF ARG 39,293 41,112
Cost %N 51,687 51,629
Accumulated depreciation Estife (12,394) (10,517)
Net book amount ARENFE 39,293 41,112

Investment properties represent offices, sales outlets and warehouses
held by the Group in Taiwan region erected on freehold land including
the cost of land and buildings, and in the Chinese mainland erected on
leasehold land with lease period of 50 years including the cost of
buildings.

Net lease rental income amounting to approximately RMB2,985,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB2,274,000) (Note 25) for
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 was related to the lease of
investment properties.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2018 was
RMB89,009,441 (31 December 2016: RMB86,203,918). The valuation
was determined using the sale comparison approach and was within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Sales prices of comparable properties
in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot.

REVMFEEARBEGBHERT
BIEKAEREL M FRBIPFAE
HEMELRER  YRFELMEE
FHEA  UREFBEERARTE
HEMRBSOFMHEE L FHE
MiETF  BREEFRAE -

HZE2018FE3 A3 HILETABAMN
EHSWBAL AR 2,985,0007T
(BiZ=2016F12A31HIEFEE : A
R #2,274,0007T) (FizE25) » v E
AREMENHEFE -

2018 F3H31H  REVEMA
E1E B AR 89,009,441 7T (2016
F£12H31H: A R #86,203,918
JC) o ZEMET VIR AHEL A E
ERBAFERBREIFRA - MiaH
LEEMEEBERTEBM (WE
HE) ZZFUAE - LEEERE
EMARTEAIRER -

171

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
FEBEIBTIERARAE  FiR



2017/2018 ANNUAL REPORT \OGCRUR:E & LEE:
=30 gel:E1: i) e 1D S I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. ELEE
Goodwill Trademarks Software Total
BE L B4 gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR®BTRT AR®BTR
At 1 January 2016 20161 H1H
Cost B 2,561 21,654 - 24,215
Accumulated amortisation ESie: 5| - (18,988) - (18,988)
Net book amount RERE 2,561 2,666 - 5,227
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F12A31HILEE
Opening net book amount FORDFE 2,561 2,666 - 5,227
Additions 2R - 3,094 - 3,094
Amortisation charge (Note 27) BB A (M 27) - (867) - (867)
Exchange differences EHELE - 181 - 181
Closing net book amount FARMFE 2,561 5,074 - 7,635
At 31 December 2016 R2016 12831 H
Cost B 2,561 25,877 - 28,438
Accumulated amortisation ESie: 5| - (20,803) - (20,803)
Net book amount IREFE 2,561 5,074 - 7,635
Fifteen months ended BZ201853AH31H
31 March 2018 Lt+HEA
Opening net book amount HYIERERE 2,561 5,074 = 7,635
Additions A - 2,337 8,759 11,096
Amortisation charge (Note 27) BB A (e 27) - (1,274) (1,462) (2,736)
Exchange differences ERZELHE - (27) = (27)
Closing net book amount HAREEE 2,561 6,110 7,297 15,968
At 31 March 2018 R201853A31H
Cost 2% 2,561 28,162 8,759 39,482
Accumulated amortisation ES: £ - (22,052) (1,462) (23,514)
Net book amount RERE 2,561 6,110 7,297 15,968
Amortisation of RMB2,736,000 (for the year ended 31 December HZE2018E3H31HIE+FHE B s
2016: RMB867,000) for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 has ARM2 736,000 7T (B = 2016 F£ 12
been charged to ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income BA31HLEE : AKR¥867,000T)E
statement. EHREWERITHRERIAXHE -
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10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

10. BEATIRE

Fifteen months

Year ended

ended 31 31 December

March 2018 2016

HZE2018F HZE2016F

3H831H 12H31H

IF+FHEA IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBEFTT

Opening balance 8/ FWlEEeR 42,867 45,855
Share of losses, net FELEsTE - BEE (7,939) (6,094)
Exchange differences FE R Z=%E (6,069) 3,106
Closing balance HFAREEER 28,859 42,867

The Group’s associates are all unlisted and individually immaterial. The
aggregated amounts of the Group’s share of these associates’ results

are as follows:

AEEZHERTYAFLTRE
BARBEKR - AEHEIHLFHE

REZ EERERHTAT

Total
Country/place comprehensive % Interest
Name of incorporation (Loss)/profit (loss)lincome held
2@ (8%)/ P
8 AMALER (8%)/## gy Bkt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR ARETR
Fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 HZ20185E3ANBELTEEA
Jung Times International Ltd. British Virgin Islands (4,078) (4,078) 25%
RERYESE
Jiangsu Xing-Want Rice Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland 1 1 25%
THERKEERAR FEER
Associates in Taiwan Taiwan region (699) (699) 25%
AEHERNT AEthE
Nanjing Yanzhenwang Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland (3,163) (3,163) 20%
BREREOEMNERAR REER
(7,939) (7,939)
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F12 AN HILERE
Jung Times International Ltd. British Virgin Islands (2,765) (2,765) 25%
AERUES
Jiangsu Xing-Want Rice Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland - - 25%
THERKEERAR FEER
Associates in Taiwan Taiwan region (553) (553) 25%
AEHELT aEtE
Nanjing Yanzhenwang Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland (2,776) (2,776) 20%
AREEEAEMRERAR TEER
(6,094) (6,094)
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

11. @RI AR

Assets at
fair value Available-
through for-sale
the profit financial Loans and
and loss assets receivables Total
BATEEBR AHLE
BRTRNEE SREE ERREUR “st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T ARBTT AR®TF T
31 March 2018 H20185F3A31H
Assets as per balance sheet EESRRNEE
Available-for-sale financial AtHESREE
assets (Note 12) (PitzE 12) - 46,962 - 46,962
Trade receivables (Note 14) B 5 R (i35 14) - - 1,146,340 1,146,340
Deposits and other receivables (Note 15) &4 & Eftr FEULE (KisE 15) = = 132,611 132,611
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEBBERTRN
profit or loss (Note 16) EREE (M 16) 465,790 = = 465,790
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) BERBEESEY (MF17) - - 12,499,692 12,499,692
Total st 465,790 46,962 13,778,643 14,291,395
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHRATRN
HvemeE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Liabilities as per balance sheet EESRRNER
Trade payables (Note 21) B AR (M 21) 1,286,830
Accruals and other payables st BRR A BN 1,316,003
Borrowings (Note 23) B (15 23) 6,904,113
Other non-current liabilities HittkRaas 48,219
Total st 9,555,165
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

11. @RI AJH (&)

Assets at
fair value Available-
through for-sale
the profit financial Loans and
and loss assets receivables Total
BATEEBR AHHE
BRTENEE StRIERE HRREKER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTR ARBT T AR®T T
31 December 2016 M2016512A31A8
Assets as per balance sheet EESBRRNEE
Available-for-sale financial AtHESHEE
assets (Note 12) (fEE12) - 36,567 - 36,567
Trade receivables (Note 14) 5B (Kt 14) - - 1,270,838 1,270,838
Deposits and other receivables (Note 15) &4 & EA W (KizE 15) - - 85,701 85,701
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEBBRTEN
profit or loss (Note 16) SREE (Wi 16) 941,556 - - 941,556
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) BERREZEM (MEE17) - - 11,657,371 11,557,371
Total st 941,556 36,567 12,913,910 13,892,033
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RS IR
Hinemas
RMB'000
ARETT
Liabilities as per balance sheet EESRRNER
Trade payables (Note 21) B AR (M 21) 1,345,427
Accruals and other payables FESHE AR H AN 1,389,490
Borrowings (Note 23) B0 (H1EE23) 9,903,546
Other non-current liabilities HibEREEE 56,251
Total st 12,694,714
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12. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 12, FfHEHESREE
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
March 2018 2016
HZE201845F HZE2016F
3A31H 12A31H
IE+HEMEA ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

Opening balance e 36,567 49,488
Net gains/(losses) transferred FE (B BEBEER
to equity (Note 20) (M#5E20) 11,975 (13,793)
Exchange differences EHZEE (1,580) 872
Closing balance HE R 46,962 36,567
Available-for-sale financial assets included the followings: AMEEEREEEREUTSIE

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 & 2016 £
38318 128 31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Listed equity securities EERES 46,958 36,562
Unlisted equity securities FLEHRERES 4 5
Total et 46,962 36,567
Market value of listed securities LEHESEHE 46,962 36,567
Available-for sale financial assets are denominated in the following AHEESREENTIIEHEIE :

currencies:

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 & 2016 £
38318 128 31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARBTT

Japanese Yen Ht 46,958 36,562
New Taiwan Dollar HEH 4 5
Total ast 46,962 36,567
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13. INVENTORIES 13. #W
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
20184 2016
3A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETT
Raw materials and packaging materials [E#I K &9 1,398,640 1,327,596
Work in progress &M 200,357 189,677
Finished goods SR 608,489 626,075
Goods in transit BEERPEY 362,003 309,210
Total st 2,569,489 2,452,558

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in ‘cost of
sales’ amounted to approximately RMB14,064,890,000 for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018 (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
RMB10,285,955,000) (Note 27).

The Group recognised losses of approximately RMB44,685,000 (for
the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB68,526,000) in respect of the
losses on obsolete inventories and write-down of inventories for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 (Note 27).

HZE2018FE3A831H LT HMEA » #
RAEMIWTAIHERS INEERK
A E AR 14,064,890,000 7T (&
Z2016F 12831 ALLEEE : ARYE
10,285,955,000 7t ) (FftzE 27) °

HZE2018F3A3MBHILE+HMEAR -
AEERREFTERMBEEME
REEH AR 44,685,000 T (BE
20165 12A31BLEE: AR
68,526,000 7t ) (Mi3¥27) °

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES 14. BHEW%
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 & 2016 &
3HA31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Trade receivables B 5 B
— from third parties —EWE=FR 1,198,025 1,311,675
— from a related party (Note 35(b)) — FEURBRE 5 (5 35(b)) 12,255 11,470
1,210,280 1,323,145
Less: provision for impairment of VA=)
trade receivables RERE (63,940) (52,307)
Trade receivables, net B 5 RN — EEE 1,146,340 1,270,838

Most of the Group’s sales are on cash-on-delivery basis whereas those
made through modern distribution channels are normally on credit
terms ranging from 60 to 90 days (2016: 60 to 90 days).

AEBARBOOHEEUARTBEN
AFRET BBRKAKIERENE
EXF-—RERT60HE0HME
EH (2016 : 60HZE90RH)
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

178

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

14. B (&)

FA2018E3H31H K20165% 12 A8
3MH BESERARERRZAHY
BRERDATINT -

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 & 2016 &

3HA31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREET T

Within 60 days 60 HA 438,711 1,044,858
61-90 days 61290 H 477,733 103,535
91-180 days 912180 H 202,214 103,470
181-365 days 181 £ 365H 21,366 36,078
Over 365 days 365 B 70,256 35,204
Total Fob 1,210,280 1,323,145

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables aged over 90 days amounted
to RMB293,836,000 (31 December 2016: RMB174,752,000)
were impaired and provided for. The amount of provision was
RMB63,940,000 (31 December 2016: RMB52,307,000). The
individually impaired receivables mainly related to the customers in
unexpected situations. It is assessed that a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade
receivables, before provision for impairment, are denominated in the

HA2018F3831H: Fr £ % BE
BREBOENESERRARYE
293,836,000 7T (2016512 8311 :
AR #174,752,000t) B2 RER
CEEE - FEBBEEAARYE
63,940,000 7T (2016 E12 B 318 : A
F # 52,307,000 7T ) ° 18 B K 2 R &
ERREXFEEHERIMERNEFE
B o RFEE - FEESERE AN
FEURER ©

AEEEZRUANREEREE
BERHREAVEMES -

M2018%E3H31H KR20165E 12 A
3MB KRB BEREN2ESE

following currencies: WA TSI EEEEE -
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 F 2016 F
3A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREET T
RMB AR 1,065,500 1,197,543
us$ ETT 32,603 38,550
New Taiwan Dollar b= 99,931 74,078
Other currencies Hin g 12,246 12,974
Total st 1,210,280 1,323,145
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

14. REEUH (&)

AEENEZRRRWRERES
BT :

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
March 2018 2016
HZE2018 45 HZE 2016 F
3A31H 12A31H
IE+EHMEA ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

Opening balance e 52,307 37,147
Provision for impairment of trade B 5RO ERE

receivables (Note 27) (FF&E27) 11,633 15,176
Receivables written-off during the FRRIET AU E

year as uncollectible WE 5 FEU R IE - (67)
Exchange differences = - 51
Closing balance HE R 63,940 52,307

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 27). Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying values of trade receivables as mentioned above. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

HERERKZBENRLMNER
EEREEGRERERPIITHER]
W (K EE27) - EBERF PR
HE-RELHEPEEZRDEINIR

REBEBHNEERRKSEIER

BEMNEZRBUKWIREE - &
SEWEFBEMEFRERER -
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15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15. AR « HeRAMERK

31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 F 2016 F
3H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T
Prepayments — advanced FERIE

payments to suppliers — R TENKIR 336,697 336,118

Amounts due from related FEUR — B 5 FIE
parties (Note 35(b)) (Fff3E 35(b)) 2,451 4,973
Recoverable value added tax AR ER 180,050 239,815
Prepayment for income tax BT HFEIE 22,365 17,115
Deposits BE 22,294 18,607
Interest receivables FEURFIE 65,381 1,163
Others Hih 42,485 60,958
Total 5t 671,723 678,749

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

REBBEERGBRA  BERH
b UK BRE SR E D P EMEE -

16. EATFEBZBRCHENEMEE

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 FF 2016 &

3H31H8 12HA31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T AREET T

Fund product HEER 465,790 941,556

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in ‘other gains — net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

The fund product cannot be traded but can be redeemed from the

issuing banks at the discretion of the Group from time to time whereby
the Group is expecting to earn short-term gain from the funds.

The fair value of the fund product is based on its quoted market price.

BAFEFABEZNEREEND
FESDTHENGEERERANH

bz — FHR ] o

ESEMTRETRS  BAHAX
EEARRBRETRITBTE
Bl - A S B A A BREUE

Hiuas o

ETERNAFEUATSERAE

ﬁﬁo
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

17. BERASERY

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 F 2016 F

3HA31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREET T

Cash at bank and on hand ROTKFERS 12,089,692 10,271,750
Short-term bank deposits SEERITER 410,000 1,285,621
Total Fab 12,499,692 11,557,371

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

BERREEB/YUTIERE -

currencies:
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 & 2016 &
38318 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREF T
RMB ARME 11,491,266 10,368,102
us$ ETT 844,347 1,010,113
Others Hith 164,079 179,156
12,499,692 11,557,371

ARBEBR TSI IR B H R
BE¥ - BARBRBB/IIERSA
REEHPE  AXTHEKEMEM
Z SN E IR B R AR BIFRIR o

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international market. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currency and remittance of RMB out of
the PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of exchange controls
promulgated by the PRC authorities.

RESAHNEERRESEIER
AEERNRERBESEEYNRE
@ o

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying values of cash and cash equivalents as mentioned above.
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18.
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SHARE CAPITAL

18. =&

Number of Share
shares Capital
IR &
RMB’000

AREET T

Ordinary shares, issued ERITRHEZE
and fully paid: TZEK

Shares of US$0.02 each SRMEEO0.02E T2 KRB

At 1 January 2016 A 201651818 12,854,026,135 1,925,328
Shares repurchased and cancelled Sy AEY SR o E) (330,051,000) (44,430)
At 31 December 2016 M2016512 831 H 12,523,975,135 1,880,898
Shares repurchased and cancelled SRR RFEHEZRA (74,688,000) (9,831)
At 31 March 2018 A2018%F3 A31H 12,449,287,135 1,871,067

The movements in issued share capital of the Company during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 were as below:

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, the Company acquired
74,688,000 of its own shares (during the year ended 31 December
2016: 330,051,000 shares) through purchases on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Among these shares, 64,688,000 shares were
repurchased and cancelled during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2018, while the remaining 10,000,000 shares repurchased on 28 March
2018 were cancelled in April 2018.

The total cost to acquire the above 74,688,000 shares was
RMB371,713,000 (during the year ended 31 December 2016:
RMB1,437,019,000) and has been deducted from share capital
of RMB9,831,000 (during the year ended 31 December 2016:
RMB44,430,000) and retained earnings of RMB361,882,000 (during
the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB1,392,589,000), respectively.

AATREBE2018FE3AH318 Lk
TEHEBCBITRASSNT :

H Z£2018F3A31H It + & @A
B ARABEEBBERENME
PR~ E BB E H A 574,688,000 %
BB (EZE20165F12831H L &F
£ : 330,051,000 fg 19) o H -
64,688,000 B% B 17 A &L £ 2018 F 3
A31HIE+REBEARNEE RN
mMR2018F3 28 H BB @ 1Y &l &4
10,000,000 i% B 9 E R 2018 F 4 A

Ui B8 3t 74,688,000 AR AR 12 BT % A+
2K A ANRE371,713,000 T
(BZE2016F12A31BLEFE: A
FR#1,437,019,000 7T) » W5 BIARKR
ARREERBRA K 9,831,000
TT(HZE2016F 12A31BHLEFE :
A B #44.430,000T ) & AR #
361,882,000t ( & £2016F 12 A
MALFE  AK%1,392,589,000
JT) °
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19. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 19. DI HERIZ

Share option scheme BT E

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant AATBIRIE2008F2 A4 HBBAMNE
to a written resolution passed on 4 February 2008. The total number AREFERMNBRES S S
of shares which may be issued under the Scheme must not exceed 2 o RIBTTETRHITHRDEHET
1,325,272,275 shares, representing approximately 10% of the total BH8381,325,272,275 % » FHERK
number of shares issued by the Company as at 26 March 2008, the AR L A EI2008F3 26 H E 8
listing date. The scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years TRMDEEN10% ° 5+ 8145 8 2008
commencing 4 February 2008. F2RARBMBRERERBI0ERTN -
During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, no options have been BZEZ2018F 3831 B+ HEABEH
granted under the Scheme and the Scheme has ended. B BERETER TFEMBRE

BEZGtEIEAER -

20. RESERVES 20. f#fE
Available-
forsale  Currency
Share Capital ~ financial ~realignment  Statutory Retained
premium  reserves assets reserve  reseves  Subtotal  eamings Total

TitE  EWER
REE  EAER  SREE B EEER N REEA 4t

Note RMBO00  RMBO0O0 ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0 ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO

i3 ARETn  ARBTr ARETz ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETz  ARETR

As at 1 January 2016 H651 318 462130 (7.327,600) 0517 (30042) 243503 (4442492) 14636022 10,193,530

Profi for the year FEHR - - - - - - 3519188 3519168

Shares repurchased and cancelled  BEERE#HAH - - - - - - (1302589)  (1,392,589)
Change invalug of avalablefor-sale W HESREE

fancialassls G 12 - -3 - - 13 N i)
Remeasurements of post-employment - RHERERZ

beneft obligaions Eite T - - - i

Didends pad #iRE - - - - (1557408 (1537408)

284,309 BA309  (284309)

Appropriation to statutory reserves  BEZEEEE - - - - -
(376,507) - (Tea) - (3Tea)

Currency translaton differences EHENER - - -
As at 31 December 2016 R2165128318 462130 (7,329674) 16,724 (#15549) 2715812 (4550557) 14940864 10,390,307
As at 1 January 2017 RTE181R 462,130 (7,320674) 16724 (M5540) 275812 (455095T) 14040864 10,300,307
Proft or the period i) - - - - - - 3862603 3,862,603
Shares repurchased and cancelled ~ BEEREEZRH 18 - - - - - - (361882 (361,882)
Change invalug of avalable-for-sale W HESHER

financial assets BEZY 12 - - 11,975 - - 11975 - 11,975
Remeasurements of post-employment  &HEREE2

beneftt obligations Efiite - (1,946) - - - (1,946) - (1,946)
Approprition tostatutory reserves  EEZEREE - - - - feH0 186510 (186510) -
Diidends pad #iRE - - - - - - (1803840 (1803847)
Partal disposal of subsidary HEBRHELA % - 18,000 - - - 18,000 = 18,000
Currency translation differences EEERER - - - 501,920 - 501,920 - 501,920
As at 31 March 2018 HWBEIANA 462,130 (7,313,620) 28699 86371 2902322 (3834098) 16451228 12,617,130
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20. RESERVES (continued)

(a) Share premium

20. fs#liE (&)

(a)

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law (2003
Revision) and the Articles of Association of the Company,
share premium of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders subject to a solvency test on the Company and the
provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.

(b) Capital reserves

(b)

This represents principally capital reserves arising from the share
swap transactions during the Group reorganisation in 2007.

(c) Statutory reserves

(c)

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to
be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated
losses from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holder.

All statutory reserves

are created for specific purposes. PRC

companies are required to appropriate 10% of statutory net
profits to statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue
the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the
companies, to expand the companies’ production operations, or to
increase the capital of the companies. In addition, a company may
make further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using
its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the Board of

Directors.

The Taiwan Company Law requires a company to appropriate
10% of its annual net income to legal reserve before it declares
any part of such net income as dividends and/or bonuses, until
the accumulated legal reserve equals the total registered capital.
This reserve can only be used to cover losses, or, if the balance of
the reserve exceeds 50% of the registered capital, to increase the
registered capital by an amount not exceeding 50% of the legal

reserve.

184

RN R1E

RIFFASHS 2 EA (20035
E5]) B34 ER AR BN A F
ERMAA > KAARNRDEE
AHIIRTRE  EAXAR
AR EERE R R AR B
R B EFE A RESIATIR -

B A

W E B R 2007 FEE EAER
ETRBERT BEENER
g -

A E

A B A AR B SR 1 P B R
HARREBEETBHRRAA
EHRFFEEEUAEEEN
BETEEE) S RaRFET
BRIFE AR BIERIER
BETEEHHEE FEEE
iEE Y AR HEMmMRL -
FERATNRAREFENRR
BAE > BEEERSFES
BGFFEM10% - BATEE
BREHENANEAEIME
N HI50%8F » A A {F 1k &
B AERBRHER R BIER
HATINER - BAATMNA
ELEREMATNEZR - It
S RBEFEHRER 2
SR EAERREFEREGD
BERFHIERE—DHK -

[EBHERAEE] HERT
REIREMEBSHOFEEFRA
ERIRER /RAFMA - #FH
FEFVAMI0%EI B REZE
f#fE - EERFHEAERMEERN
MEAMEARL - ZEHKRT
RfEAMEE - SRE=ZHE
M BB A FE T & A M50% »
AU R INGE M & A - B
BAFBBEEMMBAIS50% -
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21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. EHEMAR
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 F 2016 F
38318 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Trade payables — to third parties BERREAR—EE=F 1,286,830 1,345,427

The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at 31 March 2018 and 31

December 2016 is as follows:

MA2018E3A31H R2016FE 12 A
318 ESEARVIRERINAOT :

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 & 2016 £

3HA31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREET T

Within 60 days 60 HA 1,206,949 1,271,829
61 to 180 days 612180 H 65,446 53,899
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365H 2,630 6,465
Over 365 days 365 B 11,805 13,234
Total Bt 1,286,830 1,345,427

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximated their fair values

as at the balance sheet dates.

22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

REERERH  ESEARHNKR
EEEAEAFEES -

22. EBRARAMEMRK

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 & 2016 &

3HA31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBT T

Advanced receipts from customers FEWEFIE 1,320,652 798,083
Accruals FESTE R 842,226 956,425
Deposits & 309,867 317,729
Salary and welfare payables EAEHEREFRIE 328,468 408,580
Other taxes and levies payable HittfERIERHE 230,323 274,240
Others HAth 191,910 262,336
Total et 3,223,446 3,017,393

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

REESERH B EARHEAM
BARREEREE A FERSE -
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23.
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BORROWINGS 23. B
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 F 2016 F
3A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Non-current FERE
Long term bank borrowings-unsecured & EiR 1Tk — EIK - 1,734,250
Bonds/Notes payable (Note (a) and (b)) &%, FEZHE (5 (a) M (b)) 3,101,257 4,156,202
3,101,257 5,890,452
Current B
Short term bank borrowings — unsecured 45 B$R 1T & 5% — 1K 4 30,478 4,013,094
Notes payable (Note (b)) FEISEE (5E (b)) 3,772,378 -
3,802,856 4,013,094
Total borrowings AR 6,904,113 9,903,546
Note (a): #H(a):

In 2017, the Group issued US$500,000,000 guaranteed bonds (“Bonds”)
which will be repayable in whole on 27 April 2022. The Bonds were
issued with a principle amount of US$500,000,000, bearing interest at a
fixed rate of 2.875% per annum, payable semi-annually and listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The offering price for the Bonds
is 98.878% of its principle amount. The value of the liability, taking into
account of the transaction costs of RMB17,875,000, was determined upon
issuance of the Bonds.

Note (b):

In 2013, the Group issued US$600,000,000 guaranteed unsecured senior
notes (“Notes”) which will be repayable in whole on 14 May 2018. The Notes
were issued with a principle amount of US$600,000,000, bearing interest at
a fixed rate of 1.875% per annum and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The offering price for the Notes is 99.896% of its principle
amount. The value of the liability, taking into account of the transaction
costs of RMB14,992,000, was determined upon issuance of the Notes. As at
31 March 2018, the Notes would mature within one year and were classified
as current liability.

The Notes were redeemed and settled at maturity on 14 May 2018 (the
“Maturity Date”) in full at their principal amount together with interest
accrued to the Maturity Date.

R2017F » XEBRITEERES (&
% 1)500,000,000 % 7T » W #EH 20224F 4
B27 AEREE - A£%85500,000,000
XN ZEHFERIT LR2875%2E
EENRTERREBHAXIZHMAR
A LT - BHE2REEBAHLNLE
298.878% c BHEXGHRAEAANRY
17,875,000 t % > BEZEBEEREE
BITHRERE -

& (b) :

R2013F  AEBERTHEERRERR
B 5 Z# ([ Z4 1) 600,000,000 % 7T
WHEHR2018FE5 5 14 BEREEE - X &
%54 600,000,000 E T2 ZEERIT - I
#1.875% 2EEFRRFERNEBE
ERGBMRAT LT - EEREE
AHALH299.896% KRB K
AARMA14,992,000 0% BEZEE
EREEBRTERET - W20185F 3 A 31
B ZEBR—FERA T2EAR
BAaE -

FHEER2018F5 814 B (TEHADE
HECDYCEANEHHRENASHER
BEZNHAMWEFE
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23. BORROWINGS (continued)

The effective weighted average interest rates per annum of bank
borrowings (excluding Notes payable) at the balance sheet dates are as

23. ER(E)

REESBERANRITER(TEE

FE R 45 ) BN AE 39 & R R 4

follows: T
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 F 2016 F
3A31H 12H31H
Us$ ES - 1.72%
Other currencies Hin g 0.75% 0.75%
RMB AR - 4.47%

At 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2016, the Group’s borrowings were

repayable as follows:

MR20185F3 31 H KR 2016512831

B - AEEREHR

FEEEEFRIRWT -

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

2018 2016

3HA31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%F T ARBT T

Within 1 year 1FELRA 3,802,856 4,013,094
Between 1 and 2 years 182F - 5,890,452
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5HF 3,101,257 -
6,904,113 9,903,546

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair values,
as the market interest rates are relatively stable. The fair values are
based on discounted cash flows using a rate based on the borrowing
rate and are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in

HRTEMNEEERE SRR
HELEEAFEES - 2FEDR
RERMERF WA RRIBC R
BERBERBRAFEBMRE?2

e

AEEEBRNREEATIESRES

the following currencies: B :
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 & 2016 £
3HA31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F T ARBT T
RMB AR - 3,982,362
uUs$ ETT 6,873,635 5,890,452
Other currencies Hih s 30,478 30,732
6,904,113 9,903,546
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23. BORROWINGS (continued) 23. B (E)
The Group had the following undrawn bank borrowing facilities as at the NREEEBEXRBAEEEBTIRIERE
balance sheet date: VAR AT B R AL i

31 March 31 December

2018 2016
2018 & 2016 £
38318 128 31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

RMB facilities ARERE 4,170,000 4,336,458
USS$ facilities RTEE 5,795,100 3,575,822
Other facilities Hibmtim 32,357 55,214
9,997,457 7,967,494
24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 24. RIEFREBR
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax EEFERESERELFMEHRERE
liabilities is as follows: DT

31 March 31 December

2018 2016
2018 & 2016 £
38318 128 31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Deferred income tax assets: ELEFSFHEE :
— Deferred income tax assets to —-R12EARKER
be recovered within 12 months EEFRBHEE 212,824 233,691
— Deferred income tax assets to —-R12EA&KER
be recovered after 12 months ELEFSHEE 35,736 47,638
248,560 281,329
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEFSHEs
— Deferred income tax liabilities to -R12E B BRER
be recovered after 12 months ELEFSHEs 144,200 125,101
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24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 24, REFFB{R (E)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
each of the periods, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

EHBELREHEENRBECORE
ZREHRUER - BHREREE)

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: SEIINT :
Deferred income tax assets: BERSHRERE :
Other
temporary
Tax losses differences* Total
Ht gt
AHEHEE =R e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREBTR AR®TR
At 1 January 2016 M20165F1 818 70,696 207,297 277,993
Credit/(charge) to the consolidated e RER
income statement B, (Z8) 35,160 (32,172) 2,988
Exchange differences = - 348 348
At 31 December 2016 201612831 H 105,856 175,473 281,329
Credit/(charge) to the consolidated EHRERER
income statement & (X8H) 20,601 (53,339) (32,738)
Exchange differences ERZELE - (31) (31)
At 31 March 2018 720183 H31H 126,457 122,103 248,560
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTBHR AR :
Withholding
tax Others Total
B Hity e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR AR%®TR
At 1 January 2016 M2016%F1 818 150,859 101 150,960
Charge to the consolidated income
statement ERE W R 8H 210,295 33 210,328
Transfer to tax payable EREENTIE (236,187) - (236,187)
At 31 December 2016 12016512831 H 124,967 134 125,101
Charge to the consolidated income EEEWERT
statement 115,834 - 115,834
Transfer to tax payable EREENTIE (96,735) - (96,735)
At 31 March 2018 20183 H31H 144,066 134 144,200

*

Other temporary differences mainly represent the unrealised

profits, accrued expenses and provisions.

HtERMHEZETERRERE
M ERERARERS -
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24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

190

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of approximately RMB50.9 million (31
December 2016: RMB22.5 million) in respect of tax losses amounting
approximately to RMB203.6 million (for the year ended 31 December
2016: RMB89.9 million) as at 31 March 2018 that can be carried forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses as at 31 March 2018
amounting to RMB1.0 million, RMB55.0 million, RMB41.3 million,
RMB39.1 million and RMB67.2 million will expire in year 2018, year
2019, year 2020, year 2021 and year 2022 respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the earnings of certain subsidiaries
incorporated in PRC for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018
that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future. As to
the other subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, the Group has no plan
to distribute the respective retained earnings as at 31 March 2018.
Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB320,406,000 (31 December
2016: RMB247,507,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and the related unremitted earnings of subsidiaries amount to
RMB6,408,114,000 (31 December 2016: RMB4,950,147,000) as at 31
March 2018.

24, BEFRBR(E)

REUREBAREHFABEME
HABERBANE  AEemsEns
KEEMBERELEMESHEE - R
20183 H31H ' AEBMAULE
LUK SE R REMBUBR A WB K E B
HWARB2/E3608 T(2016F 12
B31H: AR#8,990&8 t) I k
BRRELFSHEEN ARYE5,090
BET(HZE2016F12A31H L &F
E: AR#225087T) - H2018F
331 AZHEEEHEAARE 100
BEx ARM5500BT ARY
413087t ARB3IO0ETMA
R#6,7208 T » #5951 20184 ~
20194 ~ 20204 ~ 2021FM20224F
[ o

HBZE2018E3A31ALE+REAR
FEFMRINE THEBELIBER
ARARDRzBFMEZS2TE
HBECEREEREHEE - i
BEEZMRIWEMMHBARMS -
REBEWEEHIKN2018F3 A
BMMHM B HEERE RBF - 42018
FIAMNA BRI EHARY
320,406,000t (2016128 31H :
AR #8247 507,000 5T ) I R HERIE
EFEHEE MEBMBATMN
KRB F A AKRY6,408,114,000
7T(2016F12831H: A B ¥
4,950,147,000 7T) °
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25. OTHER INCOME 25. HftlkA
Audited Unaudited
RERX REGERX
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
BZ2018F BZE 2016 F BZ3A3MBLET=@EA
3A31H 12HA31H 2018 2017
It+HE@EA LHFE 2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT

Government grants ~ BUF#EEI&€ 624,066 368,789 477,223 429,226
Sale of scraps HEREEYE 72,834 52,928 62,653 50,761
Rental income from  REYEFTS
investment HEWAFEE
properties, net 2,985 2,274 2,413 2,288
Others Hib 11,954 5,545 10,922 5,375
Total et 711,839 429,536 553,211 487,650
The government grants represent subsidy income received from BNEESESEBTHEBERE®N
various government authorities as incentives to certain subsidiaries of HEEWA  ERGBETAEEREAF
the Group in the PRC. ETHBATMER -
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26.
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OTHER GAINS - NET

26. Hfturis— B8

Audited Unaudited
BEZX REEZ
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
BZ2018F BZE2016F BZE3A31BLET=MEA
3A31H 128 31H 2018 2017
IE+HE@EA ILFE 2018 & 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T AR%T T ARBT T
Net foreign exchange
gains =l 95,485 27,230 104,930 13,524
Gains on disposal of HERAFE
financial assets at FEiRBEETR
fair value through NWEmMEE
profit or loss SOE 22,866 10,050 22,866 10,050
Gains on fair value  RAF{EEB
re-measurement of  1BZCER
financial assets at HEemEE
fair value through ollE
profit or loss 25,030 61,556 16,411 52,200
Losses on disposal of HE&EY)3E - #28
property, plantand  R:REHEIRE
equipment, net (12,972) (10,249) (16,501) (3,820)
Donation expenses  }88ERIY (9,048) (18,019) (6,490) (18,225)
Gains on disposal of HEHE s
leasehold land and R+ i fg FA4E
land use rights Z Uz 2,636 - 2,636 -
Others Hi 43,476 15,657 24,532 27,367
Total et 167,473 86,225 148,384 81,096
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. EXPENSES BY NATURE 27. BEHEISMMAX
Audited Unaudited
RER REER
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
HBZ2018F HZE2016F BZ3A31ALtT=M@A
3A31H 12A31H 2018 2017
t+E@EA LEE 2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARBT R ARETR
Raw materials used 2 AR
and changes in REEEE
inventory 10,391,179 7,361,039 8,515,042 7,180,536
Promotion and advertising S8R E%H %
expenses 914,888 664,323 759,673 592,495
Employee benefit ETIRAMXZ
expenses including (BREEZHS)
directors’ emoluments (P#3E28) 4,628,365 3,610,886 3,773,972 3,539,715
(Note 28)
Transportation expenses  E#iF % 1,006,449 816,729 807,965 817,214
Water, electricity and KERGERBAX
energy expenses 847,128 701,402 696,933 672,734

Depreciation of property, #)% - #2ER

plant and equipment FAETE (HiEE6)

(Note 6) 1,110,993 885,871 882,616 893,969
Amortisation of leasehold A& i tith

land and land use rights i FR#E 484

(Note 7) (B3ET) 37,313 27,985 30,334 27,985
Amortisation of intangible B, & & s

assets (Note 9) (GEL) 2,736 867 2,531 861
Depreciation of investment &£ E

properties (Note 8) (Bt 8) 1,872 1,538 1,492 1,534
Operating lease in ERHELH

respect of leasehold REFH

land and buildings KeifE 228,064 168,961 183,838 169,532
Losses on obsolete and BEREE

write-down of inventories  HfiiFiE 1 44,685 68,526 34,291 64,667
Provision for impairment & 5 FEW

of trade receivables HERE 11,633 15,176 11,667 15,142
Auditor's remuneration R EETE# S

— Audit service - BER® 3,880 3,880 3,880 3,880

— Non-audit service — FREUR - 700 - 700
Machinery parts and BESHRRE

maintenance expenses  BiX 315,022 263,928 259,169 268,278
Others Hity 996,747 822,849 820,824 810,027

Total of cost of sales, HEMA - 28
distribution costs and RARITH
administrative expenses B B#&5T 20,540,954 15,414,660 16,784,227 15,059,269
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28. BIiEFIBAX
Audited Unaudited
RER REBER
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
BZ2018% BZ2016%F BZ3A31ALT=M@A
3A31H 12A31H 2018 2017
Lt+EHEA ILFE 2018 F 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR ARBF R ARETR AREF T
Wages and salaries TEREH 3,573,298 2,794,639 2,920,645 2,729,886
Pension and other BkERHM
social welfare HERA 625,640 636,637 462,018 642,139
Other benefits HftiEA 429,427 179,610 391,309 167,690
Total including B aE
Directors’ emoluments ~ E=EE4¢ 4,628,365 3,610,886 3,773,972 3,539,715
(@) Five highest paid individuals (a) HEEEEFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the Group SEEESFHMNEEALERE
included four Directors (2016: four) whose emoluments are reflected FEE(2016F : MK) > HFME
in the analysis shown in Note 38. The emoluments payable to the Mzt 38 2 MM D AT KR o R AEEE
remaining one (2016: one) highest paid individuals during the years are FEEMNHG B (20165F : —R)
as follows: BEHFATWEHMENT :
Audited Unaudited
RER REBER
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December Twelve months
March 2018 2016 ended 31 March
BZ2018% BZ2016%F BZ3A31ALT=M@A
3A31H 12A31H 2018 2017
It+EEA ILFE 2018 F 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBF ARETR ARET T
Salaries i 456 416 363 422
Discretionary bonuses ~ EI1ETEAL 460 500 459 507
Other benefits® Hitng 7 450 341 360 346
1,366 1,257 1,182 1,274
In the band of: BENF
(HK$1,000,001) to (1,000,0018 ) £
(HK$1,500,000) (1,500,000 7% ) - 1 1 1
(HK$2,000,001) to (2,000,001 7T) 2
(HK$2,500,000) (2,500,000 7%) 1 - - -

*
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Other benefits include housing and car allowances.
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 28. BTMmABAX (&)
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 and the year ended 31 BZE2018F3A3MBLETHERAR
December 2016, no payments had been made by the Group to the BZE2016F12A31HLEFE » K&
Directors or the highest paid individuals in respect of inducement to join ESERRB IR EEmOES
or compensation for loss of office. REEFALTIZARIE
29. FINANCE INCOME - NET 29. MBWA —BE
Audited Unaudited
RERX REGERX
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
BZ2018F BZE2016F BZE3A3MBLET=EA
3A31H 128 31H 2018 2017
t+HE@EA LLFE 2018 & 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT

Finance cost EE= %N
—Interest expenses  —fEFFIE
on borrowings A% (297,598) (185,626) (240,963) (203,012)
Finance income RE U A
—Interestincomeon —-HERESE
cash and cash EEYRE
equivalents WA 435,450 276,339 349,680 288,979
Net finance income MEWA 137,852 90,713 108,717 85,967
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30.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

30. FRiEMEH

Audited Unaudited
BEZ KRB
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
HZE20184F HE2016 F HZ3A3MEHLET_EA
3A31H 12H31H 2018 2017
LE+HER LEFE 2018 & 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARBFT ARBTT
Current income tax EHmER
Current income taxon  H3f8, /S F)58
profits for the HEHrEH
period/year 1,319,873 1,171,133 1,061,530 1,116,519
Deferred income tax RIEFTHR
Withholding tax on HESEANBAFRE
dividends from Chinese > @0
mainland subsidiaries 115,834 210,295 96,714 163,754
Origination and reversal ¥t R
of temporary EAE N[
differences 32,738 (2,955) 24,775 (6,516)
Total =t 1,468,445 1,378,473 1,183,019 1,273,757
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30. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 30. FRBINEHN (&)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the 2N B2 H] [ B A5 B i A T B A% AR Y B
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate in the TR il g7 o B B R E B2 25% (R
Chinese mainland of 25% (for the year ended 31 December 2016: 25%) 20164E12H31H IR FE - 25%) &
as follows: SRR BRI AR T -
Audited Unaudited
REZ KRB
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
HZE2018F HZE2016F HEZ3ANMBLETZEAB
3A31H 12H31H 2018 2017
t+HER LEFE 2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT ARBTT ARBFR ARETT

Profit before income tax & Fr {582 i F 8 5,322,733 4,895,848 4,293,467 4,607,674

Income tax calculated AR EIBEREERE

at statutory tax rate in -~ st EHATER

the Chinese mainland 1,330,683 1,223,962 1,073,367 1,151,919
Effect of different tax M B AT TEREL

rates and preferential ~ {BEERRNHE

tax rates of subsidiaries (66,459) (72,983) (55,312) (72,840)
Expenses not deductible A $1#3 B 32

for tax purposes 51,490 17,199 30,108 30,924
Tax loss for whichthe Y ERERIELEIRIE

DTA was not EEMNREBR

recognised 16,790 - 16,790 -

Reversal of DTA which B[O REEIREIEE
could not be realized TEHAZ IR

according to RERRIEEE
management
expectation 20,107 - 21,352 -
Withholding tax on R 5 (B A
dividends from Chinese 2B TEINIR
mainland subsidiaries 115,834 210,295 96,714 163,754
Income tax charge FT1SHR 1,468,445 1,378,473 1,183,019 1,273,757
The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted AAFEHESHSHEERSHER
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman SESEMRMIBEREERAT -
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands AT ER N SEEEFRER -
income tax.
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30. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Enterprises incorporated in the Chinese mainland are subject to Corpo-

rate Income Tax (“CIT”) mainly at rate of 25% (during the year ended 31

December 2016: 25%) during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.

Enterprises incorporated in other places are subject to income tax at the
prevailing rates of 0% to 30% during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2018 (during the year ended 31 December 2016: 0% to 30%).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable

to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the period.

30. FR{SINEM (&)

HZE2018F3H31HILETRHM@A » 7
PERE AR EEIE25%
(B E2016F12H31HIFE :
25%) MEBMEERSER (Tt
(SRl ) o

REE201853/3T1HIE+RER -
ERMMGEMBAINEERRE
HIRITHAERER0%E30% (#
F2016F12B31HIEEE : 0% ZE
30%) BMARIA -

SRR
(a) FEZ
BREABANEZARFAEEFFA

B R TR L 9 B B T B R
2 TSR 5 -

Audited Unaudited
REIZ REBEZ
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December Twelve months
2018 2016 ended 31 March
BZE2018%F HZE2016F BZ3A3MHIE+Z{EA
3A31H 12R331H 2018 2017
IE+HEA IEFE 20184 2017 %
Profit attributable to KABREFBA
equity holders of PG F
the Company (AREEFIT)
(RMB’000) 3,862,603 3,519,168 3,115,834 3,336,858
Weighted average BRITLER
number of ordinary TIHEE I8
shares in issue (FH)
(thousands) 12,500,112 12,706,185 12,496,366 12,644,283
Basic earnings per share Siz& 42 F RMB 30.90 RMB 27.70 RMB 24.93 RMB 26.39
cents cents cents cents
AR#30900 ARKE27.705  AR¥24935%  AR#26.39%
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31. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 31. SBREF (#)
(b) Diluted (b) #E
Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share HRALAREEBEERG  WER
since the Company does not have diluted shares. BERFESRELRBREE -
32. DIVIDENDS 32. KR
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
March 2018 2016
BZ2018F HBZ20165F
3HA31H 12A31H
It+HMEA IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Interim dividend paid of US0.96 SRR ERE
(2016: US0.58) cent S8 0.96 Z1L
per ordinary share (2016 £F : 0.58 3=11li) 790,162 494,314
Proposed final dividend of US0.90 BRAESBERARHRE
(2016: US1.19) cent per ordinary 0% 0.90 =4l
share (note (a)) (2016 % : 1.193=4L) (¥EE (a)) 704,541 1,030,000
Proposed special dividend of US1.25 BRTEBRIFHRE
(2016: nil) cents per ordinary share R 1.25 =4l
(note (b)) (2016 & : £7) (Ff5E (b)) 978,530 -
2,473,233 1,524,314
(@) On 5 June 2018, the Board recommended the payment of a final (a) M2018F6HSH  BEEEE
dividend of US0.90 cent (for the year ended 31 December 2016: EIRAE £2018F 38311
US1.19 cents) per ordinary share, totalling RMB704,541,000 LF+HRERMARBREGRE
(for the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB1,030,000,000) for BR%0.90 XL (BIZ 2016 F 12
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018. The proposed final AS1BEIEFE 1.19%4)

HET AR® 704,541,000 7t (&
Z£20165F12A31A L FE :
AR #1,030,000,0007T) ° &

dividend in respect of the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 is
calculated based on the total number of shares in issue as at the

date of this report. The payment of the proposed final dividend is Z20184%3 831 At +REA
to be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming 458 % S B IR 2. T 32 BB A K 2R
Annual General Meeting. The financial statements do not reflect LD RTROBEE -
this dividend payable. REAZBREZERENANT

FEERRBFRE LERRA
T o B R R AR R R AR I FE A IR

B o
SN
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32. DIVIDENDS (continued) 32. BB (#)
(b) On 5 June 2018, the Board recommended the payment (b) M2018F6A5H EEEE
of a special dividend of US1.25 cents (for the year ended BIRKTEZE2018F3A31H1E
31 December 2016: nil) per ordinary share, totalling THEANFIRESRKRER
RMB978,530,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2016: nil) for B 1.25 ZAU(BZE 2016 F 12 A
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018. The proposed special BMTHIEEE: 8) HF AR
dividend in respect of the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018 #%£978,530,0007C (Bl £2016F
is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue as 12A31BLEFE &) - ®BZE
at the date of this report. The payment of the proposed special 2018331 HIETHERMW
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s BRARBREDEBRARE
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements do BHERITROBLHEE - Ik
not reflect this dividend payable. THIREZEZENRALQTR

RERREBFASE LERERL
o B R AR R AR It BB A IR

Bo
The dividends paid during the fifteen monthes ended 31 March 2018 REZE2018F 3831 HIETEEA
amounted to RMB1,803,847,000, comprising the final dividend for TR R B8 AR 1,803,847,000
the year ended 31 December 2016 of RMB1,013,685,000, the interim 7T BE 2 Bl K2017F6 8 ~ 10
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2017 of RMB395,642,000 B R12B K AF 8 & £2016F 12
and the second interim dividend for the three months ended 30 A3MBHLEFENKREREARKE
September 2017 of RMB394,520,000, which were paid in June, 1,013,685,0007T * Ei£2017F6 B
October and December 2017 respectively. IOALEAREANFTHEEARE

395,642,000 TR B E2017F9 830
HIE=ERAME-XFHREAER
#£394,520,000 7T ©
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33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(a) Cash generated from operations

33. EEEEMBRS

(a) EEELEMNRSE

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
March 2018 2016
Bz2018%F BZ20165F
3A31H 128318
ttHEA FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Profit before income tax BRETISHAI RS 5,322,733 4,895,848
Adjustments for: FBUTEEELRE
— Depreciation of property, plant - - WBRRRIEINE
and equipment (Note 6) (KizE6) 1,110,993 885,871
— Amortisation of leasehold land and -HEL R i AE
land use rights (Note 7) e (MiEE7) 37,313 27,985
— Depreciation of investment —REMENE (fEE8)
properties (Note 8) 1,872 1,538
— Amortisation of intangible assets -ByEEHH
(Note 9) (KIEE9) 2,736 867
— Losses on disposals of leasehold land -REHEI MR i
and land use rights and property, ERENRYE - BE
plant and equipment (Note 26) KRG 2 BB (MiEE26) 10,336 10,249
— Losses on obsolete inventories and -REFERTFE
write-down of inventories (Note 27) HORlES 18 (B EE 27) 44,685 68,526
— Provision for impairment of trade - B 5 RIGRERE
receivables (Note 27) (KFaE27) 11,633 15,176
— Fair value gains on financial assets - ROVEEBBERTE
at fair value through profit or loss NEmEENRER
(Note 26) (B 26) (25,030) (61,556)
— Gain on disposal of financial assets - HERLNTEEBER
at fair value through profit or loss TERNSREENRE
(Note 26) (B 26) (22,866) (10,050)
— Interest income (Note 29) —FE WA (FEE29) (435,450) (276,339)
— Interest expenses (Note 29) — 2R (BT 29) 297,598 185,626
— Share of losses of associates (Note 10) — PGB A BB (MIEE10) 7,939 6,094
6,364,492 5,749,835
Changes in working capital: EEELEE:
— (Increase)/decrease in inventories -FE0Em),m (161,616) 365,362
— Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables ~ — B 5 EUWFURL /(1810) 112,865 (398,382)
— Decrease in prepayments, deposits —BARIE - RERHEAM
and other receivables W RS 76,494 47,202
— (Decrease)/increase in trade payables -BSREAR D), g (58,597) 182,179
—Increase in accruals and other payables ~ — JEHE I 2 H b B FRE A0 279,662 436,283
Cash generated from operations EEELENES 6,613,300 6,382,479
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(a) Cash generated from operations (continued)

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of leasehold land and
land use rights and property, plant and equipment comprise:

33. EEELEMBRS (F)
(a) BEELEMBRE (F)
REEREXRTD EERELHR

T fE AU - HERRE
MRS RA B

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
March 2018 2016
HZE2018 45 HZE2016F
3A31H 12HA31H
It+EHMEA ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Net book amount of property, M - HEERRE

plant and equipment (Note 6) BREFE (MiEE6) 61,197 31,956
Net book amount of leasehold land HELH R L ERARE

and land use rights (Note 7) BREFE (MEE7) 17,628 -
Losses on disposals of leasehold land and B E + #h ] + {5 FARE

land use rights and property, plant DRI - R R1E

and equipment (Note 26) EXx 2 EE (MEE26) (10,336) (10,249)
Proceeds from disposals of leasehold EERSE LMK i ERAE

land and land use rights and property, DRI - R R1E

plant and equipment FriSFE 68,489 21,707
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33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 33. BEEEEMHE S (A)

(b)  Net debt reconciliation (b) MERFIEHIR
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net REEIIT25 S HENES FE
debt for each of the periods presented. REXFEEB I -
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
Net debt B R March 2018 2016
BZ2018F BZ20165F
3A31H 12A31H
IE+HM@EA ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEF T
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 12,499,692 11,557,371
Borrowings — repayable within ER-ER—FREER
one year (including overdraft) (BfEEX) (3,802,856) (4,013,094)
Borrowings — repayable after one year {EFi—BR—FEZEE (3,101,257) (5,890,452)
Net debt B FE 5,595,579 1,653,825
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 12,499,692 11,557,371
Gross debt — fixed interest rates B HARE - EER= (6,873,635) (4,156,202)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BRHARE - FHRE (30,478) (5,747,344)
Net debt B FEE 5,595,579 1,653,825
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HittgE METBELENEE
Borrowings Borrowings
Cash and cash due within due after
equivalents 1 year 1 year Total
HeRk R—FR R—E#
BeEEY IHMER  BHENET wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR%¥TR
Net debt as at R2016FE1 818K
1 January 2016 B EE 9,372,597  (1,672,779)  (6,483,994) 1,215,824
Cash flows BeRE 2,170,096 (2,324,125) 997,935 843,906
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEFZ 14,678 (7,480) (400,303) (393,105)
Other non-cash movements HittFR 25 - (8,710) (4,090) (12,800)
Net debt as at R2016F12 318K
31 December 2016 EBRFE 11,557,371 (4,013,094)  (5,890,452) 1,653,825
Cash flows BeRE 1,069,908 (161,666) 2,551,826 3,460,068
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEFZ (127,587) 389,323 252,002 513,738
Other non-cash movements HttF R85 - (17,419) (14,633) (32,052)
Net debt as at R2018F3 831 8AM
31 March 2018 BRFE 12,499,692 (3,802,856)  (3,101,257) 5,595,579
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34. COMMITMENTS 34. ik
(@) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at 31 March 2018 and 31 December M2018FE3H31H K20165F 12 A
2016 but not yet incurred is as follows: 3B EENERBENEREIE
mT

31 March 31 December

2018 2016

20184 2016

3A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARBFT

Contracted but not accounted for: EENERARE:
— Property, plant and equipment — WP - WEBRBE 42,467 128,725
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KEHEHRIE
Operating lease commitments — as lessee HEHERIE— BAES
The Group leases buildings under lease agreements. The Group’s AEBREBEEEHRZHAEEY -
future aggregate minimum lease payments under these operating AEFBETZERLEHETHREKR
leases are as follows: REENREBRENT :
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
20184 2016 5
3A31H 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T
No later than 1 year 1E LR 39,953 91,806
Later than 1 year and no later 1855
than 5 years 41,654 33,424
Later than 5 years 5L E 52,976 26,571

134,583 151,801
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34. COMMITMENTS (continued) 34. &iE (&)
(b) Operating lease commitments (continued) (b) KEHERIE(E)
Operating lease commitments — as lessor REHERIE—BHHET
The Group leases out certain office premises, plant and equipment AEEREREHERZELEET
under operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms and WMAZEYE BERREE 2ZH
renewal rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under EETEFHRENER - RIBZ
these operating leases are as follows: ZREME KAREEEKHSSZ
BT
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
20184 2016
3A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

No later than 1 year 1FE LA 1,204 2,496

Later than 1 year and no later 1855
than 5 years 1,981 3,969
Later than 5 years 5L E 3,565 4,140
6,750 10,605

205



2017/2018 ANNUAL REPORT
£33 FEHZIBFERERAA

mE KRR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35.

206

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and his families.

(a) Transactions with related parties

35. WHAXS

FEBZERERFTRBETHLE
(REBZEERTHAS) RER
W o

(a) HREBLHNXS

Audited Audited
REX REX
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December
March 2018 2016
HZ2018F HZ2016F
3HA31H 12A31H
Lt+E@EA IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFT
Sales of goods HEEY
— a minority shareholder of a —AEE—-BHWEAR
subsidiary of the Group Z—BADERR 33,251 27,571
Purchases of goods and services BERmRRE
— a company which a Director —-AEE-FESE
of the Group has beneficial BEEREREZ
interest —[AFE] 4,310 3,650
— a minority shareholder of a —AEEMNEARN
subsidiary of the Group DERRR 33 1,341
— a subsidiary of Hot-Kid Holdings — Hot-Kid Holdings Limited
Limited which is beneficially (FEEEFER
owned by the Chairman BEZLARE)Z
of the Group —EME AR 1,638 1,310
Total purchases of goods BERMMLREREAS
and services 5,981 6,301
Advertising Expense BER%
— a company controlled by - FEEETEEEEGEZ
the Chairman of the Group —EAFE] 46,601 13,594
Rental expenses of buildings EFHEeMX
— companies controlled by the - FrEEEEEEEGEZ
Chairman of the Group NG| 51,073 38,690
Rental income of buildings BFEASWA
— companies jointly controlled by —REEEFEER L EEGIRE
the Chairman of the Group ZNT) 2,238 1,791
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

35. WBAXH (F)

(a) EBBAIHRZ (&)

Unaudited Unaudited
RIBEZ RISEX
Twelve months Twelve months
ended 31 ended 31
March 2018 March 2017
BZ2018F BZE2017%F
3HA31H 3HA31H
E+=@A E+=1{EA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Sales of goods HEEY
— a minority shareholder of - REE-BEHRBARZ
a subsidiary of the Group —ZVERE 26,797 27,369
Purchases of goods and services BERmRRE
— a company which a Director of the - AEE-ZEEHEES
Group has beneficial interest Emz—EoHE 3,446 4,084
— a minority shareholder of —REEMEATN
a subsidiary of the Group DERRR 33 1,341
— a subsidiary of Hot-Kid Holdings — Hot-Kid Holdings Limited
Limited which is beneficially (FEEFEEREFZAR)
owned by the Chairman Al
of the Group MBA TR 1,310 1,310
Total purchases of goods and services BB/ & RIEE 4,789 6,735
Advertising Expense BEH%
— a company controlled by the - FrEEETEEEEHEZ
Chairman of the Group —BAF 36,031 24,164
Rental expenses of buildings BFHESMX
— companies controlled by the - REEXEEE
Chairman of the Group JEHIRE 2 AT 41,400 39,029
Rental income of buildings BFREASWA
— companies jointly controlled by - rEBEEHEELR
the Chairman of the Group EHIRE 2 DT 1,791 1,791

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the above transactions
are carried out in the ordinary course of business and in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

AAAEFRALRTINARE
7548 12 7R At AR5 40 B 4 3 MR
5 o
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
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(b) Balances with related parties

35. WBAXH (F)

(b) EEBAERETTHVAEER

Audited Audited
BREX REX
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
20184 2016 F
3A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Trade receivables (Note 14) B 2 EER (FiEE 14)
— a minority shareholder of a —-REE-BEHEARE
subsidiary of the Group Z—RBVERER 12,255 11,470
Other receivables (Note 15) HAb R (T 15)
— subsidiaries of a company which - rEEEEER
is beneficially owned BB Z AT
by the Chairman of the Group F B A &) 2,451 4,973
Other non-current liabilities HihERBEE
— a company jointly controlled by the —REBEEHREHE
Chairman of the Group EEE s —BAF 11,723 12,873
Other payables HAnpESR
— a company jointly controlled by the —REEEFEHER L EEGIRE
Chairman of the Group Z—RBAT 919 919

The receivables are unsecured, bear no interest and without fixed
repayment terms. There is no provision held against receivables from
related parties as of 31 March 2018 (31 December 2016: nil).

In March 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a building lease
arrangement with Beijing Want-Yang Foods Ltd. (“Beijing Want-Yang”),
a company jointly controlled by the Chairman of the Group, with a
contract amount of RMB25,750,000 and a rental period of 20 years.
Beijing Want-Yang prepaid RMB17,470,000 to the Group in 2013.
During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, the Group recognized
rental income of RMB1,694,000 (during the year ended 31 December
2016: RMB1,355,000) in “other income” in the consolidated financial
statements. The remaining balance of RMB11,723,000 (31 December
2016: RMB12,873,000) and RMB919,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB919,000) is recognized as “other non-current liabilities” and “other
payables”as of 31 March 2018, respectively.

FERREEER RERTEEE
BEGER - DT HR2018F 3 A 31
B 3 5 T FE Uk BE B 05 FRIE 1E B S
(20161283180 : #|&) »

201338 » NEEM B A= EdL
AE¥FERBRAE ([dE=EEFE]
HEAEXEEXEHBERABENEZ
AENIABFHERYE  GHNEE
B AR# 25,750,000 - FHEIAH
204 o b AEER 2013 FE B AEE
AR AR®17,470,0007T - REZE
20183 A31 AL THMA » K&
BRGEEUMHRER 2 [ HAWA ]
BRES WA ARYE1,694,000 7T (F
Z2016F12A31BLEFE : AR
1,355,0007T) ° A20185F3 831 H &k
8 AR #11,723,000 7T (2016 £ 12
HA31H : AR%12,873,0007T) R A
E#919,0007t (201612311 :
AE#¥919,0007t) Bl 5 BRI HAbIE
FBEE IR EMENRIPER -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. MBHAXS (&)
(c) Key management compensation (c) XEEBAESHE
Key management includes Directors (executive and non-executive) TEEBAEBEES (MTESH
and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key FHITES)NSREEBAE - @E
management for employee services is shown below: ZEBAEXNERBEIRBMNE
NRENSHMESOT :
Audited Unaudited
RER RSB
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 31 December Twelve months
March 2018 2016 ended 31 March
BZ2018% BZ2016F BZ3A3MBLT=EA
3A31H 12H831H 2018 2017
+EMEA LEERE 20185 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBFR ARBTFT ARBF R

Fees e 3,159 2,196 2,508 2,223
Salaries e 7,562 6,176 6,040 6,187
Discretionary bonuses ~ EJf51E4L 39,437 49,361 39,146 49,827
Other benefits HEF 4,118 3,902 3,300 3,527
Employer’s contribution {BE¥EK S5 S
to pension scheme AR 459 273 365 276
Total st 54,735 61,908 51,359 62,040
36. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 36. HIFERFIHERZIESH
INTERESTS
During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, the Group sold 20% REZE2018FE3831HIE+HM@EA
interest of a wholly-owned subsidiary for the amount of RMB98,000,000 BiRS - ANEEE LA R 98,000,000
with the effect as follows: TZEeBEE—R2EWNBLIAN

20% RHE - HLEHIIWT ¢

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2018 2016

HZE2018 45 HZE 2016 F
3A31H 12A31H
IE+EHMEA ILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBFT

Share of net assets disposal HERIHBRARFEESH (80,000) -
Consideration received S UREESIMERNR(E

from non-controlling interests 98,000 -
Excess of consideration received RSN IR S e

recognised in the transactions R HHER

with non-controlling BWRREZELE

interests reserve within equity 18,000 -
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. FLTIEEARE  WEE He

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

s €934 % 1]

COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company ARTEEAGBR
31 March 31 December
2018 2016
2018 2016 &
3H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FkREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y13 - M RRE 3 7
Investments in subsidiaries R B A BMIRE 5,579,054 6,154,437
5,579,057 6,154,444
Current assets RBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEULFE B A B IR TE 1,378,777 3,634,121
Prepayments, deposits and FANFIE - EER
other receivables H bR 964 1,347
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 208,263 99,448
1,588,004 3,734,916
Total assets HWEE 7,167,061 9,889,360
EQUITY xS
Equity attributable to equity KAGERFEA
holders of the Company iR
Share capital i 1,871,067 1,880,898
Reserves &G Note(a) 3,852,267 5,200,427
Kzt (a)
Total equity R 5,723,334 7,081,325
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities RBAE
Due to subsidiaries BB A TNIE 1,393,563 2,803,527
Other payables HAnpESR 50,164 4,508
Total liabilities BWERE 1,443,727 2,808,035
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 7,167,061 9,889,360

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 5 June 2018 and was signed on its behalf.

ARBEEEBERCHESERN
201856 A5 At - WRKRESS
BE o

Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
BAEX KA
Director Director
B =
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. FLAFEERER  KEK -He
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE MERRERSE (Z)
COMPANY (continued)

Income statement of the Company ARAaWEER
Audited Unaudited
Fifteen
months Year ended
ended 31 31 December Twelve months
March 2018 2016 ended 31 March*
HE2018F HZ2016F BZ3AMBELT=ER"
3A31H 128318 2018 2017
E+HE@A LEE 20185 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETT AR¥TR ARET T
Dividend income REWA 1,438,938 4,921,436 1,438,938 4,921,436
Other gains/(losses), net At/ (F518) — F5 2,063 (657) 1,996 (591)
Administrative expenses  {THE (14,916) (8,737) (13,406) (10,022)
Operating profit BERE 1,426,085 4,912,042 1,427,528 4,910,823
Finance income FEWA 4,259 26 4,258 26
Profit before income tax B 5% A %18 1,430,344 4,912,068 1,431,786 4,910,849
Income tax expense FEHER - - - -
Profit for the period/year i,/ E I8 1,430,344 4,912,068 1,431,786 4,910,849

Profit attributable to: ~ FE{5FITE :
—Equity holders of the ~ — A ERER
Company BEA 1,430,344 4,912,068 1,431,786 4,910,849

* Voluntarily presented *BEREZ75
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. FLAFEERER  WEK -He
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE RERRERSE (Z)
COMPANY (continued)

Cash flow statement of the Company ARABERER
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2018 2016
HZ2018F HZ2016F
3A31H 12A31H
+AaMEA FE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBT R

Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRERE

Cash used in operations EEMANERES Notef#ifz# (b) (12,042) (9,537)

Interest received 2WFE 4,259 26
Net Cash used in EETBMAN

operating activities FRE (7,783) (9,511)
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHNRERE

Dividends received from subsidiaries ) T 2 AU ER AV AR 2. 3,772,093 3,089,442
Net Cash generated BETEEEN

from investing activities BHRE 3,772,093 3,089,442
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNRERE

Shares repurchased and cancelled 15 iR 13 (322,524) (1,433,062)

Dividends paid to equity holders EADRAEEFEA

of the Company IARE (1,803,847) (1,537,428)

Repayment of amount due to subsidiaries ~ {&BENHIB D RAHRE (1,491,732) (177,866)
Net Cash used BMEEBTAN

in financing activities FRE (3,618,103) (3,148,356)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash REeRASEEY

and cash equivalents #n,/ (R B8 146,207 (68,425)

Cash and cash equivalents B/ SNNRER

at beginning of period/year ReZEY 99,448 134,720

Exchange (losses)/gains EX (&E)iH (37,392) 33,153
Cash and cash equivalents B/ FRNREER

at end of the period/year BeZEY 208,263 99,448
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37. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 37. FLAFEERER  KEK -He
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE MERRERSE (Z)
COMPANY (continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MizE (a) AN D B REEEE
Share Currency Retained
premium Realignment earnings Total
BRI 1E BEHES REER e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT

As at 1 January 2016 A 2016%F1 8 1H 462,130 (716,446) 3,046,159 2,791,843
Profit for the year FERE - - 4,912,068 4,912,068
Currency translation & H¥5E &,

differences =58 - 426,533 - 426,533
Shares repurchased T #E KR8

and cancelled 2R - - (1,392,589) (1,392,589)
Dividends paid TRHRE - - (1,537,428) (1,537,428)
As at 31 December 2016 72 2016% 12 B 31 H 462,130 (289,913) 5,028,210 5,200,427
As at 1 January 2017 A 2017%F1H81H 462,130 (289,913) 5,028,210 5,200,427
Profit for the period ~ H3P9F|;HE - - 1,430,344 1,430,344
Currency translation & H¥5E &,

differences =58 - (612,775) - (612,775)
Shares repurchased T #E R

and cancelled 2R - - (361,882) (361,882)
Dividends paid TR - - (1,803,847) (1,803,847)
As at 31 March 2018 201843 H31H 462,130 (902,688) 4,292,825 3,852,267
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7. ERFREARE  BEIX -He

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE REXREREE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Note (b) Cash used in operations MIZE (b) & EFTAMES
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2018 2016
HZ20185F HZ20165F
3A31H 12A31H
ttHEEA FFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Profit before income tax BR AT 1550 A0 7588 1,430,344 4,912,068
Adjustments for: FBUTEEELRE
— Depreciation of property, — W% - HER
plant and equipment REIE 4 3
— Interest income - FEWA (4,259) (26)
— Dividend income Y ON (1,438,938) (4,921,436)
(12,849) (9,391)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
— Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, -BEARE RER
deposits and other receivables HitbEWFERS  (3810) 383 (142)
— Increase/(decrease) in accruals -t EARAMENAR
and other payables 2,/ (%) 424 (4)
Cash used in operations EEMANES (12,042) (9,537)
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38. EXiEFIREE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERaNEEAEMS

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out AARBESKRaREERAENS
below. HHMT o

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018, emoluments paid or HZ2018FE3H31HILETHM@EA -
payable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the BAEEzZATZENSENME
Company or its subsidiary undertaking: (TRBAEABREME R REE)

L/(1 N
Estimated

allowances Employer’s
and  contribution

Discretionary benefits to benefit

Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme Total
HtERN  EEHEAE

Bspg ik e BfEleAd M EREE HE [ @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARWTR

Executive Directors: BiTES !
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BATREE 83 1,222 33,637 300 3 35,273
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BERAE 83 293 306 525 - 1,207
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RENEHE 499 682 1,078 450 21 2,730
Mr. Chan Yu-Feng EBRELE 83 570 718 345 21 1,737
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BEMEE 83 527 285 240 - 1,135
Non-executive Directors: FuTES:
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BT 83 - - - - 83
Mr. Maki Haruo BEXLE 83 - - - - 83
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BYEEE 83 - - - - 83
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BElEE 499 = 1,030 = = 1,529
Independent non-executive Directors: BYFHITES :
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock ERELE 499 - - - - 499
Dr. Pei Kerwei ARt 499 - - - - 499
Mr. Chien Wen-Guey B EE 166 - - - - 166
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou SRAKE 166 - - - - 166
Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin BEWEL 250 - - - - 250
3,159 3,294 37,054 1,860 73 45,440
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) 38. EXiEMRELE (E)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) (a) EERSHEEAEME (A)
For the year ended 31 December 2016, emoluments paid or payable in BZE2016F12A31HLELEE  ®BE
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company or EEATZENSENSHE (T
its subsidiary undertaking: ARATRREMBARALZ)WOT ¢
Estimated
allowances Employer’s
and contribution
Discretionary benefits to benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme Total
HibERN  EXHEHKE
Bspg e e gL fTe8ER Bl @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR

Executive Directors: HIES:
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BT A4 67 960 42,911 240 23 44,201
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEIAE 67 420 1,300 360 - 2,147
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERREE 67 144 400 370 - 981
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RENEE 399 537 1,150 360 14 2,460
Mr. Chan Yu-Feng EBZEE4E 67 440 800 268 14 1,589
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BEXMEE 65 414 320 192 - 991
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BRmEE 67 - - - - 67
Mr. Maki Haruo BEXREE 67 - - - - 67
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien 3oyt 67 - - - - 67
Independent non-executive Directors: BYFHTES
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SXELE 399 - - - - 399
Dr. Pei Kerwei ARt 399 - - - - 399
Mr. Chien Wen-Guey BSR4 133 - - - - 133
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou TRAKE 133 - - - - 133
Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin BEWELT 199 - - - - 199
2,196 2,915 46,881 1,790 51 53,833
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) 38. EXiEMIREE (E)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) (a) EERaNEEAEMWE (E)
For the twelve months ended 31 March 2018, emoluments paid or #HZE2018 £3 A31 HIE+Z=M@A -
payable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the BRAEEzZATZENSENMME
Company or its subsidiary undertaking: (TRBAABREME R REE)
W
Estimated

allowances Employer’s
and  contribution

Discretionary benefits to benefit

Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme Total
HthER  ETHBAE

BEfE ik e BfgleAd  fMiEsEE HE [ #at

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARWTR

Executive Directors: BiTES !
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BHiREE 66 97 33,358 240 25 34,660
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BRREE 66 244 305 420 - 1,035
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen R EE 396 543 1,076 360 16 2,391
Mr. Chan Yu-Feng EBEEE 66 454 716 276 16 1,528
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BEMEE 66 420 285 192 - 963
Non-executive Directors: FniTES:
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BT 66 - - - - 66
Mr. Maki Haruo BERLE 66 - - - - 66
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BuEEE 66 - - - - 66
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BElEE 396 = 1,027 = = 1,423
Independent non-executive Directors: BV FHITES :
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SXfELE 396 - - - - 396
Dr. Pei Kerwei ARfEEt 306 - - - - 396
Mr. Chien Wen-Guey EIREEE 132 - - - - 132
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou TRAKE 132 - - - - 132
Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin BREWELT 198 - - - - 198
2,508 2,632 36,767 1,488 57 43,452
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) 38. EXiEMRELE (E)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) (a) EERSHREEAEME (A)
For the twelve months ended 31 March 2017, emoluments paid or HZ2017F3 A31 HIE+=@R -
payable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the MAESZALTZENRENSENE
Company or its subsidiary undertaking: (THRBAEABREME R REE)
M
Estimated
allowances Employer’s
and contribution
Discretionary benefits to benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme Total
HibERN  EXHEHKS
Bspg e e gL fTe8ER Bl @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR

Executive Directors: HWIES:
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BATREE 67 977 43489 240 23 44,79
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEIAE 67 322 1274 270 - 1,933
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERREE 67 172 394 420 - 1,053
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen R ks 405 545 1,127 360 15 2,452
Mr. Chan Yu-Feng EBELE 67 458 785 276 15 1,601
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BEMEE 67 419 315 192 - 993
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BRhEE 67 - - - - 67
Mr. Maki Haruo BEXREE 67 - - - - 67
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien [y -yt 67 - - - - 67
Independent non-executive Directors: BV FHTES
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock ERELE 405 - - - - 405
Dr. Pei Kerwei ARt 405 - - - - 405
Mr. Chien Wen-Guey BSR4 135 - - - - 135
Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou TRAKE 135 - - - - 135
Dr. Kao Ruey-Bin BhiEL 202 - - - - 202
2,223 2,893 47,384 1,758 53 54,311
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

The Group did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2018.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities connected
with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made available in favour
of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities connected with
directors subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2018.

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31 March 2018 or at any time during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018.

38. EFRFIR MR (F)

(b) EBRMAKRAZILEF

EENEE2018F3A31BLETH
18 B b £ U R 5 A% 2 UK B AE AT 3B fR
BRAHKRIEEA] -

(c) MREHEZRBEMERAE=FIE
HEVEE

KEBRE E2018FE3H318 Lk
THEHEAYEMERESREEME
ME=HZAEE -

(d) MES - ZZZEEBEHNE
AEBRZESHEBEEEIR
HNER  EEFMNEMRI S
HE R

RERFABZE2018F3A31HLE
THEEAEMEE AEDES -
EREESEFNEABBRZE
ENEBIBREMNER  £EX
MEMRZS -

(e) EZHEXRS ZHHAREME
K

MN20185 3831 BEFEE 20185
3A31ALL+RERFEMEERE A4
AU EFTEASRAER 2 EHK
MARAB2ESEESEEETES
BEEABBZCEERS - ZHH

&M -
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. FEMBEAA
The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries of the FR2018FE3 A31H» REENETE
Group as at 31 March 2018. N EATEBEHIUT -
Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitallregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
BEITR p3- 1)
B/ HemE/ HEME
NS HIER/HE &R Bigsn% IEE
Directly owned
ERER
Want Want Holdings Ltd. Singapore US$212,331,000 99.99  Investment Holding
EREERERAR g 212,331,000 ¢ RES
Long Wave Foods Limited HKSAR HK$100 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRBRAA EARE 100747 RAEARES
Want-Want Foods Limited HKSAR HK$2 100  Trading of food and beverages
EERAERAR EARE 28T RAEARES
Leisure Foods Limited HKSAR HK$1 100  Trading of food and beverages
RIRRRBRAA EARE 1T RAEARES
Like Snacks Trading Limited HKSAR HK$1 100  Trading of food and beverages
BYRREHERAR EARE 1T RAEARES
Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$10,000,000 100 Investment holding
ERERERERAR EARRE 10,000,000 % 7T RES
Big Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR Us$1 100 Investment holding
EARERRBRAA EARE 1%£57 RE&R
Want Want China Finance Limited BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
ABRIES 50,000 %7 R&R
Indirectly owned
e
Anji Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RERERMERAF HEER 1,400,000 %51 of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
Anging Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
REAERRERAT HEER 7,000,000 £ of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
Anging Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZERERMERAT HEER 100,000,000 £7¢ of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
Anyang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$8,930,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RFIERRERAT HEER 8,930,000 %7 of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. XEMBEAE(£E)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
BETR F£8
21/ fRRE/ RENE
NCE:1 RER/WE AMER BER% IEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
MRS (8
Bao Want Technology Packaging Taiwan region NTD9,000,000 60  Sales of chemical materials
Materials Co., Ltd. BERE 9,000,000 #r & and plastic films/bags
AR ENRHBERAR HELBNRREBR /%
Baotou Salagi Ming Want Dairy Co., Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
OERNERELEERAR HEER 10,000,000 % T of food and beverages
RERFHRRAKH
Beijing Be-Want Foods Ltd." Chinese mainland US$9,350,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
tEpEaRERAR" HEE R 9,350,000 £ 7T of food and beverages
RERFHRRAKH
Beijing Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$13,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
tEAEERERAR" hEE R 13,000,000 % T of food and beverages
RER D HRRAKH
Beijing Cheng-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,440,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TERERRERAR HEER 1,440,000 T of food and beverages
RER D HRRAKH
Beijing Dairy-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$25,100,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TZEAERRERAA hEER 25,100,000 £ 7T of food and beverages
RER D HRRAKH
Beijing Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,400,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TZRIERRERAA hEER 1,400,000% T of food and beverages
RERFHRRAKH
Beijing Lion-Want Packing Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$2,100,000 100  Manufacturing of packing materials
tEREaEERAR’ HEERA 2,100,000 5% siEaEny
Beijing Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,400,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
LEHRERRERAR hEER 1,400,000% T of food and beverages
RER D HRRAKH
Beijing Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TrEERRERAR FEER 6,000,000 %7 of food and beverages
RERDHRRIAKH
Changchun Want Want Foods Ltd.*  Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
REEERMERAA" mEER  AR#S50,000,0007 of food and beverages
RERFHRRAKH
Changsha Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$19,320,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
RUBERRERAF FEER 19,320,000 £ T of food and beverages
RER D HRRAKH
Chengdu Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$35,700,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
AL LERAR" hEER 35,700,000 £7¢ of food and beverages
RERFHRRAKH
Chengdu Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,800,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
REEERRERAR HEE R 9,800,000 £ 7T of food and beverages

RERDHERMMAR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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39. EEMBAE (&)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
EBTR 358
ZE /i HERE/ HENE
NSIES RZER /e HBEX MR  EEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
mEa(E)
First Family Enterprise Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD66,500,000 100  Trading of snack Food
EREHRBERAA RIEHE 66,500,000 %A1 HNERRES
Guangdong Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.*  Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ERPEAZERAR mEER AR 50,000,000 7T of food and beverages
RERHHRAITH
Guangdong Want Want Foods Ltd.*  Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EREERAERAR mEER AR 50,000,000 7T of food and beverages
RERHHRBITH
Guangxi Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$25,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ERBELRERAR hEER 25,000,000 7t of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
Guangxi Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ERRERRERAT HEER 11,000,000 £ ¢ of food and beverages
RERAHRBITH
Guangzhou Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,850,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ENERRERAT HEER 4,850,000 %5 of food and beverages
RERHHRATTH
Guangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ENAERRERAT HEER 10,000,000 %% of food and beverages
RERHHRAITH
Guangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ENIERRERAR HEER 6,000,000 £ of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
Guangzhou Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ENPEAEBRAF HEER 15,000,000 £ ¢ of food and beverages
RERHHRAITH
Guangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$9,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ENEERRERAR HEER 9,000,000 %7 of food and beverages
RETHHR AR
Guangzhou Xiang-Want Foods Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$14,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ENEERRERAT HEER 14,000,000 %51 of food and beverages
RERAHR AR
Guangzhou Yong-Want Foods Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ENXERRERAT HEER 7,000,000 %7 of food and beverages
RERAHR AR
Hangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,250,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
RNAERRERAH HEER 11,250,000 £ ¢ of food and beverages
RERAHRAITH
Hangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
RNIERRERAR HEER 4,500,000 %5 of food and beverages
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. XEMBEAR (&)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group

Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
BEBITR KEE
BiE/H HERE/ HENE
RARAEH RIER/HE AMER Bigi% IEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
RS (8)
Hangzhou Mei-Want Machinery Ltd. Chinese mainland US$600,000 100  Manufacturing and sales
MMER#MEERRAF FEER 600,000 7T of machineries and related services
BUE R SR ER MR AR
Hangzhou Sun-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
MR AERAE HESR 12,000,000 £ ¢ of food, wine and beverages
RERHHRM  ERERSH
Hangzhou Tiane Foods Chemical Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,050,000 100  Manufacturing of dehydrating,
MMEELIERAR HESR 1,050,000 %51 deoxidating, preservative and
related products
BUER R BREM
By R AR E
Hangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd." Chinese mainland US$9,800,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
HNEERRERAR" HEER 9,800,000 £ of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
Harbin Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
KEZEERAERAS HESR 5,000,000 £ of food and beverages
RETAHRAATR
Hefei Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
SIEEERAERAT HESR 6,000,000 £ of food and beverages
RERAHRAATH
Henan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,750,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
MERERMERAT HESR 1,750,000 %51 of food and beverages
RERAHR AR
Houma Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,700,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
RERRERABRAF HESR 3,700,000 £ of food and beverages
RERAHR AR
Huaian Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$85,100,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EXHERRERAT HESR 85,100,000 of food and beverages
RERAHRAATH
Hubei Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
HIIERRERAT HESR 4,500,000 %5 of food and beverages
RERHHRATTH
Hubei Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
HtEEeRERAR" HEER 10,000,000 %7 of food and beverages
RERAHRATTH
Hunan Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$57,400,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
HEAERRERAT HESR 57,400,000 %7 of food and beverages
RERHHRAATR
Hunan Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,500,000 100  Manufacturing of packing bags
HEERENEMARERAS HEER 5,500,000 %7 and carton boxes

HEORELAR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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39. XEWELAT (&)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
EBITR FE£E
&/ BRERE/ HENE
KL RIER/HE AMmER BEE% IEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
%A ()
Hunan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
HERERRERAT HEER 15,000,000 £ ¢ of food and beverages
BERAHR AR
| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD10,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BERARIERHERAT SEME  10,000,0005 4% of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Island Port Corporation BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERUES 25,000,000 %7¢ REAR
Jiangxi Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,600,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TRYERAERAT HEER 12,600,000 £7¢ of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Jiangxi Want Want Foods Ltd." Chinese mainland US$11,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
IAEELRERAR mE R 11,000,000 % ¢ of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Jiaxing Mei-Want Machinery Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,500,000 100  Manufacturing and sales of
REXHERHSERRAR HEERN 12,500,000 £ ¢ machineries and related services
R RHERH S AR
Jiaxing Shibanishi Want Precision Chinese mainland RMBS5,600,000 60  Manufacturing and sales of
Equipment Manufacturing Co.,Ltd.* mEER  AR5,600,0007T machineries and related services
EASEERERHREERAR" RERHERB D AR
Leading Guide Corporation BVI US$40,000,000 100 Trading of raw materials,
RBRUHES 40,000,000 7T machineries and etc.
RIH - BHEE S
Lianyungang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$8,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EEREERRERA HEER 8,000,000 %7t of food and beverages
BERAHR AR
Longchang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EEIHRAERAT HEER 12,000,000 7T of food and beverages
RERAHR AT
Longchang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EREAZERAT" mESERN  ARE50,000,0007 of food and beverages
BERAHERMMEH
Longchang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,750,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EERERMERAT HEER 1,750,000 =T of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Longchang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$700,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BERERRERAT HEIERN 700,000%7 of food and beverages
BERAHR AR
Longchang Xiang Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,100,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BEXERMERAT HEER 4.100,000 %5 of food and beverages
BERAHR AR
Luohe Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB100,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BIRERABRAT" HmEER AR 100,000,000 of food and beverages

RIER AR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. XEMBEAR (&)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
ERTR F5E
BE /R BERE/ HENE
NGE:T RIER/HE EMER BiEE% IEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
%A ()
Luohe Ru-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BUAERAERAR mESRN  ARES50,000,0007T of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Luohe Want-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BARERAERAF HEER 7,000,000 %7 of food and beverages
RERAHR AT
Media Sense INC. BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERVEHS 25,000,000 %7¢ "E&R
Ming Want Worldwide Limited BVI US$250,000 100 Investment holding
RERVEHS 250,000 %3¢ RE&R
Nanjing Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$97,050,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BRAHERAERAT HEER 97,050,000 7 of food and beverages
RERAHR AT
Nanjing Cubic-Want Plastic Ltd. Chinese mainland US$2,500,000 100  Production of packaging
ARRHEEEMRERAR hEER 2,500,000 &7t materials and cans
EEORMNLE
Nanjing Fore-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,300,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EREERRERAT HEERN 6,300,000 %7 of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Nanjing Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$17,000,000 100  Manufacturing of packing bags
HREEERERAR EER 17,000,000 %7 and carton boxes
REARRRER
Nanjing Lion-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,700,000 100  Manufacturing of packing materials
BRAROKERAT REKR 3,700,000 % 7T REQRYR
Nanjing Minghong Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 51 Manufacturing and distribution
BHREAAERRERAR HEERN 15,000,000 %51 of food and beverages
RERAHR AT
Nanjing Meito Want-Want Foods Co., Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$3,500,000 80  Manufacturing and distribution
EREEETERRERAR HEIERN 3,500,000 £ 7 of food and beverages
BERAHR ARSI
Nanjing Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$2,500,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BREERAERAR HEERN 2,500,000 %7 of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Nanjing Sen-Want Dairy Co., Ltd." Chinese mainland RMB400,000,000 80  Manufacturing and distribution
ERAEALERAR hEER AR 400,000,000 T of food and beverages
RERAHRARIR
Nanjing Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$6,400,000 91 Manufacturing and distribution
HREERRERAR hEER 6,400,000 of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Ningxia Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EEPRHEALERAA HEER 12,000,000 5T of food and beverages

RERDHRARTNR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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39. XEWELAT (&)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
EBITR KEE
&/ HERE/ HENE
KL RIER/HE AMmER Bigi% IEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
%A ()
Qihe Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$35,130,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
ETERERAERAT FEER 35,130,000 of food and beverages
RERAHRAIH
Quanzhou Lee-want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
SNIERRERAT HEER 15,000,000 ¢ of food and beverages
RERAHRAITH
Quanzhou Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
FNFERAERAT HEER 10,000,000 £5¢ of food and beverages
RERHHRAITH
Shaanxi Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese mainland US$350,000 100  Trading of food and beverages
REREHEERAF HEER 350,000 and related activities
RBRERE RS
Shandong Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
IEAERRERAT HEER 4,500,000 %5 of food and beverages
RERHHR AR
Shandong Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100  Manufacturing and sales of packaging
IIRERBEMRERAR HEER 5,000,000 5 materials and carton boxes
RERFEARINRAR
Shandong Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$62,350,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
RERRABRAF FEER 62,350,000 of food and beverages
HERHHRAITR
Shandong Want-Yuan Animal Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100  Dairy farming and milk production
Husbandry Co., Ltd.* HEZER  ARH50,000,0007 ih4EARIEE
WERRSAERRAR"
Shanghai Sen-Want Trading Ltd. Chinese mainland RMB60,000,000 100  Trading of food and beverages
LERENEERAR HEERN  AR60,000,0007 and technology services
RBRNE FRRITEL %%
Shanggao Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,800,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TERERAERAT HEER 1,800,000 %5¢ of food and beverages
RERHHRAATH
Shanggao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TEERERAERAT HEER 5,000,000 5 of food and beverages
RERHHRAATH
Shanghai Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
FEIRRRERAR HESR 15,000,000 ¢ of food and beverages
RERHHRAITH
Shanghai Want Want Foods Group Co., Ltd.  Chinese mainland US$30,350,000 100  Provision of consultancy services
LEEHRAEEERAT HEER 30,350,000 £7¢ and information
REGEARB R &R
Shanghai Want-Want Network Chinese mainland RMB800,000 100  Trading of food and beverages and
Technology Co., Ltd. HEER AR 800,000 T related activities online

EERAENARAR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. XEWELAT (&)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
ERTR F5E
&/ BRERE/ HENE
N1 HIER/ B EMER BiEE% IEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
R (8
Shanghai Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese mainland US$140,000 100  Trading of food and beverages and
LEEEBEERAR HEER 140,000 5% related activities
RBRERE AR ARREREE
Shenyang Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,950,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EEAERAERAT HEER 9,950,000 ¢ of food, wine and beverages
BERAHRA  ERRRR
Shenyang Rice-Want Cereals & Oils LtdChinese mainland US$9,600,000 100  Processing and sales of rice
EHEEEhERERAT HEER 9,600,000 £t and oil products
KRHERMIRHE
Shenyang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
EEEERRERAT HEER 10,000,000 ¢ of food and beverages
RERAHR AT
Shenyang Yan-Want Rice Flour Chinese mainland US$3,300,000 100 Rice Flour Manufacturing
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* HEER 3,300,000 5T B
BB EEAMRERRAR"
Shijiazhuang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$22,750,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
AREREALERAT hEER 22,750,000 £ 7T of food and beverages
BERAHRRTHRH
Shuangcheng Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,620,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
KEEENREEREBRAT HEER 3,620,000 7T of food and beverages
RER A HR AR
Tongchuan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,600,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
HIEERAERAF HEERN 15,600,000 7T of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Tongchuan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,750,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
HIFERAKERAF HEER 6,750,000 £ 7 of food and beverages
BERAHR AT
Want Want Food Pte Ltd. Singapore SGD100,000 100  Trading of food and beverages
EERARAAERAF Hing 100,000 % I3 e RAEARES
Want Want Four Seas Company Limited HKSAR HK$2,000,000 70 Distributing of food and beverages
L P A PR 2 A FilFR 2,000,000 and related activities
AHER AR RAEEE
Want Want Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY100,000,000 60  Import, export and distribution of food
R E A it A 100,000,000 B and beverages and related services
REREEHEL O R AU RABRRE
Weifang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
B EERREBRAR HEER 3,000,000 5T of food and beverages
RER A HRAMKH
Wingate Overseas Holdings Ltd. BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
RBRIES 50,000 7T RERR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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39. XEWBARE (&)

Countrylplace  Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital %  Principal activities
ERITR F£E
BIE /i BRERE/ HENE
KR RIER/HE AMmER BEz% IEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
Ri%HE ()
Wellstand Enterprises Limited BVI US$1 100  Trading of raw materials, machineries
RERUES 1£7 and efc.
RIH - BHEE S
Xiantao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,100,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
IHEERHERAR HEER 5,100,000 £ 7 of food and beverag
RERAHR AR
Xining Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
FEEHRAERAF HEER 6,000,000 £t of food and beverag
RER A HRAMRH
Xinjiang Ru-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,100,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TEAERABRAR HEER 6,100,000 £ 7 of food and beverag
RER A HRAMEKR
Xinjiang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,500,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
TERRRSBRAHE HEERN 7,500,000 £ 7 of food and beverag
RERAHRATHRH
Xuzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,500,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
BHAERABRAF HEERN 11,500,000 ¢ of food and beverag
RERAHR AT
Zhejiang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd." Chinese mainland US$79,100,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
IR EERAR mE R 79,100,000 7 of food and beverag
BERAHR AR
Zhejiang Ru-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$24,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
MILHERAERAT HEER 24,000,000 7T of food and beverag
BERAHR AT
Zhejiang Want-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB100,000,000 100  Manufacturing and distribution
MIRERAERAR MmEER  AR100,000,0007 of food and beverag
BERAHR AT
Zhong Want Holdings Limited HKSAR Investment Holding
FHERERAR (i 1,000%7T REAR
Notes: BRFEE -

#

*

The remaining enterprises incorporated in the Chinese mainland are all
foreign-invested enterprises.

All the enterprises incorporated in Chinese mainland are limited liability

represents sino-foreign equity/cooperative joint venture.

represents enterprise wholly-owned by a Chinese mainland legal entity.

companies.

HKSAR denotes Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

#

*

REPNGE/AIERE -
REPEREAEZABERE

HERE P EEAEMAEESRIN

BB -
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